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FIFTEEN ROPE FERRY ROAD WATERFORD, CT 06385-2886

December 20, 2023

To the Honorable First Selectman, Representative Town Meeting and the Citizens of the Town
of Waterford:

State law requires that every general-purpose local government publish within six months of the
close of each fiscal year a complete set of audited financial statements. This report is published
to fulfill that requirement for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information
contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has
established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated
benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the
financial statements are free of any material misstatements.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (CLA), Certified Public Accountants, have issued an unqualified opinion
on the Town of Waterford financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2023. The
independent auditors’ report is located at the front of the financial section of this report.

Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview and analysis of the basic financial
statements. The MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction
with it.

Profile of the Government

Waterford was incorporated in 1801. Covering an area of 33.2 square miles, the Town is
located in the southeastern region of the state. Waterford is bordered by the Towns of East
Lyme to the west, New London, Groton and Ledyard to the east, and Montville to the north. It
borders Long Island Sound to the south.

The Town has a Selectmen/Board of Finance/Representative Town Meeting form of
government. The Representative Town Meeting exercises the legislative authority of the Town.
The Board of Selectmen is composed of three members who are elected at large for four-year
terms. The Representative Town Meeting is elected for two-year terms. The First Selectman is
the head of the administrative branch of the Town Government and is responsible to the
Representative Town Meeting for the administration of all affairs relating to the Town.

The Town of Waterford provides a full range of services, including police and fire protection; the
construction and maintenance of highways, streets and other infrastructure; municipal solid
waste and recycling collection; recreational and cultural activities. The Town’s one business-
type activity, municipal water and sewer services, are provided through the Town’s Ultility
Commission.
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By Charter, the Representative Town Meeting must hold its Town Budget Meeting no later than
the first Monday in May each year. If, within fifteen days of the budget adoption no referendum
is called, the budget is considered approved. The annual budget serves as the foundation for
Town of Waterford financial planning and control. The budget is prepared by
Department/Agency at an object level. With the exception of the Police, Recreation and Parks,
Senior Services, Utility and Planning and Zoning Commissions, Board of Finance, Board of
Education, Board of Assessment Appeals, Zoning Board of Appeals, Building Board of Appeals,
Economic Development Commission, Flood & Erosion Control Board, Conservation
Commission, Retirement Commission, Harbor Management Commission and Ethics
Commission, all other Town Boards, Commissions or agencies report to the Board of
Selectmen. The Board of Selectmen, however, reviews and recommends to the Board of
Finance the level of appropriation for all municipal budgets with the exception of the Board of
Education. All budget transfers within series are approved by the Board of Selectmen.
Transfers out of series, however, require special approval from the Board of Finance.

Local Economy

Waterford is unique in that its major taxpayer is a nuclear power facility. However, numerous,
large retail sales outlets, a production/software development company, several assisted care
facilities and numerous financial institutions provide a good mix to tax base diversification. The
Waterford Tax Base has a diversified tax base with immediate access to Routes 1, 95, 395 and
85 all of which are major Connecticut arteries.

Below are specific updates for Waterford’s local economy.

Dominion Power Facility (Millstone)

Impact Analysis Completed

Increase Economic development

Viable Tax payer for at least ten years — Declining tax revenue
10-Year Deal

$50M in updates since agreement signed in January 2019

Economic Development Commission Master Plan

o EDC will be working with a consultant to set specific goals and implementation
actions for the short (1-2 year), mid (3-5 year) and long (5-10 year) terms.

Regulation Amendments

e Various zoning regulation amendments including updates to Outdoor Dining and
Parking at multifamily residential properties to facilitate new projects.

Crystal Mall

¢ Ongoing conversation with the ownership interests at the property to modify zoning
to support future mixed use development.

(ii)



New Developments

o Redevelopment of the Mobile Gas Station and Starbucks Drive-thru on Rte. 85
completed. Land use permits in place to expand the site to include a car wash.

Site work beginning for 40 affordable apartments on Rte. 85

Work ongoing for apartment complex on Willets Avenue

Approvals granted for new cafe at Mago Point

Approval of self-storage facility on Rte. 85

New Industry
e Approval granted for Safe Futures on Rte. 85
Electric Boat
e $5.1B Navy Contract — estimated 2,000 to 5,000 jobs
e Building of Columbia Class Submarines to begin in 2023

e Current impact — Increased housing activity

Long Term Financial Planning

In 1998 the Representative Town Meeting formed its Long Range Fiscal Planning Committee.
In FY01 the Board of Finance appointed an Ad Hoc Long-Range Fiscal Planning Committee to
analyze the town’s future economic growth, revenue streams and project expenditures for the
financial planning moving forward. This proactive approach to long-range operational budget
planning, combined with multi-year capital planning, has become an effective budgetary
management tool. The Long-Range Fiscal Planning Committee remains active and is in the
process of developing an updated long-term financial plan based of GFOA guidelines.

The Town implemented a Fleet Management Program that served as the basis for sizing the
fleet and provided a 5-year approach to managing a fleet valued in excess of $4.4 million. This
program allows the Town to undertake a needs assessment of its rolling stock, and based upon
established life-cycle parameters, provided a forty-year replacement plan that uses a
combination of residual values, investment income, vehicle rental revenues and an equalized
level of budget over a sustained period of time to fund all rolling stock replacements.

Major Initiatives

In compliance with GASB 54 and to strengthen Waterford’s commitment to sound financial
management and fiscal accountability, the Town still maintains the adopted fund balance policy
from 2015. In that regard, the Town’s 2023 Audited Financial Waterford has an Unassigned
Fund Balance of $26,086,355.
Increase School Enroliment

e Attract students from neighboring districts to Waterford High School on a tuition basis
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Eco Friendly Town

Achieved Bronze Certificate as a Sustainable CT Community
e Land Preservation

v' Easements, Purchase and Donations
¢ Plan of Conservation and Development

v" Energy audit of buildings

v RTM Ad Hoc Energy Task Force Created

Affordable Housing Plan

e Assessing housing needs for the future
v" The town continues to collect data to fit into regional area needs

Town Center Improvements (“Main Street”)

Committee Formed in June 2020
e Support Infrastructure for Farmer’s Market
Improved Recreational Amenities
v Accessible walking paths, sidewalks and boardwalks
Improved Fiber Connectivity
Board of Selectman adoption of the Community Waterford Park Master Plan

Acknowledgements

Although the preparation of the comprehensive annual financial report is primarily the
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support of numerous town staff. Special recognition goes to the Finance department staff.
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Respectfully submitted,

Kimberly Allen

Kimberly Allen
Director of Finance
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Finance
Town of Waterford, Connecticut

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of
Waterford, Connecticut, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Waterford, Connecticut's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinions, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Waterford, Connecticut, as of
June 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Town of Waterford,
Connecticut, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

CLAglobal.com/disclaimer
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Board of Finance
Town of Waterford, Connecticut

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town of Waterford,
Connecticut's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement
date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and, therefore, is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:
o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Town of Waterford, Connecticut's internal control. Accordingly,
no such opinion is expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

¢ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Town of Waterford, Connecticut's ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

©)



Board of Finance
Town of Waterford, Connecticut

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, the budgetary comparison information and the pension and
OPEB schedules as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with GAAS, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Town of Waterford, Connecticut’s basic financial statements. The combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules are fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other
information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not
cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the
basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.
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Board of Finance
Town of Waterford, Connecticut

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 20, 2023, on our consideration of the Town of Waterford, Connecticut's internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Waterford, Connecticut's
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Town of Waterford,
Connecticut's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

d%d//m% s

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

West Hartford, Connecticut
December 20, 2023
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
JUNE 30, 2023

This discussion and analysis of the Town of Waterford, Connecticut (the Town) financial performance is
prepared by management to provide an overview of the Town’s financial activities for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2023. Please read this MD&A in conjunction with the transmittal letter and the Town’s
financial statements, Exhibits | to IX.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The Town’s net position decreased as a result of this year's operations. While net position of
our business-type activities decreased by $973.0 thousand, or 2.0%, net position of our
governmental activities increased by $280 thousand or 0.2 %.

e During the year, the Town had expenses that were $691 thousand more than the $125.7 million
generated in tax and other revenues for governmental programs.

e In the Town’s business-type activities, revenues and transfers in decreased by $161 thousand
or 3.6%, while expenses increased by $117 thousand or 2.3 %.

e The total cost of all of the Town’s programs was $126.4 million, with no new programs added
this year.

e The General Fund reported a fund balance this year of $26.5 million.

e The resources available for appropriation were $5.4 million more than anticipated for the
General Fund. There were additional appropriations of $3.3 million, of which, $3.1 million was
for transfers out to the Capital Improvement and Capital and Nonrecurring Funds. Unused
appropriations of $1.3 million were returned to fund balance at year end. Overall, the operating
results increased the General Fund balance by $3.4 million.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The statement of net position and the
statement of activities (Exhibits | and IlI, respectively) provide information about the activities of the
Town as a whole and present a longer-term view of the Town’s finances. Fund financial statements are
presented in Exhibits Ill to IX. For governmental activities, these statements tell how these services
were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements
also report the Town’s operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by providing
information about the Town’s most significant funds. The remaining statements provide financial
information about activities for which the Town acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those
outside of the government.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Our analysis of the Town as a whole begins on Exhibits | and Il. These statements include all assets
and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most
private-sector companies. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account
regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the Town’s net position and changes in it. Over time, increases or
decreases in the Town’s net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or
deteriorating. The reader needs to consider other non-financial factors, however, such as changes in
the Town’s property tax base and the condition of the Town’s capital assets, to assess the overall
health of the Town.

(12)



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
JUNE 30, 2023

In the statement of net position and the statement of activities, we divide the Town into two types of
activities:

o Governmental Activities - Most of the Town’s basic services are reported here, including
education, public safety, public works, recreation, library, social services and general
administration. Property taxes, charges for services, and state and federal grants finance most
of these activities.

e Business-Type Activities - The Town charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most of
the cost of certain services it provides. The Town’s Utility Commission Enterprise Fund is
reported here.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements begin with Exhibit Ill and provide detailed information about the most
significant funds - not the Town as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by Charter.
However, the Board of Finance establishes many other funds to help control and manage money for
particular purposes or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using grants and other money
(i.e., grants received for education from the State and Federal Government). The Town’s funds are
divided into three categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds (Exhibits Ill and IV) - Most of the Town’s basic services are reported in
governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances
left at year-end that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting
method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that
can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term
view of the Town’s general government operations and the basic services it provides.
Governmental fund information helps to determine whether there are more or fewer financial
resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the Town’s programs. The relationship (or
differences) between governmental activities (reported in the statement of net position and the
statement of activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation included with the
fund financial statements.

Proprietary Funds (Exhibits V to VII) - When the Town charges customers for the services it
provides, whether to outside customers or to other units of the Town, these services are generally
reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are
reported in the statement of net position and the statement of activities. In fact, the Town’s
enterprise fund (a component of proprietary funds) is the same as the business-type activities
reported in the government-wide statements, but provide more detail and additional information,
such as cash flows, for proprietary funds. Internal service funds (the other component of
proprietary funds) are used to report activities that provide supplies and services for the Town’s
other programs and activities - such as the Town’s Insurance Administration Fund.

(13)



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
JUNE 30, 2023

e Fiduciary Funds (Exhibits VIIl and IX) - The Town is the trustee, or fiduciary, for its employees’
pension plans. It is also responsible for other assets that, because of a trust arrangement, can be
used only for the trust beneficiaries. All of the Town’s fiduciary activities are reported in separate
statements of fiduciary net position and changes in fiduciary net position. These activities are
excluded from the Town’s other financial statements because the Town cannot use these assets to
finance its operations. The Town is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds
are used for their intended purposes.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
The Town’s combined net position decreased from $212.7 to $212.0 million or 0.3 %. The analysis

below focuses on the net position (Table 1) and changes in net position (Table 2) of the Town’s
governmental and business-type activities.

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Assets:
Current Assets $ 65,926 $ 61,002 $ 6,764 § 5858 $ 72690 $ 66,860
Capital Assets, Net of
Accumulated Depreciation 228,069 236,256 42,958 44,691 271,027 280,947
Total Assets 293,995 297,258 49,722 50,549 343,717 347,807
Deferred Outflows of Resources 19,058 12,765 - - 19,058 12,765
Liabilities:
Long-Term Debt Outstanding 128,623 116,220 364 431 128,987 116,651
Other Liabilities 13,680 13,886 586 374 14,266 14,260
Total Liabilities 142,303 130,106 950 805 143,253 130,911
Deferred Inflows of Resources 7,503 16,949 - - 7,503 16,949
Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 164,702 166,836 42,958 44,690 207,660 211,526
Restricted 2,301 1,612 - - 2,301 1,612
Unrestricted (3,755) (5,480) 5,814 5,054 2,059 (426)
Total Net Position $ 163,248  $ 162,968 $ 48,772  $ 49,744  § 212,020 § 212,712

Net position of the Town’s governmental activities increased by 0.2 % ($163.2 million in 2023 compared
to $163.0 million in 2022). Unrestricted net position - the part of net position that can be used to
finance day-to-day operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation or
other legal requirements — increased by $1.7 million, ($5.5 million) in 2022 compared to ($3.8 million) at
the end of this year.

By far the largest portion of the Town’s net position is its investment in capital assets (e.g., land,
buildings, machinery and equipment). Since the Town’s investment in its capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, must also be reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the Town’s
outstanding debt is related to bonds payable as of June 30, 2023.

The net position of our business-type activities decreased by 2.0% ($48.8 million in 2023 compared to
49.7 million in 2022).
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
JUNE 30, 2023

The Town'’s total revenues (excluding special items) were $125.7 million. The total cost of all programs
and services was $126.4 million. Our analysis below separately considers the operations of
governmental and business-type activities.

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 3,704 $ 3232 $ 3820 $ 3,798  $ 7524 $ 7,030
Operating Grants and Contributions 15,755 11,664 - 15,755 11,664
Capital Grants and Contributions 1,143 1,858 - - 1,143 1,858
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 97,440 94,070 - 97,440 94,070
Grants and Contributions Not
Restricted to Specific Purposes 755 376 - 755 376
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 2,853 226 184 12 3,037 238
Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets - - - - -
Miscellaneous Revenue 47 55 - - 47 55
Total Revenues 121,697 111,481 4,004 3,810 125,701 115,291
Program Expenses:
General Government 16,340 14,481 - 16,340 14,481
Public Safety 14,438 11,579 - 14,438 11,579
Public Works 12,102 8,803 - 12,102 8,803
Recreation 1,967 1,836 - 1,967 1,836
Library 1,158 1,002 - 1,158 1,002
Social Services 1,374 1,303 - 1,374 1,303
Education 72,529 65,499 - 72,529 65,499
Interest and Fiscal Charges 1,247 1,363 - 1,247 1,363
Utility Commission - 5,236 5,119 5,236 5,119
Total Program Expenses 121,155 105,866 5,236 5,119 126,391 110,985
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenses Before Transfers 542 5,615 (1,232) (1,309) (690) 4,306
Transfers (260) (615) 260 615 - -
Change In Net Position 282 5,000 (972) (694) (690) 4,306
Net Position - Beginning of Year 162,968 157,968 49,744 50,438 212,712 208,406
Net Position - End of Year $ 163,250 $ 162,968 $ 48,772 § 49,744  $ 212,022  $ 212,712

Governmental Activities

Approximately 80.1% of these revenues were derived from property taxes, followed by 14.5% from
operating and capital grants and contributions, 3.0% from charges for services and 2.4% from
investment and other general revenues.

Major factors affecting operations include:
e Operating grants and contributions were up by $4.1 million due primarily to the following:

v" There was an increase in the State’s on-behalf contribution for the Teachers’ Retirement
System of $4.2 million and an increase in the State’s on-behalf contribution for the Teachers’
Retirement System OPEB of $858.7 thousand. There was a decrease in the Excess Cost grant
of $111.7 thousand. There was a decrease in Special Assistance grants of $257.8 thousand.
There was a decrease in assistance to the School Cafeteria fund of $319.4 thousand. There
was a decrease in the Thames Landing grant of $250.0 thousand.
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
JUNE 30, 2023

e Property Tax Revenues were up by $3.4 million.
¢ Investment earnings were up by $2.6 million due to higher interest rates.

e Capital grants and contributions decreased by $715.6 thousand due mainly to the following:

v Public works capital grants were down by $767.6 thousand. Public Works LOTCIP grant for
Cross Road Grant was down by $1.2 million. There was an increase of $280.0 thousand for the
Jordan Village Sidewalk grant. There was a decrease in the LOCIP grant of $17.3 thousand.
The Cost Sharing PRR grant increased by $187.4 thousand. Town Aid Roads grant is up by
$4.7 thousand.

e Social Service grants increased by $52.0 thousand for a new Senior Van.

e Miscellaneous Revenue was down by $9.0 thousand.

Table 3 presents the cost of each of the Town’s five largest programs - education, general government,
public safety, public works and recreation - as well as each program’s net cost (total cost less revenues

generated by the activities). The net cost shows the financial burden to the Town’s taxpayers by each
of these functions.

Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services
2023 2022 2023 2022
Education $ 72,529 $ 65499 $ 56,935 $ 54,613
General Government 16,339 14,481 14,804 12,225
Public Safety 14,438 11,579 13,604 11,144
Public Works 12,102 8,803 10,203 6,270
Recreation 1,967 1,836 1,695 1,614
All Others 3,779 3,667 3,313 3,245
Totals $ 121,154  $ 105,865 $ 100,554 $ 89,111

Business-Type Activities

Net position of the Town’s business-type activities (see Table 1) decreased by 2.0% ($48.8 million in
2023 compared to $49.7 million in 2022). Revenues and transfers in for the Town’s business-type
activities (see Table 2) decreased by $161.0 thousand ($4.3 million in 2023 compared to $4.4 million in
2022). Overall Expenses were higher than revenues and transfers in by $972.0 thousand. The factors
driving these results include:

¢ Anincrease in Sewer use fee revenue of $22.0 thousand.

e A decrease in transfers in of $355.0 thousand.

e Anincrease of investment earnings of $172.0 thousand.

e Anincrease in expenses of $117.0 thousand.
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
JUNE 30, 2023

TOWN FUNDS FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Governmental Funds

As the Town completed the year, its governmental funds (as presented in the balance sheet - Exhibit
1) reported a combined fund balance of $44.6 million, which is increase of $5.8 million from last year’s
total of $38.8 million. Included in this year’s total change in fund balance is an increase of $2.6 million
in the General Fund, an increase of $775.5 thousand in the Capital and Nonrecurring Fund and an
increase of $2.4 million for Nonmajor Governmental Funds.

Capital Projects Funds:

e The Capital and Nonrecurring Fund balance increased by $775.5 thousand due to revenues of
$693.7 thousand plus transfers in of $3.8 million and expenditures of $3.7 million.

Non-Major Capital Projects Funds:
e The Capital Improvement Fund increased by $1.4 million due to grant revenue of $292.1 thousand

and net transfers in and out of $2.5 million which was reduced by expenditures of $1.4 million.

e The Fleet Management Fund increased by $350.3 thousand due to revenues of $287.1 thousand
and transfers in of $800.0 thousand being offset by expenditures of $736.8 thousand.

e The Sewer Development and Maintenance Fund increased by $214.2 thousand due to revenues of
$214.2 thousand and no current year expenditures.

Special Revenue Funds:

e The Cafeteria fund increased by $316.8 thousand due to revenues of $1.5 million, offset by
expenditures of $1.2 million.

e The School Activity Fund increased by $98.2 thousand due to revenues of $399.9 thousand and
expenditures of $301.7 thousand.

e The Nuclear Safety Emergency Preparedness Fund decreased by $80.6 thousand due to
expenditures of the same amount that had not been reimbursed by the end of the year.

e The Waterford Special Activity Fund increased by $51.8 thousand due to revenues and transfers in
of $84.6 thousand and expenditures of $32.8.

Proprietary Funds

The Town’s Proprietary Funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial statements, but in more detail.

Overall, proprietary funds net assets total $54.2 million at the end of the year, which includes a $5.4
million fund balance in the Internal Service Fund.

Net position of the Utility Commission Fund at the end of the year amounted to $48.8 million. Factors
affecting the balance of this fund are included in the discussion of the Town’s business-type activities.
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In fiscal year 2023, net position of the Internal Service fund decreased by $646.5 thousand from fiscal
year 2022. This is due to $12.4 million in contributions and other revenues (an increase of $258.7
thousand over fiscal year 2022), reduced by expenses for claims and program administration of $13.3
million (an increase of $1.0 million over fiscal year 2022).

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Revenues were higher than budgetary estimates by $5.4 million and expenditures were less than
revised budgetary estimates by $1.3 million. Overall revenues over expenditures on a budgetary basis
were $3.4 million. In the current year, revenues increased by $6.6 million or 6.7 % over the prior year
and expenditures increased by $3.5 million or 3.6%.

The major factors affecting this year’s annual operating results are as follows:

Property tax revenue was over budgetary estimates by $1.2 million and over prior year revenue by
$3.8 million.

State and Federal grant funding was over budgetary estimates by $381.7 thousand and over prior
year revenue by $186.7 thousand.

Assessment revenue is over budgetary estimates by $16.5 thousand and over the prior year by
$4.0 thousand.

License and permit revenue is over budgetary estimates by $587.0 thousand and over the prior
year by $39.9 thousand. Town clerk fees decreased by $74.4 thousand over fiscal year 2022. The
building department revenues increased from FY22 by $138.6 thousand, conveyance tax revenue
is down from FY22 by $37.9 thousand. Planning & zoning had an increase of $15.2 thousand over
the prior year. Miscellaneous fees and permits were down from FY22 by $1.1 thousand.
Recreation and parks revenue is down from FY22 by $0.7 thousand.

Fines, Penalties and Charges for Services are over budgetary estimates by $177.8 thousand and
over the prior year revenue by $21.0 thousand. The biggest change was an increase for tuition
fees of $32.8 thousand, followed by a decrease of $23.3 thousand in tipping fee revenue.
Miscellaneous revenue increased by $19.6 thousand. Senior Services program revenue was down
by $18.0 thousand. Recycling revenue increased by $15.1 thousand. Bulky Waste fees were down
by $5.0 thousand. False alarm fines were down up $0.8 thousand and the Library was up by $0.5
thousand.

Other sources of revenue were over budgetary estimates by $842.7 thousand and over the prior
year revenue by $578.2 thousand. Rental of Buildings was up $637.8 thousand due to a
prepayment for a new fifty year lease. Cost sharing PRR was up by $103.6 thousand. The New
London Radio fee was down by $72.2 thousand due to it being used to offset the Information
Technology budget in FY23. The CIRMA subsidy is down by $96.1 thousand due to the Town
leaving CIRMA in Fiscal year 2023. The ambulance subsidy was down by $6.0 thousand as it was
used to repay Waterford Ambulance for providing AED replacements. The BOE clerical stipend is
down by $5.0 thousand as it was used in fiscal year 2023 to offset the Youth and Family services
expenditure budget. Sale of vehicles and equipment was up by $11.8 thousand. The Eugene
O’Neill Lease was up $8.8 thousand. The SCRRRA rebate was down by $3.1 thousand. Rent &
Miscellaneous revenue was down by $1.5 thousand.

Investment income is over budgetary estimates by $1.9 million and over prior year revenue by the
same amount.
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o Other Financing Sources, which consists of the cancelation of prior year encumbrances and
transfers in from the capital improvement fund, was over estimated revenue by $246.2 thousand
and over the prior year by $123.4 thousand.

Overall Expenditures came in $1.3 million under revised budgetary estimates. The largest amounts of
unused appropriations returned in the current fiscal year are as follows:

e The Board of Education returned $304.7 thousand.

e The Public Works Department returned $223.7 thousand.

e The Information Technology Department returned $111.5 thousand.

e The Police Department returned $104.2 thousand.

e The Emergency Management Department returned $101.3 thousand.

e The Retirement Commission returned $54.0 thousand.

e The Planning & Zoning Department returned $52.0 thousand.

The Town’s General Fund balance of $26.5 million reported on Exhibit Il differs from the General
Fund’s budgetary balance of $26.9 million reported in the budgetary comparison in the required
supplementary information. This is principally because budgetary fund balance does not include
$234.4 thousand of outstanding encumbrances at year-end, which are reported as expenditures for
budgetary purposes. The balances for special revenue funds financed primarily from operating
transfers from the General Fund are also rolled into that fund for reporting purposes. For fiscal year

2023, those balances amounted to $32.5 thousand. Adjustments for unbudgeted lease activity under
GASB 87 reduced Exhibit Il balance by $660.3 thousand.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

At June 30, 2023, the Town had $271.0 million invested in a broad range of capital assets, including
land, buildings, park facilities, vehicles and equipment, roads, bridges, and water and sewer lines -
Table 4. This amount represents a net decrease (including additions and deductions) of $9.9 million, or
3.4%, from last year.

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Land $ 8,993 $ 9,008 $ 128 $ 128 $ 9,121 $ 9,136
Land Improvements 1,796 1,919 1,796 1,919
Building and Improvements 156,880 162,636 875 909 157,755 163,545
Machinery and Equipment 2,690 2,592 545 635 3,235 3,227
Right-to-Use Lease

Machinery and Equipment 157 221 157 221
Vehicles 4,689 5,013 203 231 4,892 5,244
Infrastructure 52,557 52,789 41,188 42,287 93,745 95,076
Permanent Easements 20 5 20 5
Software 62 75 19 5 81 80
Construction In Progress 225 1,998 495 225 2,493

Total $ 228,069 $ 236,256 $ 42,958 $ 44,690 $ 271,027 $ 280,946
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Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year are noted below:

Governmental Activities:

Buildings and improvements decreased by $5.8 million due mainly to depreciation expense of the
same amount.

Construction-in-progress decreased by $1.8 million due mainly to the completion of road
reconstruction on Cross Road.

Land Improvements decreased by $124.0 thousand. There was an addition of $12.1 thousand
reduced by depreciation expense of $135.2 thousand.

Vehicles decreased by $324.0 thousand due to additions of $470.1 thousand, in accordance with
the fleet management plan, this was offset by depreciation expense of $793.9 thousand.

Infrastructure decreased by $232.0 thousand. Additions included the completion of various road
projects, including Cross Road, which increased infrastructure by $1.5 million. Depreciation
expense was $1.8 million.

Machinery and equipment increased by $98.0 thousand due to mainly to additions of $662.5
thousand, which was offset by depreciation expense of $563.2 thousand.

Right-to-use machinery and equipment decreased by $64.0 thousand due to additions of $9.5
thousand and depreciation of $74.2 thousand.

Software decreased by $13.0 thousand due to amortization expense.

Permanent Easements increased and Land decreased by $15.0 thousand due to a reclassification.

Business-Type Activities

There was decrease in infrastructure of $1.1 million due to additions of $407.5 thousand and
depreciation expense of $1.5 million.

There was a decrease in construction-in-progress of $495.3 thousand due mainly to the completion
of the additional pump at Evergreen pump station.

There was an increase to software of $14.0 thousand due to the replacement of the Utility billing
software.

The decreases to all other asset categories were due entirely to depreciation and amortization
expense.

Additional information on the Town’s capital assets can be found in Note 6 of this report.

Long-Term Debt

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town had $61.7 million of outstanding general obligation
bonds. Bonds issued in July 2022 carried an AA rating from Standard & Poor.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 7 times its
total prior years’ tax collections. The current debt limitation for the Town is $657.6 million.
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Additional information on the Town’s long-term debt can be found in Note 8.

Economic Factors

e The unemployment rate for the Town in 2023 was 3.7%, which is a decrease from a rate of 4.3% a
year ago. Waterford’s unemployment rate is lower than the State’s average unemployment rate of
4.0%, and the national average of 3.8% as of June 2023.

During the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance in the General Fund increased by $3.1 million.
The main reason for the increase is positive operating results of $2.6 million. A decrease in the
nonspendable balance of $338.4 thousand and assigned balance of $121.4 thousand also increased
the unassigned balance.

CONTACTING THE TOWN’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with
a general overview of the Town’s finances and to show the Town’s accountability for the money it

receives. Please contact the Director of Finance, Town of Waterford, 15 Rope Ferry Road, Waterford,
Connecticut 06385 if you have questions about this report or need additional financial information.
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Investments

Receivables, Net

Internal Balances

Supplies

Prepaid ltems

Capital Assets:
Intangible Assets Not Being Amortized
Intangible Assets Being Amortized, Net
Assets Not Being Depreciated
Assets Being Depreciated, Net

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to Pensions

Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to OPEB
Deferred Charge on Refunding
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts and Other Payables
Accrued Liabilities
Unearned Revenue
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due Within One Year
Due in More Than One Year
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Leases
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
Trust Purposes:
Nonexpendable
Grants
Contracts
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

JUNE 30, 2023

Primary Government

EXHIBIT |

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
$ 45,533,215 $ 5,212,880 $ 50,746,095
17,552,332 17,552,332
2,782,983 1,671,628 4,354,611
20,730 (20,730) -
19,081 - 19,081
17,213 - 17,213
20,000 - 20,000
62,293 18,946 81,239
9,218,458 127,970 9,346,428
218,768,319 42,810,695 261,579,014
293,994,624 49,721,389 343,716,013
14,382,553 - 14,382,553
3,214,899 - 3,214,899
1,460,536 - 1,460,536
19,057,988 - 19,057,988
2,733,451 376,413 3,109,864
4,961,550 188,641 5,150,191
5,983,652 21,533 6,005,185
13,678,653 586,587 14,265,240
7,694,110 36,092 7,730,202
120,928,816 327,416 121,256,232
128,622,926 363,508 128,986,434
142,301,579 950,095 143,251,674
3,600,348 - 3,600,348
2,366,637 - 2,366,637
1,536,168 - 1,536,168
7,503,153 - 7,503,153
164,702,320 42,957,611 207,659,931
119,247 - 119,247
1,405,387 - 1,405,387
776,789 - 776,789
(3,755,863) 5,813,683 2,057,820
$ 163,247,880 $ 48,771,294 $ 212,019,174
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2023

RECONCILIATION TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (Exhibit 111)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
(Exhibit 1) are different because of the following:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds:

Governmental Capital Assets
Less: Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization
Net Capital Assets

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and,
therefore, are not recorded in the funds:

Property Tax Receivables Greater Than 60 Days
Interest Receivable on Property Taxes

Delinquent Special Assessments

Unavailable Revenue - Grants Receivable

Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to Pensions
Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to OPEB
Deferred Charge on Refunding

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of risk
management to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service
funds are reported with governmental activities in the statement of net position.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds:

Net Pension Liability

Bonds and Notes Payable

Bond and Note Premiums

Interest Payable on Bonds And Notes

Leases Payable

Compensated Absences

Landfill Post-Closure Monitoring Liability

Net OPEB Liability

Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

Net Position of Governmental Activities as Reported on the Statement
of Net Position (Exhibit I)

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
(26)

EXHIBIT Iil
(CONTINUED)

$ 44,650,781

405,218,328
(177,149,258)

228,069,070

779,907
391,661
42,595
98,484
14,382,553
3,214,899
1,460,536

5,418,984

(37,159,387)
(61,665,000)
(3,021,399)
(671,677)
(140,887)
(6,872,353)
(199,000)
(19,564,900)
(3,600,348)
(2,366,637)

$ 163,247,882
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EXHIBIT IV
(CONTINUED)

TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

RECONCILIATION TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds (Exhibit V) $ 5,819,190
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (Exhibit 1) are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. In the statement of activities, the cost of those
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation and amortization expense:

Capital Outlay 2,651,529
Depreciation and Amortization Expense (9,092,531)

The statement of activities reports losses arising from the disposal of existing capital assets. Conversely,
governmental funds do not report any gain or loss on disposal of capital assets. This amount represents the
disposal of capital assets. (1,746,105)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported as
revenues in the funds, and revenues recognized in the funds are not reported in the statement of activities:

Property Tax Receivable - Accrual Basis Change (126,474)
Property Tax Interest and Lien Revenue - Accrual Basis Change (187,992)
Delinquent Special Assessment Receivable - Accrual Basis Change 1,352
Miscellaneous Grants and Accounts Receivable - Accrual Basis Change 124,993
Change in Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to Pensions 4,701,328
Change in Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to OPEB 1,783,194

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to governmental funds,
while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of
governmental funds. Neither transaction has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the
effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these
amounts are amortized and deferred in the statement of activities. The details of these differences in the
treatment of long-term debt and related items are as follows:

Bond Principal Payments 5,310,000
Issuance of Leases (9,522)
Lease Principal Payments 73,429
Amortization of Deferred Charge on Refunding (191,709)
Amortization of Premiums 769,245
Landfill Post-Closure Monitoring 24,000

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds:

Compensated Absences 161,237
Accrued Interest 65,657
Change in Net Pension Liability (16,763,324)
Change in Net OPEB Liability (1,968,984)
Change in Prior Service Cost 536
Change in Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 9,051,154
Change in Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 475,573
Internal service funds are used by management to charge costs to individual funds. The net revenue of certain
activities of internal services funds is reported with governmental activities. (646,542)
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities as Reported on the Statement of Activities (Exhibit I1) $ 279,234

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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EXHIBIT V
TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
JUNE 30, 2023

Business-Type Governmental
Activities Activities
Utility Internal
Commission Service Fund
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 5,212,880 $ 5,866,693
Receivables, Net 1,571,628 -
Interfund Receivables - 337,466
Total Current Assets 6,784,508 6,204,159
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets, Net 42,957,611 -
Total Assets 49,742,119 6,204,159
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts and Other Payables 286,502 -
Accrued Liabilities 188,641 727,000
Interfund Payables 20,730 -
Advance Collections 21,533 58,175
Deposits 89,911 -
Compensated Absences 36,092 -
Total Current Liabilities 643,409 785,175
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated Absences 327,416 -
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 327,416 -
Total Liabilities 970,825 785,175
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 42,957,611 -
Unrestricted 5,813,683 5,418,984
Total Net Position $ 48,771,294 $ 5,418,984

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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EXHIBIT VI
TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Business-Type Governmental
Activities Activities
Utility Internal
Commission Service Fund
OPERATING REVENUES
User Charges for Services, Interest and Lien Fees $ 3,820,447 $ -
Premium Charges to Other Funds - 12,368,533
Total Operating Revenues 3,820,447 12,368,533
OPERATING EXPENSES
Amortization Expense 1,267 -
Depreciation Expense 1,658,249 -
Salaries, Wages, and Employee Benefits 1,411,862 -
Treatment Plant Costs 1,018,476 -
Utilities 317,898 -
Repairs and Maintenance 219,931 -
Other Operating Expenses 69,982 -
Materials and Supplies 178,975 -
Professional Services 25,867 -
Claims - 9,386,235
Program and Administrative Expenses - 3,859,531
Total Operating Expenses 4,902,507 13,245,766
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (1,082,060) (877,233)
NONOPERATING REVENUE
Income on Investments 183,589 230,691
Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets (333,055) -
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (149,466) 230,691
GAIN (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS (1,231,526) (646,542)
Capital Contributions 260,374 -
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (971,152) (646,542)
Net Position - Beginning of Year 49,742,446 6,065,526
NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ 48,771,294 $ 5418,984

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

EXHIBIT VI

Business-Type Governmental
Activities Activities
Utility Internal
Commission Service Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Charges for Services and Premiums $ 3,801,714 $ 12,368,533
Payments to Suppliers (1,764,727) -
Claims and Other Expenses Paid - (13,792,731)
Payments to Employees (1,494,850) -
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 542,137 (1,424,198)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Income on Investments 183,589 230,691
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 183,589 230,691
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 725,726 (1,193,507)
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 4,487,154 7,060,200
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 5,212,880 $ 5,866,693
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Income (Loss) $ (1,082,060) $ (877,233)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 1,659,516 -
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in:
Accounts Receivable 8,835 -
Interfunds Receivable - (26,607)
Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts Payable 229,502 (153,328)
Accrued Liabilities 9,727 (358,000)
Interfunds Payable (188,803) -
Advance Collections And Deposits (27,568) (9,030)
Compensated Absences (67,012) -
Total Adjustments 1,624,197 (546,965)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ 542,137 $ (1,424,198)
NONCASH DISCLOSURE OF CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
Capital Contributions from Other Funds $ 260,374 $ -

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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EXHIBIT Vil
TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2023

Pension and
Other Custodial
Employee Fund
Benefit Student
Trust Funds Scholarship
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 22,480 $ 298,100
Investments:
Mutual Funds 11,045,749 -
Receivables:
Accrued Interest and Dividends 3,470 -
Total Assets 11,071,699 298,100
LIABILITIES
Accounts and Other Payables 17,586 -
NET POSITION
Restricted for OPEB Benefits 10,544,654 -
Restricted for Pension Benefits 509,459 -
Restricted for Scholarships - 298,100
Total Net Position $ 11,054,113 $ 298,100

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
(32)



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employer
Other
Total Contributions

Investment Income:
Net Change in Fair Value of Investments

Total Additions
DEDUCTIONS
Benefit Payments
Administration
Payments to Individuals
Total Deductions
CHANGE IN NET POSITION

Net Position - Beginning of Year

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
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EXHIBIT IX

Pension and
Other Custodial
Employee Fund
Benefit Student
Trust Funds Scholarship
$ 1,646,096 $ -
- 72,604
1,646,096 72,604
1,012,137 711
2,658,233 73,315
566,471 -
12,602 -
- 56,306
579,073 56,306
2,079,160 17,009
8,974,953 281,091
$ 11,054,113 $ 298,100




NOTE 1

TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

The Town of Waterford, Connecticut (the Town) was settled in 1646 and incorporated in
1801. The Town operates under a charter and a Board of Selectmen, Board of Finance,
and Representative Town Meeting (RTM) form of government.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United State of America require that the
reporting entity include the primary government, organizations for which the primary
government is financially accountable, and other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion
would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. A
government is financially accountable for a legally separate organization if it appoints a
voting majority of the organization’s governing body and there is a potential for the
organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens
on, the government. These criteria have been considered and have resulted in the
inclusion of the fiduciary component units as detailed below.

Fiduciary Component Units

The Town has established a single-employer Public Retirement Systems (PERS) and a
postretirement retiree health plan (OPEB) to provide retirement benefits and
postretirement health care benefits to employees and their beneficiaries. The Town
appoints a majority of the Pension Board and is required to make contributions to the
pension and OPEB plans and can impose its will.

The financial statements of the fiduciary component units are reported as Pension and
OPEB Trust funds in the fiduciary fund financial statements. Separate financial
statements have not been prepared for the fiduciary component units.

. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as
applied to government units. The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is
the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles. The more significant of the Town’s accounting policies are
described below.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the
statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Town.
For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements. However, interfund services provided and used are not eliminated in the
process of consolidation. Governmental activities, which are normally supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

(34)



NOTE 1

TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B. Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those
expenses that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program
revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment, and
2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds
and fiduciary funds, including fiduciary component units, even though the latter are
excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental
funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and
fiduciary fund financial statements.

Revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized
as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have
been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues
are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Town
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days after the end of
the current fiscal period.

Property taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the
current fiscal period. In determining when to recognize intergovernmental revenues
(grants and entitlements), the legal and contractual requirements of the individual
programs are used as guidance. Revenues are recognized when the eligibility
requirements have been met. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable
and available only when cash is received by the Town.
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NOTE 1

TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

(Continued)

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, compensated absences and claims
and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund

The General Fund is the Town’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the Town, except those activities required to be accounted for in
another fund.

Capital and Nonrecurring Expenditures Fund

The Capital and Nonrecurring Expenditures Fund accounts for revenues and
expenditures to be used for various short-term construction projects funded by the
General Fund.

Waterford High School Building Project

The Waterford High School Building Project accounts for revenues and expenditures
and other financing sources for the construction of the High School.

American Rescue Funds

The American Rescue Funds Grant accounts for revenues and expenditures associated
with the related funding to support recovery from Covid-19.

Additionally, the Town reports the following major proprietary fund:

Utility Commission Fund

The Utility Commission Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the sewer
collection system, which is owned by the Town and is primarily supported through
charges to customers.

Additionally, the Town reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Fund

The Internal Service Fund is used to account for the Town’s insurance program for
health insurance coverage of the Town and Board of Education employees.

Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds

The Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds account for the assets that have
been set aside in a trust for the employee retirement plan for certain Town employees
and assets that have been set aside in a trust for other post-employment benefits for
certain employees.
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NOTE 1

TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

(Continued)

Custodial Funds
The Custodial Funds account for monies held on behalf of students for scholarships.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the
government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges
between the enterprise funds and various other function of the government. Elimination
of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the
various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants
for goods, services or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3)
capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated
resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise,
general revenue includes all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.
The principal operating revenues of the proprietary funds are charges to users for
services. Operating expenses for internal service funds include the cost of sales and
services and administrative expenses. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the
government’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they
are needed. Unrestricted resources are used in the following order: committed, assigned
then unassigned.

. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Town classifies money market funds, STIF investments, treasury bills, and
certificates of deposit having original maturities of three months or less when purchased
as cash equivalents. The Connecticut State Treasurer’s Short-Term Investment Fund is
an investment pool managed by the State of Connecticut Office of the State Treasurer.
STIF is an investment pool of high-quality, short-term money market instruments with an
average maturity of less than 60 days. Investments must be made in instruments
authorized by Connecticut General Statutes 3-27c¢ through 3-27e. Investment guidelines
are adopted by the State Treasurer. The pool is reported at amortized cost. There were
no limitations or restrictions on any withdrawals due to redemption notice periods,
liquidity fees, or redemption gates.
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NOTE 1

TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

E.

Investments
Investments are stated at fair value.
Supplies and Prepaid Items

Supplies consist of United States Department of Agriculture donated commodities and
are stated at fair market value. Supplies are recorded as expenditures when consumed
rather than when purchased. Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to
future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide
and fund financial statements.

Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year is referred to as either “due to/from other funds”
(i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the
noncurrent portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are
reported as “due to/from other funds.”

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a
fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are
not available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources.

Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and the
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as
“internal balances.”

In the government-wide financial statements, all trade and property tax receivables are
shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles.

. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g.,
roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements and proprietary fund financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the
Town as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated
useful life of more than one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are
recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance
and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend lives are not
capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed.
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NOTE 1

TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

H. Capital Assets (Continued)

Capital assets of the Town are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Infrastructure:
Public Domain Infrastructure 10 to 65 Years
System Infrastructure 30 Years
Land and Buildings:
Land
Land Improvements 20 Years
Buildings 2510 40 Years
Building Improvements 2510 40 Years
Equipment:
Vehicles 8 Years
Office Equipment 51t0 20 Years
Computer Equipment 5 Years
Machinery and Equipment 51to 30 Years
Software 15 Years
Leases
Lessee

The Town determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception. Leases are included in
lease assets and lease liabilities in the statements of net position.

Lease assets represent the Town’s control of the right to use an underlying asset for the
lease term, as specified in the contract, in an exchange or exchange-like transaction.
Lease assets are recognized at the commencement date based on the initial
measurement of the lease liability, plus any payments made to the lessor at or before
the commencement of the lease term and certain direct costs. Lease assets are
amortized in a systematic and rational manner over the shorter of the lease term or the
useful life of the underlying asset.

Lease liabilities represent the Town’s obligation to make lease payments arising from the
lease. Lease liabilities are recognized at the commencement date based on the present
value of expected lease payments over the lease term, less any lease incentives.
Interest expense is recognized ratably over the contract term.

The lease term may include options to extend or terminate the lease when it is
reasonably certain that the Town will exercise that option.

The Town has elected to recognize payments for short-term leases with a lease term of

12 months or less as expenses as incurred, and these leases are not included as lease
liabilities or right-to-use lease assets on the statements of net position.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

Lessee (Continued)

The individual lease contracts do not provide information about the discount rate implicit
in the lease. Therefore, the Town has elected to use their incremental borrowing rate to
calculate the present value of expected lease payments.

The Town accounts for contracts containing both lease and nonlease components as
separate contracts when possible. In cases where the contract does not provide
separate price information for lease and nonlease components, and it is impractical to
estimate the price of such components, the Town treats the components as a single
lease unit.

Lessor

The Town determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception. Leases are included in
lease receivables and deferred inflows of resources in the statements of net position and
fund financial statements.

Lease receivables represent the Town’s claim to receive lease payments over the lease
term, as specified in the contract, in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. Lease
receivables are recognized at commencement date based on the present value of
expected lease payments over the lease term, reduced by any provision for estimated
uncollectible amounts. Interest revenue is recognized ratably over the contract term.

Deferred inflows of resources related to leases are recognized at the commencement
date based on the initial measurement of the lease receivable, plus any payments
received from the lessee at or before the commencement of the lease term that relate to
future periods, less any lease incentives paid to, or on behalf of, the lessee at or before
the commencement of the lease term.

Amounts to be received under residual value guarantees that are not fixed in substance
are recognized as a receivable and an inflow of resources if (a) a guaranteed payment is
required, and (b) the amount can be reasonably estimated. Amounts received for the
exercise price of a purchase option or penalty for lease termination are recognized as a
receivable and an inflow of resources when those options are exercised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

Lessor (Continued)

The Town has elected to recognize payments received for short-term leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less as revenue as the payments are received. These leases are
not included as lease receivables or deferred inflows on the statements of net position
and fund financial statements.

The individual lease contracts do not provide information about the discount rate implicit
in the lease. Therefore, the Town has elected to use their incremental borrowing rate to
calculate the present value of expected lease payments.

The Town accounts for contracts containing both lease and nonlease components as
separate contracts when possible. In cases where the contract does not provide
separate price information for lease and nonlease components, and it is impractical to
estimate the price of such components, the Town treats the components as a single
lease unit.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net assets or fund balance
that applies to a future period or periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The Town reports a deferred charge on
refunding and deferred outflows related to pension and OPEB in the government-wide
statement of net position. A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in
the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred
and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. A deferred
outflow of resources related to pension and OPEB results from differences between
expected and actual experience, changes in assumptions or other inputs. These
amounts are deferred and included in pension and OPEB expense in a systematic and
rational manner over a period equal to the average of the expected remaining service
lives of all employees that are provided with benefits through the pension and OPEB
plan (active employees and inactive employees).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

J. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (Continued)

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net assets or fund balance
that applies to a future period or periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. The Town reports deferred inflows related to
pensions, OPEB and leases in the government-wide statement of net position. A
deferred inflow of resources related to pension and OPEB results from differences
between expected and actual experience, changes in assumptions or other inputs.
These amounts are deferred and included in pension and OPEB expense in a
systematic and rational manner over a period equal to the average of the expected
remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with benefits through the
pension and OPEB plan (active employees and inactive employees). Deferred inflows of
resources related to leases are recognized at the commencement date based on the
initial measurement of the lease receivable, plus any payments received from the lessee
at or before the commencement of the lease term that relate to future periods, less any
lease incentives paid to, or on behalf of, the lessee at or before the commencement of
the lease term. The deferred inflows related to leases are recognized as lease revenue
in a systematic and rational manner over the lease term. Also, for governmental funds,
the Town reports unavailable revenue, which arises only under the modified accrual
basis of accounting. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from four
sources: grants receivable, special assessments, property taxes and interest on property
taxes. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue)
in the period during which the amounts become available.

. Net Pension Liability and Net OPEB Liability

The net pension liability is measured as the portion of the actuarial present value of
projected benefits that is attributed to past periods of employee service (total pension
liability), net of the pension plan’s fiduciary net position. The pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is determined using the same valuation methods that are used by the pension
plan for purposes of preparing its statement of fiduciary net position. The net pension
liability is measured as of a date (measurement date) no earlier than the end of the
employer’s prior fiscal year, consistently applied from period to period.

The net OPEB liability is measured as the portion of the actuarial present value of
projected benefits that is attributed to past periods of employee service (total OPEB
liability), net of the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position. The OPEB plan’s fiduciary net
position is determined using the same valuation methods that are used by the OPEB
plan for purposes of preparing its statement of fiduciary net position. The net OPEB
liability is measured as of a date (measurement date) no earlier than the end of the
employer’s prior fiscal year, consistently applied from period to period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

L. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities or proprietary
fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable
are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Issuance costs, whether or
not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenses in the period incurred.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of
debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt
issuances are reported as other financing sources, while discounts on debt issuances
are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the
actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

. Compensated Absences

Town and Board of Education employees accumulate vacation and sick leave hours for
subsequent use or for payment upon termination or retirement. Vacation and sick leave
expenses to be paid in future period are accrued when incurred in the government-wide
and proprietary financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in
governmental funds only for amounts that have become due. The general fund is
typically used to liquidate the liability.

. Equity

Equity in the government-wide financial statements is defined as “net position” and is
classified in the following categories:

Net Investment in Capital Assets — This component of net position consists of capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of
any bonds, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted Net Position — Restricted net position contains assets subject to
restrictions that are externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt
covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Position — This component consists of net position that does not
meet the definition of “restricted” or “net investment in capital assets.”
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NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
N. Equity (Continued)

The equity of the fund financial statements is defined as “fund balance” and is classified
in the following categories:

Nonspendable Fund Balance — This component represents amounts that cannot be
spent due to form (e.g., inventories and prepaid amounts).

Restricted Fund Balance — This component represents amounts constrained for a
specific purpose by external parties, such as grantors, creditors, contributors, or laws
and regulations of their governments.

Committed Fund Balance — This component represents amounts constrained for a
specific purpose by a government using its highest level of decision-making authority
(Town of Waterford Representative Town Meeting) in the form of an ordinance. Once
adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance remains in place until a similar
action is taken to remove or revise the limitation.

Assigned Fund Balance — This balance represents amounts constrained for the
intent to be used for a specific purpose by a governing body or board or official that
has been delegated authority to assign amounts by the Town Charter. The Finance
Director has been delegated authority to assign amounts.

Unassigned Fund Balance — This component represents fund balance in the General
Fund in excess of nhonspendable, restricted, committed, and assigned fund balance.
If another governmental fund has a fund balance deficit, it is reported as a negative
amount in unassigned fund balance.

O. Property Taxes

The Town’s property tax is levied each June on the assessed value listed on the prior
October 1 Grand List for all taxable property located in the Town and are computed at
70% of market value. Although taxes are levied in June, the legal right to attach property
does not exist until July 1. Taxes are due and payable in two installments on the
following July 1 and January 1. Interest of 1-%2% per month is charged on delinquent
taxes. The Town files liens against property if taxes that are due July 1 remain unpaid on
the following June 30. Liens are effective on the attachment date and are continued by
filing prior to the following levy date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

O. Property Taxes (Continued)

Additional supplemental property taxes are assessed for motor vehicles registered
subsequent to the Grand List date through July 31 and are payable in one installment
due January 1.

Property tax revenues are recognized when they become available. Available means
due or past due and receivable within the current period or expected to be collected
soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The Town
defines the current period to mean within 60 days after year-end. Property taxes
receivable not expected to be collected during the available period are reflected in
unavailable revenue in the fund financial statements. The entire receivable is recorded
as revenue in the government-wide financial statements. Property taxes collected prior
to June 30 that are applicable to the subsequent years’ assessment are reflected as
advance tax collections in both the fund financial statements and the government-wide
financial statements.

. Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

NOTE2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary Information

Formal legally adopted annual budgets are employed as a management control device
in the General Fund only. Project-length budgets are employed in the Capital Projects
Funds. All unencumbered appropriations in the general fund lapse at year-end.
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NOTE2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED)
A. Budgetary Information (Continued)

The Town uses the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data included in
the financial statements. Those boards seeking appropriations, with the exception of the
Board of Education, make their budgetary requests to the Board of Selectmen by a date
designated by the Board. During the months of January and February, the Board of
Selectmen conducts budget hearings with the requesting agencies. The Board of
Selectmen will take action on these requests no later than the second week in February
and forward the budgets and its recommendation for funding to the Board of Finance.
During the month of March, the Board of Finance conducts budget hearings with the
requesting departments, Boards, Commissions, and Agencies including the Board of
Education. The Board of Finance then conducts a public hearing to determine the
budget it will recommend to the RTM. This recommendation cannot exceed the
recommended level of appropriation by the Board of Selectmen unless a departmental
appeal is made to them based upon the action of the Board of Selectmen in a timeframe
approved by Ordinance. The RTM holds its annual budget meeting the first Monday in
May and acts upon the recommended budget as submitted by the Board of Finance
inclusive of the Board of Education. The RTM cannot increase the level of appropriation
recommended by the Board of Finance unless a departmental appeal is made to them
from the action of the Board of Finance in a timeframe approved by Ordinance. The
annual budget meeting legally appropriates this budget to departmental line items for
expenditures and transfers. The Board of Finance then sets a tax mill rate for the
ensuing fiscal year based upon this level of budget.

Town management may transfer amounts within the series level within a department
with Commission or Board approval, but only the Board of Finance is authorized to
transfer the legally budgeted amounts between series within or between departmental
accounts. In this function, series within the various departments serve as the level of
management control.

The Superintendent of Schools is authorized to make limited line-item transfers under
emergency circumstances where the urgent need for the transfer prevents the Board of
Education from meeting in a timely fashion to consider the transfer. Any such transfer
shall be announced at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board.

The Town’s budgeting system requires accounting for certain transactions to be on a
basis other than GAAP. The major difference between the budgetary and GAAP basis is
that encumbrances are recognized as a charge against a budget appropriation in the
year in which the purchase order is issued and, accordingly, encumbrances outstanding
at year-end are recorded in budgetary reports as expenditures of the current year,
whereas, on a GAAP basis, encumbrances are recorded as assigned fund balance.

Summarizations of the amended budget approved by the RTM for the “budgetary”

General Fund is presented. During the year, there were $3,245,236 of supplemental
budgetary appropriations
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NOTE2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED)

A. Budgetary Information (Continued)

As explained above, the Town’s budgetary fund structure accounts for certain
transactions differently from that utilized in reporting in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles.

The differences between the budgetary and GAAP basis of accounting are as follows:

Encumbrances are recognized as valid and proper charges against budget
appropriations in the year in which the purchase order is issued and, accordingly,
encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reflected in budgetary reports as
expenditures in the current year but are shown as an assigned fund balance on a
GAAP basis.

State of Connecticut Teachers’ Retirement System pension and OPEB contributions
made on-behalf of the Town of Waterford for teachers’ pension and OPEB benefits
are reported for GAAP purposes only.

Excess Cost - Student based grant is credited against the Board of Education’s
operating budget.

Bond Refundings - Proceeds from principal and premium received through bond
refundings, as well as the cost of bond issuance costs and payments made to bond
escrow agents during the bond refunding are recorded for GAAP purposes only.

GASB 54 Funds - Certain funds are consolidated with the general fund following the
guidance of GASB 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Government Fund Type
Definitions. These funds do not have legally adopted budgets but are recorded with
the general fund for GAAP purposes.

Encumbrance accounting is employed in governmental funds. Encumbrances (e.g.,
purchase orders, contracts) outstanding at year-end are reported as assigned fund
balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will
be honored during the subsequent year.

B. Deficit Fund Equity

The following funds had deficit fund balances at year-end:

Fund Amount
Waterford High School Building Project $ 2,941,577
Nuclear Safety Emergency Preparedness 80,594
ARPA Rural Roads Fund 17,708

These deficits will be eliminated in future years by grants and when permanent financing
is obtained.
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CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS

The deposit of public funds is controlled by the Connecticut General Statutes
(Section 7-402). Deposits may be made in a “qualified public depository” as defined by
Statute, or, in amounts not exceeding the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance
limit, in an “out of state bank” as defined by the Statutes, which is not a “qualified public
depository.”

The Town and the Pension and OPEB Trust Funds have a policy for investments which is
governed by State Statutes. The Connecticut General Statutes (Section 7-400) permit
municipalities to invest in: 1) obligations of the United States and its agencies, 2) highly
rated obligations of any state of the United States or of any political subdivision, authority, or
agency thereof, and 3) shares or other interests in custodial arrangements or pools
maintaining constant net asset values and in highly rated no-load open end money market
and mutual funds (with constant or fluctuating net asset values) whose portfolios are limited
to obligations of the United States and its agencies, and repurchase agreements fully
collateralized by such obligations. Other provisions of the Statutes cover specific municipal
funds with particular investment authority. The provisions of the Statutes regarding the
investment of municipal pension funds do not specify permitted investments. Therefore,
investment of such funds is generally controlled by the laws applicable to fiduciaries and the
provisions of the applicable plan.

The Statutes (Sections 3-24f and 3-27f) also provide for investment in shares of the State
Short-Term Investment Fund (STIF). STIF is an investment pool of high-quality, short-term
money market instruments with an average maturity of less than 60 days which is under the
control of the State Treasurer, with oversight provided by the Treasurer's Cash Management
Advisory Board, and are regulated under the State Statutes and subject to annual audit by
the Auditors of Public Accounts. Investment yields are accounted for on an amortized-cost
basis with an investment portfolio that is designed to attain a market-average rate of return
throughout budgetary and economic cycles. Investors accrue interest daily based on actual
earnings, less expenses and transfers to the designated surplus reserve, and the fair value
of the position in the pool is the same as the value of the pool shares. There were no
limitations or restrictions on any withdrawals due to redemption notice periods, liquidity fees,
or redemption gates.

Deposits
Deposit Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Town’s deposits will
not be returned. The Town does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. The
deposit of public funds is controlled by the Connecticut General Statutes. Deposits may be
placed with any qualified public depository that has its main place of business in the state of
Connecticut. Connecticut General Statutes require that each depository maintain
segregated collateral (not required to be based on a security agreement between the
depository and the municipality and, therefore, not perfected in accordance with federal law)
in an amount equal to a defined percentage of its public deposits based upon the
depository’s risk-based capital ratio.
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CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Deposits (Continued)
Deposit Custodial Credit Risk (Continued)
Based on the criteria described in GASB Statement No. 40, Deposits and Investment Risk

Disclosures, $2,215,056 of the Town’s bank balance of $7,119,392 was exposed to
custodial credit risk as follows:

Uninsured and Uncollateralized $ 1,940,946
Uninsured and Collateral Held by the Pledging Bank’s

Trust Department, Not in the Town’s Name 274,110

Total Amount Subject to Custodial Credit Risk $ 2,215,056

Cash Equivalents

At June 30, 2023, the Town’s cash equivalents amounted to $49,666,143. The following
table provides a summary of the Town’'s cash equivalents (excluding U.S. government
guaranteed obligations) as rated by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations.

Standard Fitch
& Poor's Ratings
State Short-Term Investment Fund (STIF) AAAM
Money Market Funds Not Rated

Investments
As of June 30, 2023, the Town had the following investments:

Maturity in Years

Fair Value Less Than 1 1-10 More Than 10
Interest-Bearing Investments:
Certificates of Deposit* $ 4958363 $ 1,265194 $ 3,693,169 $ -
U.S. Government Securities 11,509,597 10,947,009 472,484 90,104
U.S. Government Agencies 942,318 101,227 841,091 -
Total 17,410,278 $§ 12,313,430 $ 5,006,744 $ 90,104
Other Investments:
Mutual Funds 11,187,803
Total Investments $ 28,598,081

* Subject to coverage by Federal Depository Insurance and Collateralization.

Presented below is the rating of investments for each debt investment type:

U.S. U.S.
Government Government Certificates
Average Rating Securities Agencies of Deposit
Aaa $ 11,509,597 $ 942,318 $ -
Not Rated - - 4,958,363
Total $ 11,509,597 § 942,318 $ 4,958,363
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CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Investments (Continued)

The Town categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established
by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1
measurements); followed by quoted prices in inactive markets or for similar assets or with
observable inputs (Level 2 measurements); and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs
(Level 3 measurements). The Town has the following recurring fair value measurements as
of June 30, 2023:

Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Investments by Fair Value Level:
Mutual Funds $ 11,187,803 $ 11,187,803 $ - % -
U.S. Government Securities 11,509,597 11,509,597 - -
U.S. Government Agencies 942,318 - 942,318 -
Total $ 23,639,718 _§ 22,697,400 _$ 942,318  $ -

Mutual funds and U.S. Government Securities are classified in Level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy and are valued using prices quoted in active markets for those securities.

Interest Rate Risk

The Town, Pension and OPEB plans have a policy that limits investing in short-term
securities, money market funds, or similar investment pools, and limiting the average
maturity in the portfolio in accordance with this policy will minimize interest rate risk.

Credit Risk - Investments

The Town does not have an investment policy that would limit its investment choices due to
credit risk, other than State Statutes governing investments in obligations of any State or
political subdivision or in obligations of the State of Connecticut or political subdivision.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Town and pension plan do have a policy that limits that amounts invested in any one
issuer to no more than 15% from a specific issuer or business sector (except U.S.
Treasuries or Connecticut Short Term Investment Funds), which is to maintain a diversified
portfolio to minimize the risk of loss resulting from over-concentration of assets in a
specific issuer.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for an investment is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty (the institution that pledges collateral or repurchase agreement securities to the
Town or that sells investments to or buys them for the Town), the Town will not be able to
recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party. The Town does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. At June 30, 2023,
the Town did not have any uninsured and unregistered securities held by the counterparty,
or by its trust department or agent, that were not in the Town’s name.
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NOTE4 RECEIVABLES

Receivables as of year-end for the Town’s individual major funds and nonmaijor, internal
service and fiduciary funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for
uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Nonmajor
General Utility and Other
Fund Commission Funds Total
Receivables:
Leases $ 786,882 $ - $ 138,878 $ 925,760
Property Taxes 941,600 - - 941,600
Interest 391,661 - - 391,661
Accounts 118,683 1,571,628 13,268 1,703,579
Intergovernmental 43,268 - 391,748 435,016
Assessment Charges 16,848 - - 16,848
Gross Receivables 2,298,942 1,571,628 543,894 4,414,464
Less: Allowance for
Uncollectibles (56,660) - (3,193) (59,853)
Total Receivables, Net $ 2,242,282 $ 1,571,628 $ 540,701 $ 4,354,611

NOTE 5 LEASE RECEIVABLES

The Town, acting as lessor, leases real property under long-term, noncancelable lease
agreements. The leases expire at various dates through 2063 if all renewal options are
exercised. During the year ended June 30, 2023, the Town recognized $118,635 and
$19,169 in lease revenue and interest revenue, respectively, pursuant to these contracts.

Total future minimum lease payments to be received under lease agreements are
as follows:

Governmental Activities

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest
2024 $ 62,134 $ 13,101
2025 64,173 12,173
2026 66,275 11,214
2027 58,140 10,250
2028 31,994 9,659

2029-2033 175,031 40,549
2034-2038 34,206 33,157
3039-2043 47,943 30,150
2044-2048 64,499 26,031
2049-2053 84,373 20,577
2054-2058 108,144 13,522
2059-2063 128,848 4,575

Total $ 925,760 $ 224,958
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NOTE 6 CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2023 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Transfers Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land $ 9,008,096 $ - $ - 8 (15,000) $ 8,993,096
Permanent Easements 5,000 - - 15,000 20,000
Construction in Progress 1,998,142 114,063 - (1,886,843) 225,362
Total Capital Assets Not
Being Depreciated and Amortized 11,011,238 114,063 - (1,886,843) 9,238,458
Capital Assets Being Depreciated and Amortized:
Land Improvements 3,899,370 12,115 - - 3,911,485
Buildings and Improvements 253,406,796 3,027 (31,568) 8,450 253,386,705
Vehicles 16,378,616 364,562 (415,395) 105,524 16,433,307
Machinery and Equipment 15,948,426 662,459 (289,651) - 16,321,234
Right-to-Use Lease Machinery
and Equipment 280,635 9,522 - - 290,157
Infrastructure 105,032,398 1,485,781 (3,205,938) 1,772,869 105,085,110
Software 551,872 - - - 551,872
Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated and Amortized 395,498,113 2,537,466 (3,942,552) 1,886,843 395,979,870
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Land Improvements (1,981,037) (135,232) - - (2,116,269)
Buildings and Improvements (90,770,894) (5,767,253) 31,568 - (96,506,579)
Vehicles (11,365,519) (793,939) 415,395 - (11,744,063)
Machinery and Equipment (13,356,416) (563,158) 288,051 - (13,631,523)
Right-to-Use Lease Machinery
and Equipment (59,412) (74,162) - - (133,574)
Infrastructure (52,243,504) (1,745,600) 1,461,433 - (52,527,671)
Total Accumulated Amortization (476,392) (13,187) - - (489,579)
and Depreciation (170,253,174) (9,092,531) 2,196,447 - (177,149,258)
Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated and Amortized, Net 225,244,939 (6,555,065) (1,746,105) 1,886,843 218,830,612
Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, Net $ 236,256,177 _$ (6,441,002) _$ (1,746,105) _$ - _$ 228,069,070

Business-Type Activities:
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:

Land $ 127,970  $ -8 - $ - 8 127,970
Construction in Progress 495,337 - (329,255) (166,082) -
Total Capital Assets Not
Being Depreciated 623,307 - (329,255) (166,082) 127,970
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Buildings and Improvements 1,383,627 - - - 1,383,627
Vehicles 839,641 - - - 839,641
Machinery and Equipment 1,225,290 - - - 1,225,290
Infrastructure 96,140,143 241,374 - 166,082 96,547,599
Software 19,000 19,000 (19,000) - 19,000
Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 99,607,701 260,374 (19,000) 166,082 100,015,157
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings and Improvements (474,181) (34,591) - - (508,772)
Vehicles (608,179) (28,379) - - (636,558)
Machinery and Equipment (591,760) (88,898) - - (680,658)
Infrastructure (53,853,093) (1,506,381) - - (55,359,474)
Software (13,987) (1,267) 15,200 - (54)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (55,541,200) (1,659,516) 15,200 - (57,185,516)
Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated, Net 44,066,501 (1,399,142) (3,800) 166,082 42,829,641
Business-Type Activities
Capital Assets, Net § 44689.808 _$ (1,399.142) _$ (333,055) _$ $ 42957611

(52)



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 6 CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government
as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General Government $ 222,756
Public Safety 673,120
Public Works 2,531,950
Recreation 349,828
Library 21,670
Social Services 114,877
Education 5,178,330
Total Depreciation and Amortization Expense -
Governmental Activities $ 9,092,531

Business-Type Activities:
Utility Commission $ 1,659,516

Construction Commitments

The Town has active construction projects as of June 30, 2023. At year-end, the Town’s
commitments are as follows:

Remaining
Project Spent-to-Date Commitment
Department of Public Works $ 19,529,501 $ 2,394,345
Public Safety 49,702 24,100
Recreation 6,000 31,730
Board of Education 13,905 12,945
Total $ 19,599,108 $ 2,463,120

The commitments are being financed with General Fund and Capital Projects Fund
appropriations and state and federal grants and bonding.

NOTE 7 INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2023 is as follows:

Receivable Entity Payable Entity Amount

General Fund Waterford High School Building Project $ 2,942,807
General Fund Nonmajor Governmental Funds 138,322
General Fund Utility Commission 20,730
American Rescue Fund General Fund 4,587,611
Nonmajor Governmental Funds General Fund 2,101,460
Internal Service Fund General Fund 337,466

Total $ 10,128,396
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INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS (CONTINUED)

Interfund receivables and payables generally represent temporary balances arising from
reimbursement-type transactions.

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Transfers In

Capital and
Nonrecurring Nonmajor Total
General Expenditures Governmental Transfers
Fund Fund Funds Out
Transfers:
General Fund $ - $ 3803560 $ 3,653,361 $ 7,356,921
Capital and Nonrecurring
Expenditures Fund - - - -
Non Majors 175,240 25,000 - 200,240
Total Transfers In $ 175,240 _$§ 3,828,560 _$ 3,553,361 _$ 7,557,161

Interfund transfers arose from appropriating General Fund amounts to the Capital
Improvement and Capital Nonrecurring Funds and various nonmajor governmental funds.
There were also transfers out of the Capital Improvement fund of $174,973 into the General
fund for unused appropriations and one residual fund balance transfer for $267.

Capital asset contributions totaling $260,374 were made from governmental funds to
business type funds during the year ended June 30, 2023. This activity is included in
transfer in the government-wide activity in Exhibit Il of the accompanying financial
statements.

LONG-TERM DEBT

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2023 was as follows:
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Governmental Activities:
Bonds Payable:
General Obligation Bonds
Premium on Bonds
Total Bonds Payable

Leases Payable
Other Liabilities:
Net OPEB Liability
Landfill Postclosure Monitoring
Compensated Absences
Net Pension Liability
Prior Service Cost (MERS)
Total Other Liabilities

Total Governmental Activities
Long-Term Liabilities

Business-Type Activities:
Compensated Absences

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
$ 66,975,000 $ - 3 5,310,000 $ 61,665,000 $ 6,450,000
3,790,644 - 769,245 3,021,399 -
70,765,644 - 6,079,245 64,686,399 6,450,000
204,794 9,522 73,429 140,887 71,078
17,595,916 1,968,984 - 19,564,900 -
223,000 - 24,000 199,000 21,000
7,033,590 - 161,237 6,872,353 1,152,032
20,396,063 16,763,324 - 37,159,387 -
536 - 536 - -
45,249,105 18,732,308 185,773 63,795,640 1,173,032
$ 116,219543 _$ 18,741,830 _$ 6,338,447 _$ 128,622,926  _$ 7,694,110
$ 430,520  _$ -3 67,012 _$ 363,508 _$ 36,092
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NOTE8 LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

Compensated absences, net pension liability and net OPEB liability are generally liquidated
by the General Fund.

General Obligation Bonds

The Town issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and
construction of major capital facilities.

General obligation bonds are direct obligations of the Town for which full faith and credit are
pledged and are payable from taxes levied on all taxable properties located within the Town.
The Town is liable for all outstanding bonds. General obligation bonds currently outstanding

are as follows:

Maturity Original Date of Date of Interest Balance
Description Ranges Amount Issue Maturity Rate June 30, 2023
Governmental Activities:
Schools:

Clark Lane School $800,000 - $850,000 $ 9,440,000 12/29/2014  8/15/2026 3.0%-5.0% $ 3,345,000
Great Neck Elementary $655,000 - $960,000 9,085,000 12/18/2019 8/1/2030  4.0% - 5.0% 7,015,000
School Issue of 2017 $185,000 - $2,830,000 14,585,000 6/21/2017  6/30/2031 2.0% - 5.0% 11,310,000
Municipal Complex $680,000 - $685,000 13,655,000 7/23/2020  9/15/2040 2.0% - 5.0% 12,285,000
School Refunding $905,000 - $3,195,000 28,890,000 12/30/2020  8/15/2033  0.3% - 2.0% 27,710,000
Total $ 61,665,000

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest
2024 $ 6,450,000 $ 1,698,250
2025 6,595,000 1,514,750
2026 6,645,000 1,319,500
2027 6,395,000 1,083,425
2028 5,545,000 829,375
2029-2033 23,690,000 1,866,249
2034-2038 4,305,000 399,399
2039-2043 2,040,000 65,025
Total $ 61,665,000 $ 8,775,973

Leases

The Town leases equipment as well as certain operating and office facilities for various
terms under long-term, noncancelable lease agreements. The leases expire at various dates

through 2026.
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Leases (Continued)
Total future minimum lease payments under lease agreements are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest
2024 $ 71,078 $ 1,779
2025 58,167 713
2026 9,754 133
2027 1,888 22
Total $ 140,887 $ 2,647

Landfill Post-Closure Care Costs

Effective January 1, 2002, the Town’s Miner Lane landfill was closed. The cost of the
ongoing maintenance of the cap and the Department of Energy and Environmental
Protection requirement for water quality testing over a 30-year period is estimated to be
approximately $21,000 a year. Accordingly, the Town has recorded a liability in the
government-wide financial statements of $199,000.

Authorized But Unissued

The total of authorized but unissued bonds at June 30, 2023 is approximately $8,592,000. In
most cases, interim financing is obtained through bond anticipation notes or other short-term
borrowings until the issuance of long-term debt.

Debt Limitation

The Town’s indebtedness does not exceed the legal debt limitations as required by the
Connecticut General Statutes as reflected in the following schedule (in thousands):

Debt
Category Limit Indebtedness Balance
General Purpose $ 211,363 $ 13,630 $ 197,733
Schools 422,726 56,627 366,099
Sewers 352,271 - 352,271
Urban Renewal 305,302 - 305,302
Pension Deficit 281,817 - 281,817
Total $ 1,573,479 $ 70,257 $ 1,503,222

The total overall statutory debt limit for the Town is equal to seven times annual receipts
from taxation, or $657,560,505.
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NOTE9 FUND BALANCE

The components of fund balance for the governmental funds as of June 30, 2023 are

as follows:
Capital and Waterford
Nonrecurring High School Nonmajor
General Expenditures Building Governmental
Fund Fund Project Funds Total
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable:
Inventory $ - $ - $ - $ 19,081  $ 19,081
Prepaid Expenditures 17,213 - - - 17,213
Nonspendable Trust - - - 119,247 119,247
Restricted for:
General Government - - - 67,204 67,204
Public Safety - - - 44,156 44,156
Public Works - - - 776,789 776,789
Recreation - - - 78,443 78,443
Social Services - - - 252,500 252,500
Education - - - 864,600 864,600
Committed to:
Recreation - - - 25,151 25,151
Public Works - - - 661,573 661,573
Other Capital Projects - 10,252,907 - 7,649,195 17,902,102
Education - - - 411,183 411,183
Assigned to:
General Government 72,734 - - - 72,734
Public Safety 35,361 - - - 35,361
Public Works - - - - -
Recreation 2,970 - - - 2,970
Education 253,998 - - - 253,998
Unassigned 26,086,355 - (2,941,577) (98,302) 23,046,476
Total Fund Balances $ 26,468,631 $ 10,252,907 $ (2,941,577) $ 10,870,820 $ 44,650,781

As discussed in Note 2.A., budgetary information, under budgetary basis of accounting
encumbrance accounting, is utilized to the extent necessary to assure effective budgetary
control and accountability and to facilitate effective cash planning and control. As of
June 30, 2023, the amount of General Fund encumbrances expected to be honored upon
performance by the vendor in the next year totaled $234,415.
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NOTE 10 TAX ABATEMENTS

NOTE 11

As of June 30, 2023, the Town provides tax abatements through the following program:

he AHEPA 250-II Inc. (AHEPA) tax abatement agreement provides a real property tax
abatement on certain property within the Town for the purpose of providing housing to the
low or moderate-income elderly and handicapped, as allowed under Chapter 133 of the
Connecticut General Statutes Section 8-215 and 8-216. Eligibility for the abatement is
predicated on AHEPA limiting occupancy in the premises to those meeting the criteria for
low or moderate-income elderly and handicapped individuals in addition to maintaining a
contracted standard of housing for the property. The agreement allows for an abatement
over a ten-year period to end on June 27, 2034, if not extended, and is determined by the
percentage of the annual Town levy that is expended for education. For the year ended
June 30, 2023, taxes abated through this agreement totaled $25,336. There are no
provisions to recapture abated taxes under this program. No other commitments have been
made by the Town to the abatement recipient under this agreement.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSION PLANS

Pension Trust Fund
A. Plan Description

The Town maintains a single employer defined benefit pension plan (the Plan). The Plan
was established and is administered by the Town. The Plan covers employees who
retired or terminated in a vested status prior to State of Connecticut Municipal
Employees’ Retirement System (MERS) participation. There are no contributions
required from the members. The Town is required to contribute the amounts necessary
to finance the benefits for the participants in this Plan. The Plan is considered to be part
of the Town’s financial reporting entity and is included in the Town’s financial reports as
a Pension Trust Fund. The Plan does not issue a separate stand-alone financial report.

The Plan provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members and their
beneficiaries. The Plan is closed to new members. All eligible full-time employees have
the option of enrolling in the MERS plan.

B. Benefit Provisions

Members who retired at normal retirement date (age 62 and 15 years of service) receive
benefits equal to 1.5% of final average earnings (the average of the highest five years
within the last 10 years) per year of service, limited to 30 years. Members who retired at
service retirement date (age 50 and 25 years of service) receive benefits equal to 2% of
final average earnings per year of service, limited to 30 years, until age 62. Members
who retired at early retirement date (age 57 and 15 years of service) could elect to
receive benefits accrued to that date, reduced by .4167% for each month prior to normal
retirement date, or to defer benefits until normal retirement date with no reduction.
Benefit provisions are established and can be amended by the Representative
Town Meeting.
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NOTE 11 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Pension Trust Fund (Continued)
C. Plan Administration

The general administration and management of the pension plan and the responsibility
for carrying out the provision of the plan shall be placed with the Retirement

Commission. The Retirement Commission is made up as follows:

¢ A member of the Board of Police Commissioners to be appointed by the Board of

Police Commissioners, annually;

o A member of the Board of Selectmen to be appointed by the Board of Selectmen,

annually;

e A member of the Board of Education to be appointed by the Board of Education,

annually;

o A member of the Board of Finance to be appointed by the Board of Finance,
biennially, for a two-year term, subsequent to December 1 but no later than

December 31 of each odd-numbered year;

o Two members of the Representative Town Meeting to be appointed by the
Representative Town Meeting biennially, for a two-year term at the regularly

scheduled December meeting of each odd-numbered year; and

e A member of the fire service to be appointed by the Director of Fire Services,

annually.

Plan membership consisted of the following at July 1, 2021, the date of the latest

actuarial valuation:

Retirees, Disabled Employees, and Beneficiaries
Currently Receiving Benefits 7
Terminated Plan Members Entitled to Benefits But
Not Yet Receiving Them -
Active Members -
Total 7

D. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

The Plan’s financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Plan
member and employer contributions are recognized as revenues when due in
accordance with the terms of the Plan. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due
and payable in accordance with the terms of the Plan. Administrative costs are paid from

pension fund resources.
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NOTE 11 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Pension Trust Fund (Continued)
D. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Method Used to Value Investments

Investments are reported at fair value. Securities traded on a national exchange are
valued at the last reported sales price. Investment income is recognized as earned.

Funding Policy

There are no active employees of the Plan. Contributions required for the year ended
June 30, 2023, were $27,280, with contributions of $27,280 made by the Town. Excess
assets in the Plan may be used to fund past service costs for employees who transferred

to MERS.
E. Investments

Investment Policy

The Plan’s policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be

amended.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined
using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real
rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation)
are developed for each major asset class. Best estimates of the real rates of return for
each major asset class are included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of

June 30, 2023, and are summarized in the following table.

The following was the Retirement Commission’s adopted asset allocation policy and the

long-term expected real rate of return as of June 30, 2023:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return

US Bonds 30.00 % 1.10 %
US Bonds - Dynamic 16.50 1.10
Global Bonds 3.50 0.70
Large Cap Domestic Equity 20.63 4.50
Small Cap Domestic Equity 6.88 4.80
Developed International Equity 16.88 7.30
Emerging International Equity 5.63 8.60

Total 100.00 %

Rate of Return

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the annual money-weighted rate of return on pension
plan investments, net of pension plan investment expense, was 10.28%. The money-
weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense,

adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.
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NOTE 11 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Pension Trust Fund (Continued)
F. Net Pension Liability of the Town

The components of the net pension liability of the Town at June 30, 2023 were

as follows:

Total Pension Liability $ 717,948

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 509,459
Net Pension Liability $ 208,489

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the
Total Pension Liability 70.96 %

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2021
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the

measurement:

Cost-of-Living Adjustments 2.40% (Prior 2.60%)

Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal

Investment Rate of Return 6.25%, Compounded Annually

Plan mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Amount-
Weighted Mortality Tables (with separate tables for General Employees, Public Safety
and Teachers), projected to the valuation date with Scale MP-2021 (Prior Scale
MP-2019).

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.25%. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that Town contributions
will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution
rates and the member rate. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments
of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine
the total pension liability.
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NOTE 11 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Pension Trust Fund (Continued)
G. Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability
(@) (b) (a)-(b)
Balances - July 1, 2022 $ 746,333 $ 522,836 $ 223,497
Changes for the Year:
Service Cost - - -
Interest on Total Pension Liability 43,846 - 43,846
Differences Between Expected and
Actual Experience 18,735 - 18,735
Changes in Assumptions - - -
Employer Contributions - 27,280 (27,280)
Member Contributions - - -
Net Investment Income - 52,142 (52,142)
Benefit Payments, Including Refund
to Employee Contributions (90,966) (90,966) -
Administrative Expenses - (1,833) 1,833
Net Changes (28,385) (13,377) (15,008)
Balances - June 30, 2023 $ 717,948 $ 509,459 $ 208,489

H. Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the Town, calculated using the current
discount rate, as well as what the Town’s net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point
higher than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(5.25%) (6.25%) (7.25%)
Net Pension Liability $ 259,210 $ 208,489 $ 161,476
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NOTE 11 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Pension Trust Fund (Continued)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the Town recognized pension expense of $42,869. At
June 30, 2023, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pension from the following sources:

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual
Earning on Pension Plan Investments $ 37,528

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pension will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Governmental
Year Ending June 30, Activities
2024 $ 8,346
2025 8,301
2026 25,163
2027 (4,282)
Total $ 37,528
Schedule of Plan Net Position
Pension
Trust Fund
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 6,676
Investments:
Mutual Funds 503,669
Receivables:
Accrued Interest and Dividends 256
Total Assets 510,601
LIABILITIES
Accounts and Other Payables 1,142
NET POSITION
Restricted for Pension Benefits $ 509,459
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NOTE 11 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Pension Trust Fund (Continued)
K. Schedule of Changes in Plan Net

Pension
Trust Fund
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employer $ 27,280
Investment Income:
Net Appreciation in Fair Value of Investments 52,142
Total Additions 79,422
DEDUCTIONS
Benefit Payments 90,966
Administration 1,833
Total Deductions 92,799
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (13,377)
Net Position - Beginning of Year 522,836
NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ 509,459

Municipal Employees’ Retirement System
A. Plan Description

Certain employees of the Town of Waterford, Connecticut, and Waterford Public Schools
participate in the Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (MERS). MERS is a cost-
sharing multiemployer public employee retirement system established by the state of
Connecticut and administered by the State Retirement Commission to provide pension
benefits to employees of participating municipalities. Chapters 7-425 to 7-451 of the
State of Connecticut General Statutes, which can be amended by legislative action,
establishes MERS benefits, member contribution rates, and other plan provisions.
MERS is considered to be part of the state of Connecticut’s financial reporting entity and
is included in the state’s financial reports as a pension trust fund. Those reports can be
obtained at www.ct.gov.
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NOTE 11 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (Continued)
B. Benefit Provisions

The plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits and annual cost-of-living
adjustments to plan members and their beneficiaries. Employees are eligible to retire at
age 55 with five years of continuous active service, or 15 years of active noncontinuous
aggregate service. In addition, compulsory retirement is at age 65 for police and fire
members. Employees under the age of 55 are eligible to retire with 25 years of service.

Normal Retirement

For members not covered by social security, retirement benefits are calculated as 2% of
the average of the three highest paid years of service times the years of service. For
members covered by social security, retirement benefits are calculated as 1-1/2% of the
average of the three highest paid years of service not in excess of the year’s breakpoint
plus 2% of average of the three highest paid years of service in excess of the year’s
breakpoint, times years of service. The year’s breakpoint is defined as $10,700
increased by 6.0% each year after 1982, rounded to the nearest multiple of $100.
Maximum benefit is 100% of average final compensation and the minimum benefit is

$1,000 annually.

If any member covered by social security retires before age 62, the member’s benefit
until the member reaches age 62, or a social security disability award is received, is

computed as if the member is not under social security.

Early Retirement

Members must have five years of continuous or 15 years of active aggregate service.
Benefits are calculated as a service retirement allowance on the basis of the average of
the three highest paid years of service to the date of termination. Deferred to normal
retirement age, or an actuarially reduced allowance may begin at the time of separation.

Disability Retirement - Service Connected

This applies to employees who are totally and permanently disabled, and such disability
has arisen out of and in the course of employment with the municipality. Disability due to
heart and hypertension in the case of fire and police, who began employment prior to
July 1, 1996, is presumed to have been suffered in the line of duty. Benefits are
calculated as a service retirement allowance based on compensation and service to the
date of the disability with a minimum benefit (including worker's compensation benefits)

of 50% of compensation at the time of disability.
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NOTE 11 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (Continued)
B. Benefit Provisions (Continued)

Disability Retirement - Nonservice Connected

Employees who have 10 years of service and are totally and permanently disabled.
Benefits are calculated as a service retirement allowance based on compensation and
service to the date of the disability.

Pre-Retirement Death Benefit

The plan offers a lump-sum return of contributions with interest or if vested and married,
the surviving spouse will receive a lifetime benefit.

C. Contributions

Member

Contributions for members not covered by social security are 5% of compensation; for
members covered by social security, 3.75% of compensation up to the social security
taxable wage base plus 6.5%, if any, in excess of such base.

Employer

Participating employers make annual contributions consisting of a normal cost
contribution, a contribution for the amortization of the net unfunded accrued liability, and
a prior service amortization payment, which covers the liabilities of MERS not met by
member contributions. In addition, there is also an annual administrative fee per active
and retired member.

D. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2023, the Town reports a total liability of $36,950,898 for its proportionate
share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured at June 30,
2022, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021. The actuarial assumptions
used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on results of an actuarial experience
study for the period July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2017. The Town’s proportion of the
net pension liability was based on a projection of the Town’s long-term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participants,
actuarially determined. At June 30, 2023, the Town’s proportion was 2.69%. The
decrease in proportion from the prior year is 0.15%.
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NOTE 11 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (Continued)

D. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the Town recognized pension expense of
$7,315,544. At June 30, 2023, the Town reported deferred inflow of resources and
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension from
the following sources:

Governmental Activities

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences Between Expected and

Actual Experience $ 3,671,607 $ 1,405,416
Changes of Assumptions - -
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual

Earning on Pension Plan Investments 5,380,193 -
Change in Employer Proportional Share 906,874 2,194,932
Contributions After the Measurement Date 4,386,351 -

Total $ 14,345,025 $ 3,600,348

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to Town contributions after
the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
subsequent year.

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pension,
excluding Town contributions after the measurement date, will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:

Governmental
Year Ending June 30, Activities
2024 $ 993,503
2025 1,197,398
2026 825,768
2027 3,341,657
Total $ 6,358,326
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NOTE 11 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (Continued)
E. Payable to MERS

The Town has recorded $-0- as a long-term liability to MERS at June 30, 2023. This
amount represents prior services cost calculated when the Town entered the Plan. This
amount will be paid in annual installments. The current year amount paid was $536.

F. Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021,

using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement period:

Inflation 2.50%
Salary Increase 3.50%-10.00%, Including Inflation
Investment Rate of Return 7.00%, Net of Pension Plan Investment

Expense, Including Inflation
Mortality rates were based on:
e RP-2014 Combined Mortality Table adjusted to 2006 and projected to 2015 with

Scale MP-2017 and projected to 2022 with Scale BB for General Employees.

o RP-2014 Blue Collar Mortality Table adjusted to 2006 and projected to 2015 with
Scale MP-2017 and projected to 2022 with Scale BB for Police and Fire.

e For disabled retirees, the RP-2014 Disabled Mortality Table projected with Scale BB
to 2020 was used.

Future cost-of-living adjustments for members who retire on or after January 1, 2002,
are 60% of the annual increase in the CPI up to 6%. The minimum annual COLA is
2.5%; the maximum is 6%.
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Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (Continued)
F. Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined
using a statistical analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of
return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-
term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of
arithmetic real rates of return for each major class are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Global Equity 37.00 %
Public Credit 2.00
Core Fixed Income Fund 13.00
Liquidity Fund 1.00
Risk Mitigation 5.00
Private Equity Fund 15.00
Private Credit 10.00
Real Estate Fund 10.00
Infra. & Natural Resources 7.00
Total 100.00 %

G. Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00%. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer
contributions will be made at the actuarially determined contribution rates in the future
years. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total

pension liability.

(70)



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 11 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (Continued)
H. Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the Town’s proportionate share of the net pension liability,
calculated using the current discount rate, as well as what the Town’s proportionate
share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that
is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)
Town’s Proportionate Share of
the Net Pension Liability $ 51,094,285 $ 36,950,898 $ 25,088,798

Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement System — Pension
A. Plan Description

Teachers, principals, superintendents, or supervisors engaged in service of public
schools are provided with pensions through the Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement
System, a cost-sharing, multiemployer defined benefit pension plan administered by the
Teachers Retirement Board. Chapter 167a of the State Statutes grants authority to
establish and amend the benefit terms to the Teachers Retirement Board. The Teachers
Retirement Board issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at

www.ct.gov.
B. Benefit Provisions

The plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Employees are eligible to
retire at age 60 with 20 years of credited service in Connecticut, or 35 years of credited
service including at least 25 years of service in Connecticut.

Normal Retirement

Retirement benefits for employees are calculated as 2% of the average annual salary
times the years of credited service (maximum benefit is 75% of average annual salary
during the three years of highest salary).

Early Retirement

Employees are eligible after 25 years of credited service including 20 years of
Connecticut service, or age 55 with 20 years of credited service including 15 years of
Connecticut service with reduced benefit amounts.
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Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement System — Pension (Continued)
B. Benefit Provisions (Continued)

Disability Retirement

Employees are eligible for service-related disability benefits regardless of length of
service. Five years of credited service is required for nonservice-related disability
eligibility. Disability benefits are calculated as 2% of average annual salary times
credited service to date of disability, but not less than 15% of average annual salary, nor

more than 50% of average annual salary.

C. Contributions

Per Connecticut General Statutes Section 10-183z (which reflects Public Act 79-436 as
amended), contribution requirements of active employees and the state of Connecticut
are approved, amended, and certified by the State Teachers Retirement Board and

appropriated by the General Assembly.

Employer (School Districts)
School District employers are not required to make contributions to the plan.

The statutes require the state of Connecticut to contribute 100% of each school districts’
required contributions, which are actuarially determined as an amount that, when
combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of the benefits
earned by employees during the year, with any additional amount to finance any

unfunded accrued liability.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the amount of “on-behalf’ contributions made by the
state was $7,803,575 and is recognized in the General Fund as intergovernmental

revenues and education expenditures.

Employees

Effective July 1, 1992, each teacher is required to contribute 6% of salary for the pension

benefit.

Effective January 1, 2018, the required contribution increased to 7% of pensionable

salary.
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NOTE 11 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement System — Pension (Continued)

D. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and

Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2023, the Town reports no amounts for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability, and related deferred outflows and inflows, due to the statutory
requirement that the State pay 100% of the required contribution. The amount
recognized by the Town as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related
state support, and the total portion of the net pension liability that was associated with

the Town were as follows:

Town’s Proportionate Share of the Net

Pension Liability $ -
State’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension

Liability Associated With the Town 98,976,445

Total $ 98,976,445

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2022. At June 30, 2023, the Town has no proportionate share of

the net pension liability.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the Town recognized pension expense and revenue

of $9,566,184 in Exhibit II.

E. Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020,
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the

measurement:

Inflation 2.50%

Salary Increase 3.00%-6.50%, Including Inflation
Investment Rate of Return 6.90%, Net of Pension Plan Investment

Expense, Including Inflation

Mortality rates were based on the PubT-2010 Healthy Retiree Table (adjusted 105% for
males and 103% for females at ages 82 and above), projected generationally with MP-

2019 for the period after service retirement.
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Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement System — Pension (Continued)
E. Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2022 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the five-year period ending June 30, 2019.

Assumption changes since the prior year are as follows:

e There were no changes in assumptions that affected the measurement of the TPL

since the prior measurement date.

Benefit changes since the prior year are as follows:

e Legislation was passed restoring the 25% wear down of Plan N benefits to vested

members as of June 30, 2019.

Cost-of-Living Allowance

For teachers who retired prior to September 1, 1992, pension benefit adjustments are
made in accordance with increases in the Consumer Price Index, with a minimum of 3%

and a maximum of 5% per annum.

For teachers who were members of the Teachers’ Retirement System before July 1,
2007, and retire on or after September 1, 1992, pension benefit adjustments are made
that are consistent with those provided for Social Security benefits on January 1 of the
year granted, with a maximum of 6% per annum. If the return on assets in the previous

year was less than 8.5%, the maximum increase is 1.5%.

For teachers who were members of the Teachers’ Retirement System after July 1, 2007,
pension benefit adjustments are made that are consistent with those provided for Social
Security benefits on January 1 of the year granted, with a maximum of 5% per annum. If
the return on assets in the previous year was less than 11.5%, the maximum increase is
3%, and if the return on the assets in the previous year was less than 8.5%, the

maximum increase is 1.0%.
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Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement System — Pension (Continued)
E. Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined
using a log-normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future
real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The
current capital market assumptions and the target asset allocation as provided by the

State of Connecticut Treasurer’s Office are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return

Domestic Equity Fund 20.00 % 5.40 %
Developed Market International Stock Fund 11.00 6.40
Emerging Market International Stock Fund 9.00 8.60
Core Fixed Income Fund 13.00 0.80
Emerging Market Debt Fund 5.00 3.80
High Yield Bond Fund 3.00 3.40
Real Estate Fund 19.00 5.20
Private Equity Fund 10.00 9.40
Private Credit 5.00 6.50
Alternative Investments 3.00 3.10
Liquidity Fund 2.00 (0.40)

Total 100.00 %

F. Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90%. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that State contributions will
be made at the actuarially determined contribution rates in the future years. Based on
those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total

pension liability.
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Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement System — Pension (Continued)

G. Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The Town’s proportionate share of the net pension liability is $-0- and, therefore, the
change in the discount rate would only impact the amount recorded by the state of

Connecticut.

H. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the

separately issued financial statements available at www.ct.gov.

I. Other Information

Additional information is included in the required supplementary information section of
the financial statements. A schedule of contributions is not presented as the Town has

no obligation to contribute to the plan.

J. Aggregated Pension Information

The Town recognized the following amounts related to pension plans as of and for the

year ended June 30, 2023:

Town State
Pension MERS Teachers Total
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Related to Pensions $ 37,5628 $ 14,345,025 $ - $ 14,382,553
Net Pension Liability 208,489 36,950,898 - 37,159,387
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions - 3,600,348 - 3,600,348
Pension Expense 42,869 7,315,544 9,566,184 16,924,597
Total $ 288,886 $ 62,211,815 $ 9,566,184 $ 72,066,885

NOTE 12 OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Town Post-Retirement Healthcare Plan
A. Plan Description

The Town administers one single employer, post-retirement healthcare plan (OPEB
Plan) for the Town, Police, Fire, and Board of Education employee. The OPEB plan is
considered to be part of the Town’s financial reporting entity and is included in the
Town’s financial report as the OPEB Trust fund. The Town does not issue a separate

stand-alone financial statement for this program.
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Town Post-Retirement Healthcare Plan (Continued)
A. Plan Description (Continued)

The Town plan provides for medical, dental, and life insurance benefits for all eligible
Town, Police, Fire, and Board of Education retirees and their spouses. Benefits and
contributions are established by contract and may be amended by union negotiations.
Administration costs are financed from investment earnings.

B. Funding Policy

The contribution requirements of plan members and the Town are established and may
be amended by the Town. The Town currently funds on the “pay-as-you-go” basis. The
Town’s contributions are actuarially determined on an annual basis using the projected
unit cost method. The Town’s total plan contribution was $1,618,816. There are no
employee contributions.

At July 1, 2022, plan membership consisted of the following:

Active Employees 368
Retired Employees 118
Total 486

C. Investments

Investment Policy

The OPEB Plan’s policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and
may be amended by the Board. Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with a
long-term objective of achieving and maintaining a fully funded status for the benefits
provided through the OPEB Plan.

Rate of Return

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the annual money-weighted rate of return on
investments, net of investment expense, was 10.10%. The money-weighted rate of
return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the
changing amounts actually invested.
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Town Post-Retirement Healthcare Plan (Continued)
D. Net OPEB Liability of the Town

The components of the net OPEB liability of the Town at June 30, 2023 were as follows:

Total OPEB Liability $ 30,109,553
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 10,544,654
Net OPEB Liability $ 19,564,899

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage
of the Total OPEB Liability 35.02%

E. Actuarial Assumptions
The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2022,

rolled forward to June 30, 2023, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all
periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Inflation 2.40%
Salary Increases 2.40%, Average, Including Inflation
Investment Rate of Return 6.50%), Net of OPEB Plan Investment

Expense, Including Inflation
Healthcare Cost Trend Rates
Medical 6.50% Decreasing 0.20% per Year
to an Ultimate Rate of 4.40% for
2033 and Later Years
Dental 4.00% per Year

Mortality rates were based on the Pub - 2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Tables
with separate tables for General employees, Public Safety employees and Teachers and
for nonannuitants and annuitants, projected to the valuation date with Scale MP-2021.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2022 valuation were based on standard
tables modified for certain plan features such as eligibility for full and early retirement
where applicable and input from the plan sponsor. A full actuarial experience study has
not been completed.
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Town Post-Retirement Healthcare Plan (Continued)
E. Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined by
adding expected inflation to expected long-term real returns and reflecting expected
volatility and correlation. Best estimates of the real rates of returns for each major asset
class are include in the OPEB Plan’s target asset allocation. Best estimates of arithmetic
real rates of return for each major asset as of June 30, 2023, are summarized in the
following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return

Core Fixed Income 16.00 % 1.10 %
Dynamic Bonds 12.00 1.10
Global Bonds 2.00 0.70
US Large Cap 32.25 4.50
US Small Cap 5.75 4.80
International Equity Developed 21.00 7.30
Emerging Markets 6.00 8.60
Broad Real Assets 5.00 3.40

Total 100.00 %

F. Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6.50%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that Town contributions will be
made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those
assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods
of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability.

G. Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Town, as well as what the Town’s

net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is
1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current discount rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(5.50%) (6.50%) (7.50%)
Net OPEB Liability $ 22,620,489 $ 19,564,899 $ 16,921,406
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Town Post-Retirement Healthcare Plan (Continued)

H. Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost

Trend Rates

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Town, as well as what the Town’s
net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are
1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost

trend rates:

Net OPEB Liability

Current Health

1% Decrease Care Trend Rate 1% Increase

I. Changes in the Net OPEB Liability

Balances - July 1, 2022
Changes for the Year:
Service Cost
Interest on Total OPEB Liability
Differences Between Expected
and Actual Experience
Changes in Assumptions
Employer Contributions
Net Investment Income
Benefit Payments, Including Refund
to Employee Contributions
Administrative Expenses
Net Changes

Balances - June 30, 2023
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(5.50% (6.50% (7.50%
Decreasing Decreasing Decreasing
to 3.40%) to 4.40%) to 5.40%)

$ 16,951,389 $ 19,564,899 $ 22,604,870
Increase (Decrease)
Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b) (a)-(b)
$ 26,048,033 $ 8,452,117 $ 17,595,916
308,850 - 308,850
1,697,986 - 1,697,986
1,476,855 - 1,476,855
1,053,334 - 1,053,334
- 1,618,816 (1,618,816)
- 959,995 (959,995)
(475,505) (475,505) -
- (10,769) 10,769

4,061,520 2,092,537 1,968,983

$ 30,109,553 $ 10,544,654 $ 19,564,899
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NOTE 12 OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Town Post-Retirement Healthcare Plan (Continued)
J. OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflow/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the Town recognized OPEB expense of $1,215,654.
At June 30, 2023, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences Between Expected and
Actual Experience $ 1,928,880 $ 1,877,740
Changes of Assumptions 964,580 488,897
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual
Earning on OPEB Plan Investments 321,439 -
Total $ 3,214,899 $ 2,366,637

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Governmental
Year Ending June 30, Activities
2024 $ 7,183
2025 (5,878)
2026 276,489
2027 (114,123)
2028 (39,442)
Thereafter 724,033

Total $ 848,262
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NOTE 12 OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Town Post-Retirement Healthcare Plan (Continued)
K. Schedule of Plan Net Position

OPEB
Trust Fund
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 15,804
Investments:
Mutual Funds 10,542,080
Receivables:
Accrued Interest and Dividends 3,214
Total Assets 10,561,098
LIABILITIES
Accounts and Other Payables 16,444
NET POSITION
Restricted for OPEB Benefits $ 10,544,654
L. Schedule of Changes in Plan Net Position
OPEB
Trust Fund
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employer $ 1,618,816
Investment Income:
Net Depreciation in Fair Value of Investments 959,995
Total Additions 2,578,811
DEDUCTIONS
Benefit Payments 475,505
Administration 10,769
Total Deductions 486,274
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 2,092,537
Net Position - Beginning of Year 8,452,117
NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ 10,544,654
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Other Post-Employment Benefits - Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement Plan
A. Plan Description

Teachers, principals, superintendents, or supervisors engaged in service of public
schools plus professional employees at State Schools of higher education are eligible to
participate in the Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement System Retiree Health
Insurance Plan (TRS-RHIP), a cost-sharing, multiemployer defined benefit other post-
employment benefit plan administered by the Teachers’ Retirement Board (TRB), if they
choose to be covered.

Chapter 167a of the State Statutes grants authority to establish and amend the benefit
terms to the TRB. TRS-RHIP issues a publicly available financial report that can be
obtained at www.ct.gov/trb.

B. Benefit Provisions

There are two types of the healthcare benefits offered through the system. Subsidized
Local School District Coverage provides a subsidy paid to members still receiving
coverage through their former employer and the CTRB Sponsored Medicare
Supplement Plans provide coverage for those participating in Medicare but not receiving
Subsidized Local School District Coverage.

Any member who is not currently participating in Medicare Parts A & B is eligible to
continue healthcare coverage with their former employer. A subsidy of up to $220 per
month for a retired member plus an additional $220 per month for a spouse enrolled in a
local school district plan is provided to the school district to first offset the retiree’s share
of the cost of coverage, and any remaining portion is used to offset the district’'s cost.
The subsidy amount is set by statute. A subsidy amount of $440 per month may be paid
for a retired member, spouse, or the surviving spouse of a member who has attained the
normal retirement age to participate in Medicare, is not eligible for Part A of Medicare
without cost and contributes at least $440 per month towards coverage under a local
school district plan.

Any member who is currently participating in Medicare Parts A & B is eligible to either
continue healthcare coverage with their former employer, if offered, or enroll in the plan
sponsored by the System. If they elect to remain in the plan with their former employer,
the same subsidies as above will be paid to offset the cost of coverage.

If a member participating in Medicare Parts A & B so elects, they may enroll in one of the
CTRB Sponsored Medicare Supplement Plans. Effective July 1, 2018, the System
added a Medicare Advantage Plan option. Active members, retirees, and the state pay
equally toward the cost of the basic coverage (medical and prescription drug benefits)
under the Medicare Advantage Plan. Retired members who choose to enroll in the
Medicare Supplement Plan are responsible for the full difference in the premium cost
between the two plans. Additionally, effective July 1, 2018, retired members who cancel
their healthcare coverage or elect to not enroll in a CTRB sponsored healthcare
coverage option must wait two years to re-enroll.
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NOTE 12 OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Other Post-Employment Benefits - Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement Plan
(Continued)

B. Benefit Provisions (Continued)

Survivor Healthcare Coverage

Survivors of former employees or retirees remain eligible to participate in the plan and
continue to be eligible to receive either the $220 monthly subsidy or participate in the
TRB-Sponsored Medicare Supplement Plans, as long as they do not remarry.

C. Eligibility

Any member who is currently receiving a retirement or disability benefit is eligible to
participate in the plan.

Credited Service

One month for each month of service as a teacher in Connecticut public schools,
maximum 10 months for each school year. Ten months of credited service constitutes
one year of Credited Service. Certain other types of teaching services, State
employment, or wartime military service may be purchased prior to retirement if the
member pays one-half the cost.

Normal Retirement

Age 60 with 20 years of Credited Service in Connecticut, or 35 years of Credited Service
including at least 25 years of service in Connecticut.

Early Retirement

Age 55 with 20 years of Credited Service including 15 years of Connecticut service, or
25 years of Credited Service including 20 years of Connecticut service.

Pro ratable Retirement
Age 60 with 10 years of Credited Service.

Disability Retirement

No service requirement if incurred in the performance of duty, and five years of Credited
Service in Connecticut if not incurred in the performance of duty.

Termination of Employment
Ten or more years of Credited Service.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 12 OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Other Post-Employment Benefits - Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement Plan
(Continued)

D. Contributions

State of Connecticut

Per Connecticut General Statutes Section 10-183z, contribution requirements of active
employees and the state of Connecticut are approved, amended, and certified by the
State Teachers’ Retirement Board and appropriated by the General Assembly. The state
appropriates from the General Fund one third of the annual costs of the Plan.
Administrative costs of the Plan are financed by the state. Based upon Chapter 1673,
Subsection D of Section 10-183t of the Connecticut statutes, it is assumed the state will
pay for any long-term shortfall arising from insufficient active member contributions.

Employer (School Districts)
School District employers are not required to make contributions to the plan.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the amount of “on-behalf’ contributions made by the
state was $110,373 and is recognized in the General Fund as intergovernmental
revenues and education expenditures.

Employees/Retirees

The cost of providing plan benefits is financed on a pay-as-you-go basis as follows:
active teachers’ pay for one-third of the Plan costs through a contribution of 1.25% of
their pensionable salaries, and retired teachers pay for one-third of the Plan costs
through monthly premiums, which helps reduce the cost of health insurance for eligible
retired members and dependents.

E. OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

At June 30, 2023, the Town reports no amounts for its proportionate share of the net
OPEB liability, and related deferred outflows and inflows, due to the statutory
requirement that the state pay 100% of the required contribution. The amount
recognized by the Town as its proportionate share of the net OPEB liability, the related
state support and the total portion of the net OPEB liability that was associated with the
Town was as follows:

Town’s Proportionate Share of the Net

OPEB Liability $ -
State’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB

Liability Associated With the Town 8,668,066

Total $ 8,668,066
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 12 OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Other Post-Employment Benefits - Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement Plan

(Continued)
E. OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and

F.

Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB (Continued)

The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total OPEB liability
used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
June 30, 2022. At June 30, 2023, the Town has no proportionate share of the net
OPERB liability.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the Town recognized OPEB expense and revenue of
$522,489 in Exhibit II.

Actuarial Assumptions

The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2022,
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

Inflation 2.50%

Healthcare Costs Trend Rate Known increases until calendar year
2024, then general trend decreasing
to an ultimate rate of 4.5% by 2031

Salary Increases 3.00%-6.50%, Including Inflation

Investment Rate of Return 3.53%, Net of OPEB Plan Investment
Expense, Including Inflation

Year Fund Net Position Will be Depleted 2027

Mortality rates were based on the PubT-2010 Healthy Retiree Table (adjusted 105% for
males and 103% for females at ages 82 and above), projected generationally with
MP-2019 for the period after service retirement.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2022 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2014 - June 30, 2019.
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 12 OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Other Post-Employment Benefits - Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement Plan
(Continued)

F. Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

The changes in the assumptions since the prior year are as follows:
e Discount rate changed from 2.17% to 3.53%;

o Expected annual per capita claims costs were updated to better reflect
anticipated medical and prescription drug claim experience;

o The assumed age-related annual percentage increases in expected annual per
capita health care claim costs were updated;

e Long-term health care cost trend rates were updated; and

e The percentages of participating retirees who are expected to enroll in the
Medicare Supplement Plan and the Medicare Advantage Plan options were
updated to better reflect anticipated plan experience.

The changes in the benefit terms since the prior year are as follows:

e There was a change in the maximum monthly subsidy amounts offered to
retirees and their dependents from $110/$220 to $220/$440.

The long-term expected rate of return on plan assets is reviewed as part of the GASB 75
valuation process. Several factors are considered in evaluating the long-term rate of
return assumption, including the plan’s current asset allocations and a log-normal
distribution analysis using the best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of
return (expected return, net investment expense and inflation) for each major asset
class. The long-term expected rate of return was determined by weighting the expected
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and then adding
expected inflation. The assumption is not expected to change absent a significant
change in the asset allocation, a change in the inflation assumption, or a fundamental
change in the market that alters expected returns in future years. The plan is 100%
invested in U.S. Treasuries (Cash Equivalents) for which the expected 10-Year
Geometric Real Rate of Return is (0.98%).
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 12 OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Other Post-Employment Benefits - Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement Plan
(Continued)

G. Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.53%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate was performed in accordance with
GASB 75. The projection was based on an actuarial valuation performed as of
June 30, 2022.

In addition to the actuarial methods and assumptions of the June 30, 2022, actuarial
valuation, the following actuarial methods and assumptions were used in the projection
of cash flows:

e Total payroll for the initial projection year consists of the payroll of the active
membership present on the valuation date. In subsequent projection years, total
payroll was assumed to increase annually at a rate of 3.00%

¢ Annual state contributions were assumed to be equal to the most recent five-year
average of state contributions toward the fund.

Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
depleted in 2027 and, as a result, the Municipal Bond Index Rate was used in the
determination of the single equivalent rate.

H. Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate
and the Discount Rate

The Town’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability is $-0- and, therefore, the
change in the healthcare cost trend rate or the discount rate would only impact the
amount recorded by the state of Connecticut.

I. OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the Connecticut State Teachers OPEB Plan fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued State of Connecticut Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report at www.ct.gov.

J. Other Information
Additional information is included in the required supplementary information section of

the financial statements. A schedule of contributions is not presented as the Town has
no obligation to contribute to the plan.
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JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 13 RISK MANAGEMENT

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; error and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.
These risks are covered by commercial insurance purchased from independent third parties.
Settled claims from these risks did not exceed commercial insurance coverage during the
three years ended June 30, 2023.

Medical Self Insurance

The Town’s self-insurance program is used to account for health insurance coverage for
Town and Board of Education employees on a cost-reimbursement basis. Under the
program, the Town is obligated for claim payments. A stop loss insurance contract executed
with an insurance captive covers claims in excess of $175,000 on a per member basis with
an aggregate stop loss coverage limit of $12,834,000 per year.

The Fund establishes claims liabilities based on estimates of claims that have been incurred
but not reported; accordingly, the Fund recorded an additional liability at June 30, 2023,
of $727,000.

Premium payments are reported as interfund services provided and used for the General
Fund, and, accordingly, they are treated as operating revenues of the Self-Insurance Fund
and operating expenditures of the General Fund.

A schedule of changes in the claims liability for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, is
presented below:

2023 2022
Unpaid Claims, July 1 $ 1,085,000 $ 605,346
Incurred Claims (Including IBNR) 9,308,605 10,230,889
Claim Payments (9,666,605) (9,751,235)
Unpaid Claims, June 30 $ 727,000 $ 1,085,000

NOTE 14 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingent Liabilities
Litigation and Unasserted Claims

There are various lawsuits pending against the Town. The outcome and eventual liability of
the Town, if any, in these cases is not known at this time. Based upon consultation with
legal counsel, the Town’s management estimates that potential claims against the Town, not
covered by insurance, resulting from such litigation would not have a materially adverse
effect on the financial position of the Town.
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NOTE 14

NOTE 15

TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

Contingent Liabilities (Continued)
Federal and State Assistance Programs - Compliance Audits

The Town has received state and federal grants for specific purposes that are subject to
review and audit by the grantor agencies. Such audits could lead to requests for
reimbursement to the grantor agency for any expenditure disallowed under terms of the
grant. Based on prior experience, Town management believes such disallowances, if any,
will not be material.

MAJOR TAXPAYER
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, 34.5% of the Town’s property tax revenues were

derived from its largest taxpayer, Dominion Nuclear Connecticut, Inc., an electrical
power facility.
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RSI-1

TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

Actual Variance
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Over
Original Final Basis (Under)
Property Taxes:
Revenues from Current Year $ 095943064 $ 95943064 $ 96,601,120 $ 658,056
Prior Year Taxes 300,000 300,000 591,513 291,513
Interest and Lien Fees 321,563 321,563 561,351 239,788
Total Property Taxes 96,564,627 96,564,627 97,753,984 1,189,357
Intergovernmental:
State of Connecticut:
Equalized Cost Sharing 316,189 316,189 377,227 61,038
Health and Welfare 6,359 6,359 5,982 (377)
General Government:
Tax Relief:
Tax Relief - State-Owned Property - - - -
Tiered Pilot 316,181 316,181 316,181 -
Disabled - - 1,946 1,946
Private Tax-Exempt Property - - - -
Veterans - - 5,870 5,870
Court Fines - - 8,333 8,333
Civil Preparedness 9,713 9,713 23,403 13,690
Telecommunication 48,729 48,729 58,071 9,342
Town Aid Road 316,431 316,431 321,120 4,689
SDE State Grant 14,000 14,000 - (14,000)
LOCIP 115,890 115,890 - (115,890)
Enhancement 911 22,981 22,981 22,418 (563)
Police Body Worn Camera Grant - - - -
Bullet Proof Vest Grant - - - -
Municipal Revenue Sharing - - 373,384 373,384
Grants for Municipal Projects - - 34,255 34,255
Total State of Connecticut 1,166,473 1,166,473 1,548,190 381,717
FEMA Reimbursement - - - -
Total Intergovernmental 1,166,473 1,166,473 1,548,190 381,717
Assessments and Connections:
Water Main Assessments - - 16,501 16,501
Sewer Assessments - - - -
Total Assessments and Connections - - 16,501 16,501
Licenses and Permits:
Recreation and Parks Commission $75,000 $75,000 207,692 132,692
Building Inspector 350,000 350,000 602,212 252,212
License, Fees, Permits, and Fines 40,159 40,159 21,268 (18,891)
Conveyance Tax 200,000 200,000 431,899 231,899
Planning and Zoning 38,500 38,500 66,185 27,685
Liens - Utility Commission - - 8,140 8,140
Town Clerk Fees 200,000 200,000 153,260 (46,740)
Total Licenses and Permits 903,659 903,659 1,490,656 586,997
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RSI-1
(CONTINUED)

TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

Actual Variance
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Over
Original Final Basis (Under)
Fines, Penalties, and Charges for Services:
Tuition $ 83432 § 83432 § 105,931 § 22,499
Library - - 541 541
False Alarm Fines - - - -
Bulky Waste Fees 70,000 70,000 112,201 42,201
Recycling 30,000 30,000 72,082 42,082
Miscellaneous 69,306 69,306 72,244 2,938
EMS - Reg. Comm Ctr Fees 6,000 6,000 6,000 -
Tipping Fees 200,000 200,000 264,872 64,872
Senior Services 10,796 10,796 13,446 2,650
Total Fines, Penalties, and Charges
for Services 469,534 469,534 647,317 177,783
Other Sources:
Rent and Miscellaneous 4,930 4,930 4,930 -
Rental of Buildings 75,000 75,000 784,826 709,826
Sales of Vehicles - - 683 683
Sale of Equipment - - 11,978 11,978
NI Radio Comm. Network Use Fee 72,000 72,000 - (72,000)
SCRRRA Rebate - - 1,945 1,945
Eugene O'Neill Lease 10,000 10,000 17,932 7,932
CIRMA Members Equity Distribution - - - -
Cost Sharing PRR - - 187,367 187,367
Ambulance Operating Subsidy - - - -
YSB BOE Clerical Stipend 5,000 5,000 - (5,000)
BOE Human Resources Offset - - - -
Total Other Sources 166,930 166,930 1,009,661 842,731
Interest and Dividends:
Interest on Investments 110,000 110,000 2,034,123 1,924,123
Total Revenues 99,381,223 99,381,223 104,500,432 5,119,209
Other Financing Sources:
Transfers In - - 175,240 175,240
Cancellation of Prior Year Encumbrances - - 70,976 70,976
Total Other Financing Sources - - 246,216 246,216
Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources $ 99,381,223 § 99,381,223 104,746,648  § 5,365,425
Budgetary revenues are different than GAAP revenues because:
State of Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement System on-behalf pension contributions
for Town teachers is not budgeted. 7,803,575
State of Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement System on-behalf OPEB contributions for
Town teachers is not budgeted. 110,373
Encumbrances for purchases and commitments which were subsequently cancelled in
the next fiscal year (70,976)
Excess cost - student based grant 506,103
GASB 87 not budgeted (650,807)
GASB 54 activity of certain special revenue funds now consolidated into the
General Fund 29,191
Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources as Reported on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 112,474,107
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

RSI-2

(94)

Actual Variance
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary (Over)
Original Final Basis Under
General Government:
Selectman:
Personnel Costs 201,395 §$ 201,224 $ 199,852 1,372
Services 5,060 3,437 2,306 1,131
Materials and Supplies 1,150 3,079 3,075 4
Total Selectman 207,605 207,740 205,233 2,507
Registrar of Voters:
Personnel Costs 64,394 76,839 76,674 165
Services 5,656 5,781 5,691 90
Materials and Supplies 8,153 10,523 10,519 4
Equipment 1 1 - 1
Total Registrar of Voters 78,204 93,144 92,884 260
Board of Finance:
Personnel Costs 2,528 2,528 1,606 922
Services 64,100 71,418 69,298 2,120
Materials and Supplies 45 45 13 32
Total Board of Finance 66,673 73,991 70,917 3,074
Assessor:
Personnel Costs 249,230 212,871 200,866 12,005
Services 9,464 70,023 69,863 160
Materials and Supplies 650 2,105 2,013 92
Total Assessor 259,344 284,999 272,742 12,257
Board of Assessment Appeals:
Personnel Costs 1,070 3,238 3,231 7
Services 550 740 738 2
Total Board of Assessment Appeals 1,620 3,978 3,969 9
Tax Collector:
Personnel Costs 179,890 184,040 183,974 66
Services 29,969 33,304 33,267 37
Materials and Supplies 280 205 181 24
Total Tax Collector 210,139 217,549 217,422 127
Finance:
Personnel Costs 567,285 558,102 557,813 289
Services 102,311 125,275 124,708 567
Materials and Supplies 32,000 33,408 33,407 1
Equipment 2,113 2,400 2,399 1
Total Finance 703,709 719,185 718,327 858
Legal Department:
Services 295,000 360,000 359,635 365



RSI-2
(CONTINUED)
TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

Actual Variance
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary (Over)
Original Final Basis Under
General Government (Continued):
Town Clerk:
Personnel Costs $ 243,989 $ 275,487 $ 259,901 $ 15,586
Services 28,900 28,900 25,292 3,608
Materials and Supplies 2,850 2,850 1,690 1,160
Total Town Clerk 275,739 307,237 286,883 20,354
Planning and Zoning Commission:
Personnel Costs 608,720 616,120 585,220 30,900
Services 44,252 36,852 17,668 19,184
Materials and Supplies 3,560 3,560 3,089 471
Equipment 1,440 1,440 - 1,440
Total Planning and Zoning Commission 657,972 657,972 605,977 51,995
Insurance:
Services 4,728,672 4,421,639 4,413,432 8,207
Economic Development Commission:
Services 27,471 27,471 16,396 11,075
Conservation Commission:
Services 17,750 17,750 13,276 4,474
Materials and Supplies 500 500 253 247
Total Conservation Commission 18,250 18,250 13,529 4,721
Zoning Board of Appeals:
Services 4,260 4,260 3,678 582
Materials and Supplies 50 50 - 50
Total Zoning Board of Appeals 4,310 4,310 3,678 632
Retirement Commission:
Personnel Costs 6,333,067 6,288,067 6,234,062 54,005
Representative Town Meeting:
Personnel Costs 1 1 - 1
Services 18,902 18,902 17,490 1,412
Total Representative Town Meeting 18,903 18,903 17,490 1,413
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(CONTINUED)
TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

Actual Variance
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary (Over)
Original Final Basis Under
General Government (Continued):
Building Department:
Personnel Costs $ 302,453 $ 225386 $ 213,606 $ 11,780
Services 11,283 46,283 30,020 16,263
Materials and Supplies 2,293 2,298 2,213 85
Equipment 612 612 - 612
Total Building Department 316,641 274,579 245,839 28,740
Social Service Grants:
Services 67,173 67,173 67,101 72
Contracts Out to Agencies 19,300 19,300 19,300 -
Total Social Service Grants 86,473 86,473 86,401 72
Contingency:
Miscellaneous 265,000 31,207 - 31,207
Flood and Erosion Control Board:
Personnel Costs 818 818 422 396
Services 1,295 1,295 - 1,295
Materials and Supplies 25 25 - 25
Total Flood and Erosion Control Board 2,138 2,138 422 1,716
Ethics Commission:
Personnel Costs 650 650 250 400
Services 150 150 - 150
Materials and Supplies 50 50 - 50
Total Ethics Commission 850 850 250 600
Human Resources:
Personnel Costs 167,972 168,352 167,725 627
Services 90,854 90,954 77,910 13,044
Materials and Supplies 1,030 930 899 31
Total Human Resources 259,856 260,236 246,534 13,702
Information Technology:
Personnel Costs 267,928 252,042 242,916 9,126
Services 791,004 796,617 707,201 89,416
Equipment 101,459 111,732 98,783 12,949
Total Information Technology 1,160,391 1,160,391 1,048,900 111,491
Total General Government 15,978,027 15,520,309 15,160,922 359,387
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(CONTINUED)

TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

Actual Variance
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary (Over)
Original Final Basis Under
Public Safety:
Emergency Management:
Personnel Costs $ 959,830 $ 961,930 $ 878,795 $ 83,135
Services 105,346 105,346 88,329 17,017
Materials and Supplies 3,310 3,310 2,155 1,155
Total Emergency Management 1,068,486 1,070,586 969,279 101,307
Fire Services:
Personnel Costs 2,279,501 2,295,995 2,279,780 16,215
Services 851,549 956,885 952,068 4,817
Materials and Supplies 218,370 327,838 317,695 10,143
Equipment 59,000 29,560 29,294 266
Total Fire Services 3,408,420 3,610,278 3,578,837 31,441
Police Department:
Personnel Costs 5,950,414 6,001,757 5,920,228 81,529
Services 261,765 252,765 237,379 15,386
Materials and Supplies 211,785 234,785 227,521 7,264
Equipment 4,250 4,250 4,203 47
Total Police Department 6,428,214 6,493,557 6,389,331 104,226
Total Public Safety 10,905,120 11,174,421 10,937,447 236,974
Public Works:
Building Maintenance:
Personnel Costs 82,433 82,073 79,538 2,535
Services 750,956 801,908 773,491 28,417
Materials and Supplies 4,000 6,398 6,393 5
Capital Improvements 5,000 3,042 3,041 1
Total Building Maintenance 842,389 893,421 862,463 30,958
Public Works:
Personnel Costs 2,480,366 2,369,281 2,358,919 10,362
Services 1,185,850 1,258,635 1,176,189 82,446
Materials and Supplies 656,125 821,519 792,959 28,560
Equipment 69,945 53,351 49,789 3,562
Capital Improvements 317,277 317,277 218,517 98,760
Total Public Works 4,709,563 4,820,063 4,596,373 223,690
Total Public Works 5,551,952 5,713,484 5,458,836 254,648
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(CONTINUED)
TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

Actual Variance
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary (Over)
Original Final Basis Under
Social Services:
Youth Service Bureau:
Personnel Costs $ 242150 $ 238,125 $ 193,105 $ 45,020
Services 30,010 34,035 33,776 259
Total Social Services 272,160 272,160 226,881 45,279
Conservation of Health:
Services 148,126 148,127 148,126 1
Waterford Public Health Nursing Service:
Contracts Out to Agencies 26,000 26,000 8,279 17,721
Senior Citizen Commission:
Personnel Costs 438,670 428,970 408,068 20,902
Services 41,186 26,620 22,799 3,821
Materials and Supplies 13,620 13,655 11,918 1,737
Equipment 1,017 2,087 2,068 19
Total Senior Citizen Commission 494,493 471,332 444,853 26,479
Total Social Services 940,779 917,619 828,139 89,480
Library:
Personnel Costs 946,985 946,850 935,914 10,936
Services 1,015 1,150 1,112 38
Materials and Supplies 7,475 7,475 7,369 106
Equipment 44,000 44,000 43,999 1
Total Library 999,475 999,475 988,394 11,081
Recreation and Parks:
Personnel Costs 1,142,115 1,263,365 1,247,035 16,330
Services 233,501 228,380 199,504 28,876
Materials and Supplies 72,065 95,710 95,076 634
Total Recreation and Parks 1,447,681 1,587,455 1,541,615 45,840
Debt Service:
Principal 5,310,000 5,310,000 5,310,000 -
Interest 1,887,640 1,887,640 1,887,460 180
Total Debt Service 7,197,640 7,197,640 7,197,460 180
Board of Education 52,109,124 52,109,124 51,804,421 304,703
Total Expenditures 95,129,798 95,219,527 93,917,234 1,302,293
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Other Financing Uses:

Transfers Out

Total Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses

TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

Budgeted Amounts

Original

Final

Actual
Budgetary
Basis

RSI-2
(CONTINUED)

Variance
(Over)
Under

$ 4,251,425

$

7,406,932

$ 7,406,932

$ 99,381,223

$

102,626,459

Budgetary expenditures are different than GAAP expenditures because:
State of Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement System on-behalf pension

contributions for Town teachers is not budgeted.

State of Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement System on-behalf OPEB

contributions for Town teachers is not budgeted.

Encumbrances for purchases and commitments ordered but not received are
reported in the year the order is placed for budgetary purposes, but in the year
the order is received for financial reporting purposes.

Excess cost - student based grant
Implementation of GASB 87 not budgeted

GASB 54 Activity of Certain Special Revenue Funds now consolidated into the

General Fund

GASB 54 Transfer out Activity of Certain Special Revenue Funds now consolidated

into the General Fund

Transfers to Certain Special Revenue Funds consolidated with the General

Fund are eliminated for GAAP reporting purposes upon consolidation.

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Sources as Reported in the
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds

(99)

101,324,166

7,803,575
110,373
41,855
506,103
9,622

106,049

11,710

(61,721)

$ 109,851,632

$ 1,302,293
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES
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GENERAL FUND
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GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is the principal fund of the Town and is used to account for all activities of the Town,
except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The General Fund accounts for the normal
recurring activities of the Town (i.e., general government, public safety, public works, health, social
services, recreation, education, etc.). These activities are funded principally by property taxes, user
fees and grants from other governmental units.
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES COMPARED WITH APPROPRIATIONS
GENERAL FUND - BOARD OF EDUCATION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Salaries - Certified

Salaries - Support

Salaries - Other

Temporary Pay - Certified
Temporary Pay - Support
Overtime - Support

Health and Dental Insurance
Life and Major Medical Insurance
Long-Term Disability

Social Security Contribution
Reimbursements
Unemployment Compensation
Workers' Compensation

Sick Pay

Retirement Incentive
Instructional Services

Staff and Curriculum Development
Other Professional and Technical Services
Legal Services

Public Utilities

Maintenance and Repairs
Rentals

Pupil Transportation
Insurance - Property
Insurance - Liability

Other Insurance
Communications

Postage

Advertising

Tuition

Travel and Conference

Other Purchased Services
Instructional Supplies
Software

Maintenance and Custodial
Heat and Energy
Transportation Supplies
Textbooks

Library and Professional Books
Other Supplies

Equipment

Membership Dues and Fees

Total

Expenditures

EXHIBIT A-1

Final and Unexpended
Appropriation Encumbrances Balance
$ 24,029,242 $ 23,750,450 $ 278,792
6,427,768 5,839,611 588,157
56,620 55,992 629
1,017,873 1,348,354 (330,481)
165,700 257,546 (91,846)
124,075 115,099 8,976
6,742,222 6,706,167 36,055
80,068 72,545 7,523
3,366 3,086 281
981,527 956,014 25,513
104,400 67,741 36,659
70,000 13,089 56,911
399,599 297,275 102,324
138,657 235,094 (96,437)
7,500 15,000 (7,500)
107,005 99,855 7,150
96,050 102,244 (6,194)
1,789,652 1,412,593 377,059
113,749 124,574 (10,825)
79,241 84,449 (5,208)
423,486 348,125 75,361
23,570 9,519 14,051
2,350,868 2,691,982 (341,114)
112,519 95,154 17,365
114,171 149,669 (35,498)
25,626 18,046 7,580
78,230 71,816 6,414
19,244 15,422 3,822
3,500 8,360 (4,860)
2,574,650 2,489,195 85,455
155,433 162,485 (7,052)
198,000 222,355 (24,355)
405,192 398,552 6,640
524,015 557,662 (33,647)
295,620 450,384 (154,764)
1,369,692 1,576,391 (206,699)
189,779 188,743 1,036
172,500 303,065 (130,565)
30,660 24,207 6,453
179,244 173,521 5,723
298,778 258,185 40,593
30,034 34,807 (4,773)
$ 52,109,124 $ 51,804,421 $ 304,703
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Fund

Funding Source

Function

Special Education Grants

State and federal grants

School related programs

School Cafeteria

Sale of food and grants

School lunch program

School Activity

Charges for services

Student activities

Waterford Special Activity Fund

Donations, program fees and a
transfer from the General fund

To account for programs and donation
expenditures for the first selectman
and recreation and parks departments

Drug Enforcement

Federal and state forfeited
property

Drug enforcement and education

Youth Services

Donations and admission fees

Youth programs

Water

Rentals from cell phone
companies for antennas on water
towers

Maintenance of water infrastructure

Contributed Gifts

Donations

Expenditures of donations according to
the purpose of the various gifts

Senior Citizens

Donations and program fees

Services and programs for senior
citizens

Youth Services Local Prevention
Council Grant

Local prevention council grant

Youth services alcohol and drug abuse
prevention program

Small Harbor Improvement
Projects (SHIP) Grant

Connecticut Port Authority grant
in aid

Mago Point Planning Study-Design

Youth Services Mini Grant

State grant passed through
NECASA

Community Coalition to address the
Opioid Crisis

Certified Local Government
Historic Preservation
Enhancement Grant

State of Connecticut Department
of Economic and Community
Development

National register nomination for Qil Mill
District

JAG Grant

Federal Justice Assistance funds
passed through the Criminal
Justice Planning Division of the
State of CT OPM

Purchase of police department
interview room equipment

Dock Removal Grant

Grant from private organization

Removal of derelict dock structures in
the Thames River at 74 Scotch Cap
Road

Nuclear Safety Emergency
Preparedness Grant

State grant

Nuclear Safety Preparedness Program

Drug Recognition Expert (DRE)
Support Grant

Federal Police Traffic Services
funds passed through the State
of Connecticut DOT

Coordination of DRE training activities

State Election Grant

State grant

To alleviate costs for absentee ballots
for the November 2022 election

Senior Resources Agency on
Aging Grant

Senior Resources Agency on
Aging Grant

Purchase of Equipment for the Senior
Center

Community Foundation Grant

Community Foundation Grant

Funding for establishing a Council for
Diversity, Equity and Inclusion (DEI)

Comprehensive DUI
Enforcement Program Grant

Federal Highway Safety funds
passed through the State of CT
Department of Transportation

Regional check points to enforce
driving under the influence laws

EFSP (Emergency Food and
Shelter Program) Grants

Phase 39 and ARPA-R funds
passed through the United Way
of Southeastern Connecticut

Resources to aid in providing
emergency assistance for food and
shelter

Historic Properties

Donations

Donations to the Historic Properties
Commission




NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Fund

Funding Source

Function

Jordan Mill Pond Fishway

Grant from nonprofit organization

Construct a fishway to promote
spawning

Harbor Management

Docking and mooring fees

Harbor management

Youth Services Enhancement
Grant

State grant

To promote youth developmental
activities

Small Cities Grant I

State Community Development
Block Grant (CDBG) funds and
loan payments

Waterford Housing Rehabilitation
Program

Historic Documents Preservation
Grant

Connecticut State Library
Targeted Grant

Preservation of historic documents

Reeve Foundation Grant

Christopher Reeve Foundation
grant

Purchase of recreational equipment to
make Waterford Beach accessible to
individuals in wheelchairs

Senior Services Title IIIB Open
Doors Grant

Federal funding under Title Ill
and matching contributions

Senior Services open doors program
for local senior citizens

Senior Services Wal Mart Grant

Grant from Wal Mart

Senior services program to conduct in-
home fall assessment risks for local
seniors

Distracted Driving HVE Grant

Department of Transportation
Federal Highway Safety Grant

Department of Transportation Federal
Highway Safety Grant

Student Athletics Fund

Gate receipts

Site workers, ticket takers and
tournament fees

ARPA Auto Theft & Violence
Grant

Federal grants

Additional patrols to reduce or prevent
crimes including stolen vehicles, auto
break ins, and catalytic converter theft

FEMA Grant Fund

Federal grants

To protect the health and safety of the
public and firefighting personnel
against fire and fire-related hazards

ARPA Rural Roads Fund

Federal grants

Increased enforcement of traffic
violations on local roads

FEMA Fire Prevention and
Safety Fund

Federal grants

To fund equipment and supplies to
support fire safety and prevention
programs

The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,

Capital Project Funds

committed or assigned to expenditure for capital outlay.

Fund

Funding Source

Function

Fleet Management

Sales and rental of vehicles and
equipment as well as annual
transfer from the Capital
Improvement Fund

Program for funding the replacement
of equipment and vehicles over ten
thousand dollars

Sewer Maintenance and
Development

Sewer connection fees

Maintenance of existing sewer
system assets

Capital Improvements Fund

General fund appropriations

Various Capital Improvements

Early Childhood Learning Center

State grants

Construction of a District Magnet
School
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Permanent Funds

Permanent Funds are used to account for and report resources that are restricted to the extent that
only earnings, not principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting governments
programs.

Fund Funding Source Function

Hammond Memorial Trust Payments from trust and Maintenance of cemetery
investment earnings
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

TRUST FUNDS

Pension Trust Fund — To account for assets that have been set aside in trust for the employee
retirement plan for certain Town employees.

OPEB Trust Fund — To account for assets that have been set aside in trust for other post-employment
benefits for certain Town employees.
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

PENSION AND OTHER EMPLOYEE TRUST FUNDS

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments:
Mutual Funds
Receivables:
Accrued Interest and Dividends
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts and Other Payables

NET POSITION
Restricted for OPEB Benefits
Restricted for Pension Benefits

Total Net Position

JUNE 30, 2023

EXHIBIT C-1

Pension OPEB
Trust Fund Trust Fund Total
$ 6,676 $ 15,804 $ 22,480
503,669 10,542,080 11,045,749
256 3,214 3,470
510,601 10,561,098 11,071,699
1,142 16,444 17,586
- 10,544,654 10,544,654
509,459 - 509,459
$ 509,459 $ 10,544,654 $ 11,054,113
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
PENSION AND OTHER EMPLOYEE TRUST FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employer

Investment Income:
Net Change in Fair Value of Investments

Total Additions
DEDUCTIONS
Benefit Payments
Administration
Total Deductions
CHANGE IN NET POSITION

Net Position - Beginning of Year

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

EXHIBIT C-2

Pension OPEB

Trust Fund Trust Fund Total
$ 27,280 $ 1,618,816 $ 1,646,096
52,142 959,995 1,012,137
79,422 2,578,811 2,658,233
90,966 475,505 566,471
1,833 10,769 12,602
92,799 486,274 579,073
(13,377) 2,092,537 2,079,160
522,836 8,452,117 8,974,953
$ 509,459 $ 10,544,654 $ 11,054,113
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(136)



STATISTICAL SECTION INFORMATION

The objectives of statistical section information are to provide financial statement users with additional
historical perspective, context, and detail to assist in using the information in the financial statements,
notes to financial statements, and required supplementary information to understand and assess
economic condition.

Statistical section information is presented in the following categories:

Financial trends information is intended to assist users in understanding and assessing how
financial position has changed over time.

Revenue capacity information is intended to assist users in understanding and assessing the
factors affecting the ability to generate own-source revenues (property taxes, charges for
services, etc.).

Debt capacity information is intended to assist users in understanding and assessing debt
burden and the ability to issue additional debt.

Demographic and economic information is intended 1) to assist users in understanding the
socioeconomic environment, and 2) to provide information that facilitates comparisons of
financial statement information over time and among governments.

Operating information is intended to provide contextual information about operations and
resources to assist readers in using financial statement information to understand and assess
economic condition.

The accompanying tables are presented in the above order. Refer to the Table of Contents for
applicable page number locations.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in the tables is derived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports for the relevant year.
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TABLE 8
TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(IN THOUSANDS)

(UNAUDITED)
Ratio of Debt
General Total Ratio of Debt to Taxable

Fiscal Obligation Primary to Per Capita Assessed Debt per
Year Bonds" Government Income Value Capita
2023 61,665 $ 61,665 0.07 % 176 %  $ 3,153
2022 66,975 66,975 0.07 1.98 3,425
2021 69,400 69,400 6.38 2.08 3,556
2020 73,030 73,030 8.81 2.21 3,742
2019 69,465 69,465 8.70 2.10 3,655
2018 74,485 74,485 9.32 2.30 3,919
2017 79,465 79,465 9.95 2.49 4,181
2016 85,715 85,715 10.68 2.71 4,487
2015 90,145 90,145 11.12 2.82 4,675
2014 94,885 94,885 11.62 2.99 4,884

Note: Details regarding the Town's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

(146)



TABLE 9
TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT
SCHEDULE OF DEBT LIMITATION

JUNE 30, 2023
(IN THOUSANDS)

(UNAUDITED)
Total Tax Collections for the Prior Year, June 30, 2022, Including Interest and Lien Fees $ 93,937
Reimbursement for Revenue Loss on:
Property Tax Relief for Elderly, previous fiscal year 2
Base 3 93,939
General Urban Pension
Purpose Schools Sewers Renewal Deficit Total
Debt Limitation:
2-1/4 Times Base $ 211,363 $ -8 - 8 - 8 - 8 211,363
4-1/2 Times Base - 422,726 - - - 422,726
3-3/4 Times Base - - 352,271 - - 352,271
3-1/4 Times Base - - - 305,302 - 305,302
3 Times Base - - - - 281,817 281,817
7 Times Base - - - - - -
Total Debt Limitation 211,363 422,726 352,271 305,302 281,817 1,673,479
Indebtedness:
Bonds Payable 12,285 49,380 - - - 61,665
Authorized and Unissued 1,345 7,247 - - - 8,592
Total Indebtedness 13,630 56,627 - - - 70,257
Debt Limitation in
Excess of Outstanding
and Authorized Debt $ 197,733 _$ 366,099 _$ 352,271 $ 305302 _$ 281817 _$ 1,503,222

Note 1: In no event shall total debt exceed seven times annual receipts from taxation. The maximum amount
permitted would be $654 million.

Note 2: Bonds authorized and unissued represent bond authorizations for which bonds have been issued
to partially finance the project or interim financing has been issued.

(147)



(8¥1)

uone}iwi| }gep Jeak Jualnd Jo uonenojes oy abed Joud uo uone)wI Jgaq 4O |INPaYdS 88S 810N
uone)wWI 1g8( 4O Juswalels - Loday [BlouBUIH [enuUUY BAISUBYSIdWOoY :82IN0S
‘uopjexe} wouy sjdisoal |enuue S} UBASS PasoXxa Jqap |Ejo} [|eys JuaAa ou u| (1)

“Jwi| 1gep Jo ebejusolad e se ywi| sy} 0} sjqeoiidde 1gep jau |ejo L

~162°26€ $ 006 €LY § "viZsey $ 1GEGLG $ GL. 8¢S $ 9ve GvS $ 085699 $ ¥66 GG $ GGG'8/S $ €¥S 919 $ uiblep 1geq (ebe
102°L€1 £9'8¢L €e0'vel 1¥8'/8 S8Y' VL G9¥'69 0€0'e. S18°CL 19G6°G/ G99'L9 Hwi 0} 8|qeoy|ddy 1geq 1eN [eoL
¥0G'v€S $ £9€°26S $ 10€°2.S $ 261°€09 $ 002°€09 $ 118'71L9 $ 019'8€9 $ 608879 $ 221'v59 $ 802'8.9 $ jwiigeg
102 G102 9102 1102 8102 610C 020¢ 1202 2202 €202
Jes A |eosiq
(a3Lianvnn)

(SANVYSNOHL NI)
SUV3IA 1VIOSId NIL 1SV
NOILVINHOANI NIDYVIN 1934 Tvo3T

LNOILOANNOD ‘Q¥04¥3LVM 40 NMOL
0L 319v.l



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS

TABLE 11

(UNAUDITED)
Per Capita Total
Population Personal Personal Median Age School Unemployment
Fiscal Year (1, 6) Income (1, 6) Income (5) (2, 6) Enrollment (3) Rate (4)

2023 19,558 § 46,597 $ - 47 2,323 3.7 %
2022 19,553 44,931 - 42 2,348 4.8
2021 19,519 44,280 - 42 2,367 7.7
2020 18,746 43,125 - 46 2,469 10.6
2019 19,007 42,028 - 49 2,518 3.7
2018 19,007 42,028 - 48 2,653 28
2017 19,007 42,028 - 48 2,776 3.7
2016 19,427 39,498 - 47 2,749 4.8
2015 19,427 39,498 - 46 2,764 5.4
2014 19,508 39,042 - 47 2,799 6.0

(1) U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census (estimate for July, 2021)

(2) Connecticut Economic Resource Center based on U.S. Bureau of Census Data. September each year.

(3) Connecticut State Department of Education
(4) Connecticut Department of Labor. June each year. Not seasonally adjusted.
(5) Bureau of Economic Analysis September 2007
(6) Data source: American Community Survey

(149)



(0s1)

020z AInp Juswales (eI - ejeq wawAholdw :80in0g

% €L'vv gee'y % 96'vv LYS'y |ejoL
18°) ol G/l - VIN - josewladng doyg g doyg
8°L 6 8.1 - VIN - |lejoy 19618
89'C S 09¢ - VIN - llejoy slesg
- V/N - 4N oL oclL Jonquisig Buipog ejod eoo
- VIN - 8Ll 6 ZlL 81031S |lejay 8[eso|oUM s.rg
88°L 8 z8l 29'L 8 6Ll JaquinT g aiempleH JuswaAoidw| SWOH S,9M07
cee 9 gee L0'¢ A 00¢ Ayjioe a1eoyyesH Jsjua) aieoyjeaH malnkeq
405 L 981 €0'¢C 9 00¢ JaquinT @ alempleH joda(Q awoH
8¢ 14 Glt 6.2 S 98v JOJOBJUOD JUBWUIBAOD) 'ou| s)sAleuos
- VIN - ¥0°'S 14 16V |leloy oU| ‘sa10])S ME\ [EAA
8Y'S € LEG 6€°S € 89G AyendsoH dnoi9 [910H plopsiem
76°9 4 €19 0. 4 S69 Ayjediounpy pJopielep) JO UMO |
% ¢0°LL 3 059l % ¥L°91 3 059°L Jamod JesjonN INdIdBUUOY JESONN uolulwogd
juswAojdwg yuey soakoldwg juswAojdwg yuey soakoldwg ssauisng Jo ainjeN aweN ssauisng
A0 1ejoL A3 ejoL
10 abejusalad 10 abejuaolad
€10 €c0c

¢l 31avl

(aaLianvnn)

OOV SUVIA NIL ANV dVIA LNIJHAND

SU3AOTdINT TVdIONRId

LNOILOANNOD ‘Q¥04¥3LVM 40 NMOL



(151)

sjuswieda $80IN0S8Y UBWNH UOIEONPT JO PJeOg PUB UMO :82IN0S

689 G89 089 189 989 889 269 1GS GZ9 GBS
GGY GGY GGP aGt L9v £9¥ €9t £9Y £y vEY
€2 vZ 74 74 74 vZ ¥4 9l L L
€l 0l oL ol 0l 0l L 4} L L
8z vZ 74 74 74 vz 12 8z 8z 8z
S 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9
Gl 0z Gl Gl Gl Gl Gl Gl Gl 8l
S S G ¥S ¥S ¥G GG €G GG G5
z6 z6 z6 z6 z6 z6 ¥6 € 99 99
v102 GL0Z 9102 1102 8102 6102 0202 120e 220z €202
(aaLianvnn)

€l 31avl

SYUVIA TVvIOSId NIL LSV

NVYOO0YUd/NOILONNA A9 SIIAO0TdINT LNJWNHYIAOD LNITVAINOT JNIL-TTNS

LNOILOANNOD ‘Q¥04¥3LVM 40 NMOL

[ejol

uoneonpg
Aeig

S)led pue uoljealoay
SHIOM Jlldnd JBUYIO
uo0d||0) asnjey
alld

a9l1od

JUBWIUIBAOS) |BIBUSL)



(zs1)

s10}02.1J Juswieds( :92In0g

9v 9 9 9 9y L'y LY v €9 0. (@oW) uondwnsuo) Ajreq yead

1T LT 12 LT 1C 1T Y4 ¥z JN €9 (@) uondwnsuog Ajeq abelary

6 L 9 yi €l L L vl €l S syealg ulep JSJep

8 . . e 8z 74 (14 9¢ 9¢ 1z SUOIOBUUOD MBN
I9)Jepn

¥Z.12ve 96.2€2 0L0‘8Le 80G'602 69002 ZrG'e6l 62151 L1¥°9€L 9LV 1) £98°'8¥1 pemo.iog Sewn|oA [ejo]

9/0'c8 €82°18 £20'c8 ¥GZ'08 ¥06'v8 28218 062'8. 9et'8. 12€'08 1926/ uoN98||00 Ul SBWNJOA
Aeaqi

L1662 886'/2 v20°L€ GEL'6C 0v0°'ze 8cL'vE 12292 61222 £9v'LE 90v'ZL anuansy welboid

9G68'v¥ ZEY'SP LE6'EY LGL'GY 090°L¥ 6GL LY L18Lve LYL€T ¥G9 ¥82 sjuedioied weiboud Jo JaquinN
:S90OIAIBGS Jolusg

681061 082061 688102 ¥80°102 Z19'c0Z 120212 ££6'€9 618 £G68'8¢ 088'c. seo4 weiboid

18€'S z18's 1662 €169 2. L9 622'c 12 AN Zvl'L suoyesisibey weibold jo JequinN

0£9°19 68919 ovz'z9 81219 00019 ¥82°19 ¥2G'61 €61 £16'e 6118 (1) suoissiwpy Jsjue) AJunwwioy

GG8'C z€8°C 090°C 9/0°C €00°C 160°C 9z0‘L vev'L 8v.L 0LL panss| sjwiad pial4 ons|uy
SHyled pue uoljealday

iz 686 0L z.E ves £GY 192 Le 8.9 00S pailedey ss|oyjod

€ 14 € Zz 4 € 4 L Zz . (seIN) Buioepnsay 19918
'SHIOM 211gNnd J8yl0

6 €l Ll Ll Ll Gl 8 . ol L (Aeq Jod suo]) pejos||0) sajqefohoay

A4 12 8P Gz 8z 8z 62 e 9z 0¢ (Aeq Jad suo]) peyos|0) asney

:UoI309]|0D asnjay

6EG 88t SZv L €z¢ zle Ggl 6EL 874 €22 suonoadsu

89 09 z8 29 09 17 18 69 0L 1€ paysinbunx3 saui4

¥29'c 899'¢c 968'c 098'€ 9LV 0€6'€E 006'C 6€2°C 6Y5°'C vZz'e sesuodsay Aousbisw
a4

1€6'Y 169°C 990'Y 60G°E Z9L's Pre‘9 201y 6GL°e 698y 0zZE'y SUONBIOIA Olel |

16 8¢ 9/l 291 vl vl 69 4 8¢ 4} suonejolA Buiied

Y012 GG6'L vi6‘L 8zL'L 0LL‘L 290°L 818 80/ 900°L 116 siselly [eoisAyd
:90l1|10d

80¥ z8z G61 zLe 06t GlY 0€e (0] 0.2 009'S pajonpuo) suonoadsul buipiing

6l Gl Gl 4 e 8z o€ €l 1z 198°L panss| sjuwad Buiping
‘JUBWUIBA0YD) |elauaD)

A GL0Z 9102 1102 8102 6102 0202 1202 2202 €202 weiboid/uonouny
(aaLianvnn)

SYUVIA TVvIOSId N3L LSV
ANVEOO0Ud/NOILONNL A9 SHOLVIIANI ONILVYEIdO

LNOILOANNOD ‘Q¥04¥3LVM 40 NMOL
vl 3navl



(es1)

SUOIJ0BUUO0D 82IAISS JoMBaS [ela)e| sepn|ou| .,
SUOI}OBUUOD 80IAISS BpN|oUl JoU S80(
Jswyedep yoes 1e s10)oali( :82IN0S

8¢ 8¢ 8¢ 8¢ 8¢ 8¢ 8¢ 8¢ 8¢ 8¢ suonels duing

L0'8y) Lo'8¥l Lo'8¥l L0'8¥l L0'8¥l L0'8¥l Sl'6vl Sl'evl Sl'evl Sl'evl «(S3IIN) siomag Alejues
1lojemalsepn

008'S 008°S 008‘S 008‘S 008°S 008‘S 008‘S 008‘S 008'S 008‘S (suojle9 4o s,000) Anoede) abeioig

€eLl €eLl veL'l veL'l veL'l veL'l veL'L veL'L veL L veL'L syueIpAH aii4

oLl oLl LLL LLL LLL LLL LLL LLL LLL LLL «(S3IIIN) utey Jeyepm
91 A

I | L X X X I L L L sieue) Ajunwiwo)

ol ol ol ol ol oL 0l 0l 0l ol Sp|al] |/eq}004/182005

vl vl vl vl vl vl Gl Gl Gl Gl spuowel(] |leqyos/lleqaseq

g g g g g g S S S S spunoibAe|d

0SS 0SS 0SS 0SS 0SS 0SS 0SS 0SS 0SS 0GS abealoy
SHIed pue uoljealosy

19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 (selN) uresg wioys

gl gl gl el lzl ezl Lzl Lzl Lzl el (salN) s1eas
'SMIOM Dlland Jaui0

9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 S3oNl] uof9|j09
:Uo1399||10) asnjay

g S S S S S S S S S suonels
all4

0c 0c 0c 9 9 8¢ 8¢ 8¢ 8¢ 8¢ sjun |oJied

L L I L L L X X X L S92IO duoZ

l I I I L L X I I I suonels
:92110d

¥102 GL02 9102 1102 8102 6102 0202 1202 44014 €202 weJboid/uonound
Jea A [eoslq
(@aLianvnNn)

SYUVIA TVvIOSId N3L LSV
NVHOO™Ud/NOILONNL A9 SOILSILVLS 13SSV TV1IdVI

LNOILOANNOD ‘Q¥04¥3LVM 40 NMOL
Sl 319vl



Appendix B



€70T ‘0T AN Uo ALY Y3 Aq paldope sem SUiMO|[04 3y L

202 ‘0€ dunr — €20¢ ‘T AInr :1ed/ [edsid
135dn4d d3iidoayv

LNJILDANNOD ‘Q404¥3LVM 40 NMOL



861°CLO‘TOT  $ 1I95aNd TviOL

17T°990°01  § 91AIS 392 pue [eide)) [ejo],
0ST8Y1°‘8 $ 891AI0S 199
0ST°18C $ asmpuadxy FurLIMooy-uoN pue [eude) 0} s1ofsuel],
12L°9€9°T $ syjuswoAoxduwy rende) Jes X JuaLIn)
:II1AIAS 1qa( pue [eyde)
€86°€6IbS § 108png SunesadQ - wonevonpy Jo pivog
v66°TIS'LE  $ suoneaad() JUIWUIIAOL) [BIIUIL)

LI9dNd dALJOAV dVIA "TVOSIA $70T-€70T
AAVINNAS TANLIANAIXH - ANQA TVHINTD
CIOITHLVMA HO NMAOL



€0CEIT 56
0
$66°608°9

861°€L0°C01

9SBAIIQ(J/3SBaIdU] JUddIdd

9SBAIDJ(J/oSBaIdU] 3B I[N

Y [THN €20C Ad
JuoWRIMbaY ey [[IA +20Z A d

Soxe] AqQ pasiey 2 0} junouwry
doueeq puny Jo uonesrddy
SOXE], UeY} IOU)O SOOINOS WOIJ SNUIAIY

(€2/01/S) IN.LY 2y Aq paaoidde se samjyrpuadxyq

wonemoare) ayey MIA

LITE6v Y

%1766

LSEER0VESY

(Ssuor}o9[[09 Jo 9161 10J pASNIpe) [[IA © JO an[eA

SUON}I3[[0D) JO 318y 104 “[pV - ISV PUBID 1N

SUOT}O[0D) JO ey dFeIoAy
€¢/1/S- vV d 19yge IST'T puel) S[qeXe] 19N

3STT pucis

LIOdNd dISOdOdd STIANLIANAIXYT ¥<0CAA

NOILVINITVI ALVY TTIN
CJOHYHALYM 40 NMAOL



%S'Tt S89°e8Y GST‘9S9'T |vOL'61S‘T  [€L4V'99T‘T  |6V0'6SE‘T 1NJI123INNOD 40 31VIS V101
%195 OEV'ELY TSE'ETET S6V'9ET‘T  |ST6‘EV8 9€8'v66 SINVYO LAOD 1WYINIO - 1D 40 ILVIS - V101
%00 0 186°CC 81T 186'CC TLL'YT (SANN4 @3ND) TT6 AIDNVHNT
%0'T ¥0T‘T 766911 068'STT LSLLTT d1D01
%00 SST'vE SST'vE 0 SST'vE (S123rodd TVdIDINNIAY) AIV-NI-SINVYO TVdIDINNN
%00 86t'6L€ 86'6L€ ¥8E‘€LE 0 TeL's8 LNVYD FHVHS INNIATY IVdIDINNN
%00 SSTvE SST'vE 0 SST'vE S133r0¥d TVdIDINNIN HO4 SLNVHO!
%00 0 0 0 €LE'9E (302110d) SLINVYD 31V1S
%00 0 000'¢T 0TvT 000'¢T 98T‘vT (9SA) SINVYO 31V1S 3aS
%S'T 689t 0TTTCE 0TT'TCZE TEV9TE TEP9TE SAvOoY dIv NMOL
%C6T e'e 1£0'8S 1£0'8S 6CL'8Y 6CL'8Y XV1 AL43d0O¥d SNOILYIINNWINODITIL
%6'S0T L8T0T 00002 €0V'ET €TL'6 989°0% SSINAIYVYdIYd TIAID -LNIWIDVYNVIN ADNIDHINI
%00 0 0 0 SANI4 LHNOD
00T 96T 68T a319vsia-1o1id
000°S 0£8'S 0459 SNVYILIA-431134 XV1
dO¥d AINMO-3LV1S-1011d
dO¥d 1dW3IX3 XVL ILVAIYd-LOTId

%10 (€02) 8L6'STE 181'9T¢E 18T'9T¢E TTT'see 10|1d paJalL
LNIWNY3IAOD TVHIN3O - 1D 40 ILVIS

%C'€ SS2T0T €08‘T€EE 602'€8E 8vS‘TTE €TT'V9E SINVYS NOILYINA3 - 1D 40 31V1S - V101
%00 0 6S€'9 786'S 6S€'9 6599 JYV41IM B HLTVIH
%00 6Tt AR T4 LTTLLE 681°9TE ¥SS'LSE LNVYO ONIYVHS 1S0D ‘a3
NOILY2NA3 - LNJILDINNOD 40 ILVIS

(3sv3yd3a) (3sv3yd3a) vzoz-€20e €z/t/s 40 €20Z Ad vN.LOY NOILdI¥IS3a
/3SV3UINI /3SYIYONI WWO0D3Y 1d3a [SV @3AI3034| a3Nn0UddY r4 4114
3I9ViN3IOYId d¥v1ioda VNLOV 09
vzoz-€20C ¥20Z-€202

NOILI3r0odd INNIAIY

JNN3AIY 1390N9 A3SOd0YUd vZ0¢Z-€20C
aNN4d TVY3IN3IO
QY04¥31LVM 40 NMOL




%0°0 000°00T 950°9€€ 000002 75697 XV1 IDNVAIANOD
%00 785°LT 66178 90£'69 LY LS SNOANVTIIDSIN
0 L9€°L8T TeL'ss (304NOSYIAAI) ONIYVHS 1SOD SHYOM DI1dNnd
%00 000°0TT STT'6L 000°0L 6LLTTT $334 ILSYM AXTNG
i0/AIQ# 0 0 0SZ SAILTYNId WYY
%00 0002, 0002, 1L 334 3SN YYOMLIN "WINOD O1avd NOANOT M3IN
%0°0 0 0 750°s 3193 YHYYIS
i0/NIQ# 000°T 199°CT 0 898 SITDIHIA/LNINCINDA 40 31VS
%00 0 10591 0 09t‘s SLNIINSSISSY NIVIA 4I1LVM
i0/A1Q# 0 9ze 0 0 Advddan
i0/NIQ# 0£6°CTT 6176'LT SANIA ‘SLIAYAd ‘S334 3D110d
%00 6LETT S9TVT 6ST0F /918 S3ANIH 13 SLIWY3A ‘S334 ‘SISNIDI
%0°0 000'00% €TY'81S 000°0S€ 065'€9¥ 401D3dSNI ONId1INg
%0°0 000°S9T 788181 000°SL €8€80C "ININOD SHYVd 8 NOILYIYDIY
%00 000°005°C €V/'SS9'T  |000°0TT 876'TET SLNILSIANI - 1STHILNI
%00 90€T6C ¥8€'9e€ €99°TZE 11TL9e S334 N3IT 8 1STHALNI
LINIINYIAOD TVHINID - SIDYNOS ¥IHLO
%% 0€- (z98‘92) 00S‘T9 Z8€'60T 79€°88 85S'6L NOILYONG@3 V1oL
%9°'69- (0ev's) 00ST ISY'E 06V rEV’9 SNO3ANVTIIISIN ANV LNIY
%00 (zev'en) 00009 1€6'S0T TEv'es veT'eL NOILINL
NOILYON@3 - S3I0YNO0S ¥Y3IHLO
%S Tt S89‘€8Y GST‘959°'T POL'6TS'T  |ELP99T'T  |69L/S8E‘T 1vy3a3d ANV 3LV1S TV.10L
%0°0 0 0 0 0 0zL'9z INIANYIAOD 1vH¥3a3d IVIOL
%0°0 0 0 0 029t ININISYNGINITY VINTA
LNIWNYIAOD TvH3Ia3d
(3sv3ud3a) (3svaud3aa) ¥202-€20¢ €z/1/s 40 €207 Ad VN1V NOILdI¥DS3a
/3SVIYONI VEREBIN] WW0D3Y Ld3a |SV a3AIFD3Y| AINOUddY Te02
I9V.IN3OYAd yv110da VNIOV d09
#202-€202 ¥20Z-€202
NOILD3roYd INNINIY

INN3IAIY 135AN9 A3SOd0Ud 720Z-€20C

aNNd4 TVd3INIo
QYO4Y3LVM 40 NMOL




%8°8S 9¥S‘9LT 9¥S‘9LY 018°9¢€ 00000€ 192°€S S3IXVL HVIA HOIYd
%€ S009ST‘E ¥90c¥6S6 6v9'6¥£'96 |650°/8LC6 |¥00'SY9‘E6 SIXVL YVIA LNIYYND
SAXVL AL¥3dOYd
%9°'tT €78'9Sh 6V EEE'9 980‘6Z9°T  |6ST‘S8ET’E  |0S9'0TH'Y SAXV.L 40 JAISNT1OX3 INNIAIY - IVLOL
%' T- (z98‘92) v62'LL9'Y 78£'60T 989‘TL6‘T |T88‘VC0‘E S324NOS ¥IHLO TVLOL
%0°0 0 Y6LSTOY bZE'€88'T  |€TESH6T INJWNYIAOD TvH3INID TV.LOL
%00 000‘S 000°s 000°S 000°S AQISENS T¥II1YITD 309 9SA
8TT'EL ALISENS 1V1A0LSND 309 Mdd
%0°0 0 0 £S0°96 NOILNGIY1SIA ALIND3I SHIGNIIN VINYID
%0°00T 000°0T 000°0T 6516 S1d13234 31vD 1113N,0 INION3
%0'0 00001 0119 000°S GET'TT SITVS X094 INTA/LUVM VSHIA
%00 0 STO‘T9T 0 S08‘STT SANN4 YIHLO NI YIISNVYL
%00 96T°0T LLT'ST 96.°0T 99t'T€ SIDIAY3S YOINIS
i0/N1Q# 0 0 0009 AQISENS ONILYYIdO FIDONVINGIAY
%00 00005 0€T'SLL 000°SL S8T‘T6 SIVINIY
i0/ANQ# 0 ¥ 0 190°L SIDNVHEINNINT HVIA HOIMd AILVAINDIINN
%00 000°St a4 000°ST v¥8'Sy ONITDAD3Y
%00 000°SLT #90'99T 000002 €6T°88C S334 ONIddIL VIDYININOD
i0/AIQ# 0 0 081'8 $334 N3IT NOISSININOD ALITILN
%0°0 000°SLT QST'veT 000°00¢ 6EV'STT $334 SMYITD NMOL
%00 €8TVS 8YS'TY 00S‘8€ L1608 NOILVAYISNOD 8 VdZ ‘Z'8d
i0/AIQ# 0 0 JYVHS 1S0D TV.LIdVYD FINAT LSV
i0/AIQ# 0 0 STO'L SLNINSSISSY YIM3S
%00 0009 0009 0009 41D NOILYDINNWIANOD T¥YNOIDIY
(3sv3yoaa) (3svayoaa) ¥202-€20¢ €z/1/s 40 €207 Ad 1VN.LOV NOILdIY¥DS3a
/3SVIYONI /3SVIYONI | ININOD3Y 1d3a |SV @IAIFDIY| AINOUddY Te0e
I9VINIOHId yv110d VNIV do09
¥20Z-€£202 #202-€202

3NN3IATY 135AN9G A3SOd0Yd 720Z-€20C

aNN4d TVY43N3Id
QYO4UILVM 40 NMOL

NOILI3rodd INNIAIY




NOILJ3rodd INNIAIY

INN3IAFY 135aN4g d3S0d0Yd ¥720¢-€¢0¢
aNNd TvY3INId
QYO4YILVM 10 NMOL



861°€L0°T01

172°990°01

0ST'8Y1°8
0ST°18C
12L9€9°1

A L A|A

€86°€61VS

V66°TI8°LE

LI9aNd TviOL

901AIAS 192 pue [ende) [ejo],
921AIDS 192 .
armipuadxy SurLnody-uoN pue [ende)) o) s1oysuelr],
sjuewoAoldw [ende)) Jes X juaLIny
:IIAIS 1qa( pue [ende)

198png sunesad( - uonednpy Jo pagoyg

suonerdd() JUIUILIIA0L) [BIIUIL)

€T-AeN-0T
LADANI AIAOUYIIY WL
AVHA TVISIA $T0T-£70C
AAVIANINNS TANLIANAIXH - ANAA TVIANTD
QIOIIALVM A0 NMOL

LADANI ANAA 'TVHANTO
THOATALVM 40 NAAOL



Yol

%bT'E 986°€0T‘E 86T'€L0Z0T |[{zsb'9gs) 0£9%609°z0T  [{0sz'stS) S9vv68°LY 0Z69TT'€0T | 69€'0LEZZ 0 Z12'696'86 9ZS'EVLL6 aNNd Tv¥3IN3D TVLOL

|
%YT '8 {z9£706) Tz2'9900T [0 122'990°01 0 122°99001 TZZ'990°0T 9T0°Lbt'S 0 €85°0L6°0T 690ZTE'ET 3DIAYAS 1930 8 TVLIdVD TV.LOL
%TTET 019°056 0S7'8YT'8 0S7'8¥1'8 0SZ'8VT'8 057°8vT'8 9T0'LYY'S 0 0v9°L6T L €€9'VE6L IDIAY3S 193a 6€T0T
%0€"LL- (v£5°LS6) 0S7'18¢ 0S7'18C 0S7'18C 0S7'18C 0 0 ¥78'8€C'T 799'9CT'T "234-NON %3 dVO OL SNVYL 0vT0T
%TY'SE- (86€7268) TTL9€9T TTL'9€9T TTL9€9T TTL'9E9T 0 6TTVESC vLL'0ST'Y “4dWI TVLIdVD HVIA LNIYYND 8ETOT
13DIAY3S 1830 ANV TV.LIdYD

[
%00t 658780 €86'€6TpS  [(Z£v9ES) GSH'0EL VS |(000°00S) 0 SSp'0€LSS 0 0 vZT°60T°2S Z0L'865°0S SNOILYY3dO 308 1V.LOL
%007 658'780°C €86'€6T S [(zsv'9gs) Ssv'0eL'ys  [(000°00S) SS'0€T'SS 0 0 vZ1'60T7S 70£'865°05 139dN4 SNILYYIJO| 0910T
INOILYONA3 40 advos

|
%9€E'S 680'€26'T v66'ZT8LE |0 v66218 L€ |(0S2'ST) vvz'8z8'LE vv20z8LE €SE'EL6'9T 0 S05'688°SE SSLTEB'EE SNOILYH3IdO 1,A09 TVHINID 1V10L
%Ty'0 06LY T8T'SIT'T T8T'G9TT T8T'S9TT T8T'SIT'T 1€8°08S 0 T6E09T'T 0L0°5€6 AD0TONHO3IL NOILYIWHOANI L¥10T
%10°0- (07) 9€8'65¢7 9€8'65C 9€8°65¢ 9€8'65C 0€S'STT 0 958°65C €98°L8T *1d30 S3I2YNOSIY NVINNH SYTOT
%88'S 05 006 006 006 006 0 0 058 95T NOISSININOD SJIHL3 €¥T0T
%00'0 0 8ETT 8ETT 8ET'T 8ET'T 0 0 8ETC 081 ag 10¥LNOD NOISO¥3 8 004 TYTO0T
%66'T- (806'87) €TS'E€TY'T €CS'ETY'T (058%T) €LE'8EV'T €LE'BEY'T €61°C26 (961°€7) TEV'TSY'T 860 ¥1S'T "WINOD S¥Vd 8 NOILYIHDIY LET0T
%vL'0 79€'L L€8°900'T £€8°900T £€8900'T ££8866 760°€0S 0 S.¥'666 1T7'TL6 AYYY¥E112119Nd QYO4YILYM 9€T0T
%66'T- (298°6) TE9V8Y TE9V8Y TE9V8Y TE9'V8Y STETTT (961°€7) £6V'v6Y 80L'69% NOISSIWINOD SN3ZILID HOIN3S SETOT
%VE"0- (68) 116'ST T16'ST T16'SC TT6'SC ST19T 0 000'9T STT'8T ‘AY3S ONISYNN HL1V3IH J11dnd €€T0T
%61°0 T8 LOV'8YT LOV'8PT LOV'8YT LOV'8YT 97T'8YT 0 97T'8YT [KI444 H11V3H 40 NOILVAYISNOD Z€T0T
%90°9 S€7'S8T 86L'766Y 86.'7667 86L'v66'7 86LV66'Y LYET8LT 0 €95°60L Y 9/9°50Sy LNINLYVdIA SHYOM D119nd 0€T0T
%8T'S 88ETVE 709'0€8°9 709°0€89 709°0€89 709°0€89 TLT'SYEE 0 ¥17'88%'9 T8T'TIT'9 1N3NLYVd3Ia 30110d 6TO0T
%T9'E 86T€CT 8T9TES’E 8T9'TES’E 8T9TESE 8T9TES'E L¥9'878'T 0 0TY'80p'E 8TIV'E S3DIAY3S 314 €7T0T
%bv'T £10'9T €95760°T €95°760°T €95760°T €95760T 005905 0 98%'890T 07€°996 LNIWIOVNVIN ADNIDHINT 27101
%00°0 0 000592 000°59C 000°59¢ 000592 TLT'E 0 000592 €76'19C AJDNIONILNOD TZT0T
%9V [44%2 9TET6 9TE'C6 9TE'T6 9TE"C6 L0LTY 0 76188 L€8'€8 “DSIN/SINYYD "JAS "00S 0¢10T
%88'TT- (4 LT8'6ET LT8'6ET LT86EC LT86€T 7919TT 0 091°CLT 895'€CE S3DIAYIS ATIAVA B HLNOA 6110T
%109 (z€0'6T) 609°26T 609°L6T 609°L6C 609267 TL0'6TT 0 T¥9°9T€ 6EY'TTE INIW1HVd3d ONIQTING 81T0T
%000 0 €06'8T €06'8T €06'8T €06'8T 86L VT 0 €06'ST 16197 "OLN NMOL FAILVINISIUAIY LTT0T
%CETT 0/99T/ LEL'6Y0"L LEL'6¥0"L LEL'6%0°L LEL6%0°L 67'789°€ 0 £90'EEE"9 6€L°85Y'S NOISSIWINOD LNIINTHILIY 9TT0T
%000 0 0TEY 0TEY 0TEY 0TEY [444 0 0TEY 658'C $1v3ddV 40 @4¥v0d ONINOZ STI0T
%00°0 0 052'8T 0S7'8T 052'8T 0S2'8T €LT'T 0 0S7'sT ¥9Y'ET NOISSIWWOD NOILYAYISNOD ¥1T0T
%600~ (v7) Lyy'LT Lyy'LT (oov) Ly8'LT Ly8'LT L9T'8 0 TLV'LT €0TL WWO0J LNIWJ013A3IA JIWONOD3 €1T0T
%86°L S8T'LLE £S8'S0T‘S LS8'SOT'S £S8'S0T'S £S8'SOT'S SOS‘IST'T 0 TL9'8TLy SLT'6L9'% JONVYHNSNI 71101
%18'9 T8€'LS 0/L°668 0LL668 0/.'668 01668 7L9'vEE 6€°9 68€T¥8 666'T8L 3ONVNILNIVIN ONIATING TTT0T
%6V°0 8€T'E 0TZ'199 012’199 0TZ'T99 0TZ'199 €70vTE 0 7L6°LS9 ¥Sv'16S ONINOZ 3 ONINNV1d 0TT0T
%€ 8- (y15°€) STTTST STTTST STTTST S7TTSt L6T€9T 0 6€L'SLT S91°7LT AYI1D NMOL 60TO0T
%000 0 00056 000'56¢ 00056¢ 000562 %5087 T 0 000562 88979¢ ININLYVdIA TvOI1 80TOT
%ST'9 10"y TCL YL TCLLyL 1L LYL L YL 681'SSE 0 60L€0L £08°999 1N3NLYVdIA IONVYNI LOTOT
%89°'€ 97L'L S98°/TT S98°L1T S98°LTT 598°/1T 795'80T 0 6ET0TT £L7'60T ¥01031100 XVL 9010T
%IT'T- (81) 709'T 709'T 709'T 09T STE 0 079'T 8v6 S1v3ddV LNIINSSISSY 40 'ag S0T0T
%S9°CT 08'7€ 8YT76T 8Y176¢ 81761 8Y1T6¢ L8T'EET 0 vE'6ST 580°0v€ HY0OSSISSY ¥0T0T
%ET'S 98%'€ 65T0L 6ST0L 65T'0L 6ST°0L 759'29 0 €£9'99 SE6'Y9 JONVNI4 40 a¥vog €0T0T
%¥9'T 87T 8876/ 881'6.L 881'6/L 881'6L ¥9L'€L 0 078 €S'6L SYILOA 40 SHVY1SIDIY 70101
%00°0 0 509°20T §509°20T 509202 S09°20¢ STLY0T 0 509°20T €0L°9T¢ N3IWLD313S 40 Q¥v0o9g T0T0T
:INFWNYIAOD TVHINID

{(03a)/ont (daa)/oni Q3AOHddY | SINDWIY | Q3AOdddv | SNOWDNa3ly | (€2/12/2) 1S3N03Y €z/t/t (ez/1/1) *d0¥ddV a3anadxa NOILdI¥DS3a AL 3NN
IN3D¥3d | INNOWY HZA4 ALY v20Z/€20Z {408 vZ0Z/€20Z| 3IDONVNI4 Q3IAOHddY | ADN3DV /1d3a | 40 SY SANNON3 SHIISNVEL  |INLY €202/2202 NIV
bZAd aIN0¥ddY | vzoz/€z0Z 40 a¥v0d |SO8 ¥Z0Z/€20Z| ¥Z0Z/€20Z |8 ANIdX3 WNLOV| /IVNOILLIGAY zzoz/reoz
A3IA0¥ddY LY v20z/€202 €20z/220
IAIEM

AYVINNINS TVLINIWNLYVIa :ADN3DV/Ld3Aa

135an4g @IA0UddV vZ0Z - €20T
STUNLIANIX3 ANNL TVHINID
QYO443ILVYM 10 NMOL




%000 0 S09°L02 S09°402 S09°L02 S09°L0Z STL‘P0T 0 §09°£02 €0L°922 V101 IN3NLY¥Yd3a
~
008 008 008 008 008 0 0 0 0 wvioLans
%000 008 008 008 008 008 0 3YNLINYNS 3D1340| 0TOYS
JUNLINYNA
_
%96t LS 02T £02'T L02'T 02T 0ELT 0 0ST’T 0.8 vL0LENS
%0€°6- €6- £06 £06 L06 £06 896 000'T €TL SLNVDI¥ENT 8 S13N4 060€S
%00°00T 0ST 00€ 00€ 00€ 00€ 9L 0ST LST S3TddNS ¥Y3H1O0 020€S
$311ddNS B SIVIYILYIN
_
%0L V- 0SZ°T- 018°€E 018°E 018'c 018°E S€6 0 090°S #99‘s¢ vLoLans
0 08t 08t 08t 08t 0 08t 0 INOHdITAL 0802S
%EVTL- 00S- 00T 002 002 00¢ 0 00Z 0 ISNIJXT I19VSHNAINITY 0£02S
%8L°LT 0S 0€2 0€T 0€T 0€C 64T 08T S NOILYDNA3 8 “4NOD ‘s3ana 0502S
%00°0 0 002°T 002°T 00Z'T 00Z'T L0, 00Z'T 887'T SHIVdIY 8 INOD IDIAYIS 0t02S
%8L V7€~ 008- 00S‘T 00S'T 00S'T 00S‘T 0 00€C 62C'vT $334 TYNOISS340¥d 0€0¢S
%00°0 0 00T 00T 00T 00T 6V 00T LY 319V1S0d 0z0zZS
%00°0 0 00T 00T 00T 00T 0 00T S6 ONISILYIAAY 010ZS
SADIAY3IS
_
%020 €6¢ 88L°T0T 88LT0C 88LT0T 88L°T0C 0S0'Z0T 0 S6E°T0T 691002 vLoLans
%85'T 79¢ 00V VT 00V ¥T 00V ¥T 00V vT 09Z°L 8€0VT TICVI RIE 026TS
%000 0 Sl SL SL SL 0 SL 0 TVDINHIIL/TIVIINTTD 0TZIS
%SC'T 7€9°T L6T'VL L6T'VL L6T'VL L6T'VL SEVLE 5997, w6t NOILVYLSININGY OTTIS
%ES'T- 69- TTL'E TTL'E TTL°E TTL'E 9/8T 08L°E T1L'E NINLDITIS ¥IHLO 0201S
%8E'T- 7€ST- S0£'60T S0€°60T S0€'60T S0E‘60T 6/1'SS L€80TT S0€'60T NVIALDIT3S 15414 0TO0TS
S1S0D TINNOSHId
aseaunu| asea.nu| QInOUddY (gz/st/e) (ez/e/7) 1s3ND3IY | €Z/1/140 | SUIASNVHL ‘do¥ddY | a3an3dx3a NOILdI¥DS3a 3L ANIT
9% panosddy | ¢ panosddy |INLY $Z0Z/€202 JONVNH 40 NIW1D31as40 ag| ADNIOY | SV EINNDON3 | /IvNOlLIaay LY 1VNIOY
LY WLY ag gIaN3INNOD3Y | aIANININODIY /1d3a 8 AN3dX3 €20Z/Tz07 | €20e/ez0T | 220T/TI0T
v20z/g202 ¥20e/€202 ¥20z/€z0z | WNIDV.
N3IW1D313S 40 a¥vod 10101 :ADN3I9V/Ld3a

1390aN4d Ain0YddV 20¢ - €20¢
aNN4 TvYINIO
QHO443LVM 40 NMOL




%b9'T 87T 8816/ 88t°6L 88Y'6L 88Y'6L 9L'EL 0 02°8L TES'6L V101 INJNLYYdIa
_
%00°0 0 T T T T 0 0 T 0 TvL019NS
%00°0 0 1 T T T T ANIHOVIN ONILOA| 08T¥S
ININdIND3
_
%0T°ST TELT ¥8€'6 ¥8€6 ¥8€‘6 ¥8€'6 0 0 €ST‘8 6£6'9 violans
%0T'ST T€TT ¥8€6 ¥8€6 ¥8€6 ¥8€6 €9T'8 6€6'9 S3ddNS ¥IHLO| 0¢0ES
$31NddNS '8 STVIYILYIN
[
%¥8TT 9ZL 78€'9 8¢9 78€9 Z8€'9 T20'LT 0 959's 8.8V vL0LENS
%000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ANOHdI13L 08025
%599 4 10t 0% T0b 10V TTE 9/€ 99¢ ISNIdX3 319VSHNGNITY 0L02S
%YL TT 00€ 089°T 089‘T 089°T 089'T 006 08€'T 09t NOILYINA3 8 “4NOJ ‘SINd 05028
%00°0 0 00ST 00S°C 00SC 0057 000°sz 00SC 0S2'C SYIVdIY 18 "LNOD IDIAYIS 0¥0ZS
%LG°8C 00% 008'T 008'T 008'T 008'T 008 00%'T 06T 319V1S0d 0z02S
%00°0 T T 1 T 1 0 0 0 ONISILYIAQY 010ZS
ERIVED
_
%S0°T- €49~ T2LE9 TZL'E9 TTL'E9 TTL'E9 £vL9F 0 6EV9 STLL9 1violgans
%S0'T- 8P- 87S'y 87S'v 875y 8¢SV LTIE'E 9/5'y L08Y vl 0z6TS
%8TET- STT'T- Se'L Se'L SYEL SYE‘L 79891 0LY'8 ¥06'TT SAILIAILLDY NOI1D313 0ZETS
%6 T 00§ 000y 000Y 000t 000y TLET 00S‘€ LST'E NOILVY1SI9IY YILOA 0TETS
%00°0 0 8v8'LY 8¥8'LY 8Y8'LY 8v8'Ly €6TVC 8¥8'LY L¥8'LY S1VIDI440 @310313 0T0TS
S1S0D TINNOSHId
aseasou| asealou] a3anodddy (gz/s1/¢) (e2/t/2) 1S3N03Y | €Z/1/T40 | SHIISNVHL ‘dOdddY | a3anadx3a NOILdI¥2S3d IFLI AN
% panoaddy | § panoiddy LY JONVNId 40 a9 |N3IWLIDI1AS40ad| AONIOY | SV GINNDON3 | /TVYNOLLIaay INLY 1YNIDV
ALY LY ¥207/€207 | AIANININODIY | AIANIWNODIY /1d3a B AN3dX3 €202/2207 | £20Z/zZ0C | T20T/1207
veoz/€e0e ¥20z/€202 v20z/€202 | 1VNIOV
SY3LOA 40 SHVYLSIDIY Z0T0T :ADN3IDV/1d3a

1395an4d dIA0YddV ¥20T - €20C
anNNd TvdINad
AQY04Y3LVM 40 NMOL



%ET'S 981'e 6ST0L 6ST0L 6ST'0L 6ST0L 6ST°0L 75949 0 €999 SE6'Y9 VL1001 INJINLUVdIa

%00°0 0 St St St [ St €T 0 [ (13 wvioLans
%00°0 0 St St St St St €T % 3 S311ddNS 301440] OTOES
$aI1ddNS B STVI¥ILYIN

%TS 006°C 000°£9 00029 00029 00029 00029 L60°L9 0 00T‘¥9 TS0‘E9 vioLans
%8T'S 00Z°€ 00059 00059 000°59 00059 00059 16019 00819 00529 $334 TYNOISSI40Yd 0£02S
%¥0°ET- 00¢- 000C 0007 000C 000C 000C 0 00£C 1SS ONISILYIAQY 0102S
SIDINY3S

%8T°ET 989 vIiT's VITE VIiT'E VIT'S vIT'e ws 0 87S‘C 6781 vioidans
%T6'€E- 6 12¢ i¥44 |¥44 122 1T 6€ 0€C T€T V'O 0Z6TS
%68°'SC G565 €68C £€68°C €68°C £68°C €68°C €05 86T 8TLT IVDINHDIL/IVIIH31D 0TZTS
S1S0D TINNOSHId
asea.nu| asea.ou| aanodddv (g2/1/€) (e2/1/2) (zz/L/er) | 1sanoay | €z/t/1 40 SYIASNVYL ['dO¥ddV WLY| aIaN3dX3 NOILdI¥DS3a 3L ANIT

% panosddy | ¢ panoiddy INLY JDNVNI4 40 a9 |NIWLOITIS 40 ad| ‘WW0D/ag| AIN3DV | SV 9INNDN3 | /IYNOILIAAY | €202/220T | TvNLOV
LY INLY v20z/€c0e AIaNINWO0I3Y | GIANIWINODIY | AIA0YUddY /id3ia 3 AN3IdX3 €202/220¢ 2202/120C
¥202/€20T ¥202/€202 ¥20e/€eoe | veoe/seoz | VNIV

IDNVNI4 40 ayvod €0T0T :ADN3I9V/1d3a

139aN9 AIA0UddY 20T - €20T
aNN4 Tv¥3INId
QYO4¥3LVM 10 NMOL




%S9°CT ¥08z€ 8Y1°76T 81262 8Y1'26C 8Y1°Z6¢ L8TEET 0 PE6ST S80°0VE TYLOL LNINLYYdIA
0 _
%80°602 6SET 6007 600C 600 600°C 9z 0 0S9 80S'T 1vLoLans
%08°TLT 6S€'T 6S8'T 6S8'T 6S8'T 6S8'T 0 00S STY'T $M009 ONIDIYd 00Z€S
%00°0 0 0ST 0ST 0ST 0ST 9z 0ST €8 $311ddNS YIH1O0 0Z0€S
$31MddNS '8 STVIIALYIA
_
%9€°0T LT6T T6E'TT T6ETT T6ETT T6ETT 50829 000°€L 7976 S90°€0T Tviolans
%¥¥'9S 0£0'T G687 6687 34 GG68°C GST'T G78'T 607'T NOILYONA3 @ “4NOD ‘sInd 0502S
%CE'S SIE 9€7'9 9¢7’9 9€7'9 9€7’9 L6T'T 126°S GLT'9 SHIVd3aY '3 INOD IDIAY3S 0v0zs
0 0S¢ 0S¢ 0S¢ 0S¢ 0S.'8S 000°€L 0ST £58°¢€6 $334 TYNOISSI404d 0£02S
%677 78S 059°T 0S9'T 0S9T 0S9°T 19¢ 890'T 879'T 319V1S0d 0202s
%00°0 0 00¥% 00% 00¥ 00% we 00% 0 ONISILYIAQY 010ZS
SIDIAYIS
_
%b8'TT 815’62 87L8LT 8YL‘8LT 8¥L8LT 8VL‘8LT 9Sv0L (000€2) 0£T'61T Z1S'SET vLoLans
%S3°'TT 860C 608'6T 608°6T 608‘6T 608'6T ov6'y TTLLT ¥0T'ST vOId 07615
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 18T S1143IN39 IONIYA 0T61S
%000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 INILYINO 0T8TS
%799 8IT'V re'99 €99 [4Z%CE Tre'99 8€6'8C 2279 69€°T9 TWDINHIAL/TVII¥IATD 0TZIS
%9L°ET 70€°€T L6S'T6T 165267 165761 L6S'T6T 8/5'9¢ (000°€2) G67'69T 7S9'8ST NOILYYHLSININGY 0TTIS
S1S02 TINNOSH3d
asealou] aseaou] a3aNOHddY (gz/st/¢€) (e2/e/T) 1s3no3y | €z/1/T40 SYIISNVHL ['dOYddV INLY| a3IaN3dX3 NOLLdI¥OS3a NELIANIT
% panoiddy | § panoiddy INLY FONVNI4 40 a8 | NINLDI1IS40ad| AONIOV | SV EINNDNA | /IYNOLLIaAY | €202/TZ0T ALY
LY INLY ¥202/£202 Q3IANININOD3Y | aIANININODIY /1d3a 3 AN3IdX3 €202/2202 2202/1202
veoz/€202 ¥20z/g20e ¥20z/€202 vNivY
HOSSASSY +010T :AON3I9V/1d3d

1395dn9 aanodddv v20¢ - €20¢
anNN4 TvYdINId
QHO443ILVM 10 NMOL




10

%SY'C-

L19

L19

S$1v3addV LNIWSSISSY 40 "ad S0T0T

135aN49 AIN0UddV ¥20¢ - €20¢
[\ ERLAENED]
QYO4¥3LVYM 40 NMOL

:ADN3I9V/Ld3a



11

%89'€ 9TLL S98°LTT G98°LTT S98°LTT S98°LTT 795801 0 6ET'0TT LLT60T V101 IN3NLYVdAd
%000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 vL0L8NS
%00°0 0 0 0 0 0 0 INJINJINDI IDIF40|  090%S
LNINdIND3 301440
[
%Y1 78" {og2) 0S 0S 0S 0S S9T 0 08¢ 6L vLoL8ns
%bT 78" (0g2) 0S 0S 0S 0S Q9T 08¢ 6L S31ddNS 301440 0TOES
$311ddNS '8 STVINILYIA
_
%81°9 £V6'T ZI6°TE 7161 Z16°TE 16°T€ £00°9T 0 69667 TrE6T vLoLans
%6S'S 0S Sv6 Sv6 Sv6 Sv6 0L <68 S8T NOILYDNA3 8 'AINOD ‘SaNd 05025
%0971 9yT 9vTT 9rT'T 9vTT 9vTT S6v 000°T 7L0T dIVd3Y 8 "LNOD IDIAYIS 0v0zZS
%ST'T YT 9Y9'TT 9%9'TC 9%9'TC 9%9°TC 6€9°0T 66£TC €€9°0¢ $334 TYNOISS3d0Ud 0€0ZS
%00°ST 00ST 00S'Z 00S’Z 00S'Z 00S'Z 185V 0009 7999 319V1S0d 0202S
%000 0 G/9 G/9 G/9 /9 8T¢ G/9 63. ONISILYIAQY 0102S
LRI ER
|
%YE'E €109 £06'S8T £06'S8T €06'S8T €06°S8T 76£76 0 0686LT LS86LT vL0L8NS
%YEE LTy TTC'ET TTC'ET TTC'ET TIC'ET L€T9 ¥8L°CT 0€TCT vOd 02615
%000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 JNILYIAO 0T8TS
%TL'S [T9'Y LEV'S8 LEV'S8 LEY'S8 LE€7'S8 v6TTh 028'08 TTT'T8 VDINHIAL/ VOO 0TCIS
%CT'T 696 qST'I8 L] SS4%] GSC'l8 £96'ch 987’98 91998 S1VID1440 310313 0TOTS
$1S0D 1INNOSYH3d
asea.ou| aseasou| GINOUddY (ez/st/¢) (€z/1/2) 153N03Y €Z/1/1 40 SHIASNVYUL ‘do¥ddvY | a3aanadxa NOILLdI¥DS3a AL AN
9% panoiddy | ¢ panoiddy LY JONVYNH 40 agd [NIWLDIT3IS 40 ad| ADNIDY /Ld3a | SV SINNONI B | /TIYNOLLIday ALY VNIV
LY LY v20Z/€20C | GIANIWINODIY | AIANIWNODIY | Z0Z/E20Z |aAN3IdXI IVNIDV| €20¢/eeor | €c0c/eeor | ¢z0z/Teot
¥202/£202 vzoz/€z0z
401231102 XV.L 90T0T :ADN39V/1d3a

139dng aaA0yddV ¥20c - €20¢
anNNd TvYINId
aY0443LVM 40 NMOL




12

%ST'9 Z10'vY TTLLVL TeL YL TeL'LvtL %SC'9 10y TeL YL 68Y'SSE 0 60L°€0L £08°999 TVL0L INJNLEYd3a

%95'76- 866T- STT STT STT %00'0 (866°T) STT 60T 0 €17 0 1vioidans
%9576~ [866°T- STT STT STT %000 (866'T) STT 640C €1T°T JYNLINYNA IDIH40]  OTOVS
LNIWCIND3T 301440

%0S°LE- 00021~ 00002 00002 00002 9%08°LE- {000ZT) 00002 ¥8£°0Z 0 000°2€ 96672 iolans
%0S°LE-  |000°ZT- 000°0z 000°0Z 00007 %0S"LE- (000°2T) 00002 ¥8€'0C 000°Z€ 966'7C S3MddNS 3D1440]  OTOES
$311ddNS B SIVIHALYIN

%60°'vE 8/8'VE 68T'LET 68T'LET 68TLET %60'VE 8.8'VE 68T'LET L9T'LS 0 TIEZ0T 9y8vOT lviolans
%971 0781 65991 65991 65991 %9C°TT 0781 65991 £99'8 6E8VT S95°9T INOHd3 3L 080ZS
%00°0 0 00T 00T 00T %00°0 0 00T 8LT 00T S8 3SN3dX3 318VSHNENIIY 0£0ZS
%88 86C'S TZLTT TZLTT TZLTT %8v°Z8 86C'S TZLTT S80% €Tr'9 VLL'E NOILYONad3 B8 "INOD ‘sInd 0S0ZS
%EV'86 09€%T 60167 6016Y 60167 %EV'86 09€'4T 60167 29TLT 6YLVT 7eL'9T dIvd3Y 8 "LNOD 3DIAY3S 0v0zS
%S9 00v'€ 00¥'SS 00v'SS 00v'SS %S9 00v'€ 00%SS SS6%T 000ZS T09'€S 5334 1YNOISS30¥d 0€0ZS
%IT'8 00€ 0007 000y 000% %IT'8 00€ 000y 0207 00L°E 6607 39V.1S0d 0207S
%00°09-  |00€- 00T 00T 00T %00°09- (00€) 00Z 0 005 0 ONISILYIAQY 0T0ZS
S30IAY3S

%80'% ZET'ET LTI¥'06S L17'06S LTIY'065 %80'% TET'ET LTI¥°065 658'sLT 0 S827295 S96'9€9 1violans
%6€'8T 8159 LS6'TY LS6'TY LS6TY %6E 8T 8159 LS6'TY 606'8T 6EV'SE TZE9E v 0¢6TS
%18 €61 §95C S9S°T S9S°T %18 €61 §95C 0 TLET €08°C SL1143IN38 IONIY 0T61S
%000 0 0597 0597 0597 %00°0 0 0597 orv'T 0597 0ETT JNILYIAO 0T8TS
%EI'TT 795°9T 0EL'LYT 0ELLYT 0ELLYT %EI'TT 79591 0EL'LYT £59°99 99T'TET 60S'LLT T¥DINHO3L/T¥IIHI1D 01ZIS
%ET'0- 697~ 82Z'99¢€ 822°99€ 872°99€ %ET'0- (69v) 827°99€ 0TZ'SLT £69°99€ TyZ'06C NOILVYLSININGY 0TTIS
%ET'T 9z L8767 £87'6T £87'6T %ET'T 9z L8767 EV9vT 19687 19687 S1VID1440 Q310313 010TS
$1S02 1INNOS¥3d
aseanu| sseanul | aInQUddY (ez/er/e) (ez/e1/2) aseaiu aseanou] 1sanoay | €z/1/t40 SYIISNVYL | "dOdddvWLd| a3anNadxa NOILdI¥DS3a NZLI3NN

% panoaddy | § panosddy LY IDNVNIH 40 a8 |NIWLDT1ISH0 ag| %3isenbay $3sonbay AONEDY | SYENNONA | /IVNOLLIGQV | €Z0Z/ez0z VNV
1Y LY bZ0zZ/€202 Q3IanN3INNOD3IY a3IanaININDDIY Jusunsedag jusuedag /1d3aa 8 AN3dX3 £202/2202 2202/1202
v202/£202 vz0z/e20¢ peociecchin Y,

ININLYVdIA IDNVNIS £L0T0T :AON39V/1d3a

135aNg aan0¥ddV v20T - €20t

anNnd TvyINas

QYOJYILVM 40 NMOL




13

%00°0 0 000'56¢ 000'56¢ 000562 000562 - | ¥SO'SYT 0 000567 889°v9¢ 1VLOL LNIWLYVdId
_
%00'0 lo 000'S6Z: 000°G62 000567 000'562 . vso'svT . 0. 000’562, | 889'V9Z 1v10.149nS
%00'86- _ |(006Y) 00T 00T 00T 00T 0 (18¥2) 000's 8 SIIY1D “ISIW 095¢2S
%EE9T 006y 006°VE 006'VE 006'VE 006°€ 081'T€ 181'C 000°0€ 61STE L¥N0D 31v80ud 0bSzSs
%00°0 0 000092 000°09Z 000°092 000092 7LS'STT 000°092 T9T'EEC S3DIAYIS TYNOISSIIOUd 0€02S
: e ERIIVED
oseaiu] | oseasoul | dIAOYAAY (ee/en/e) Aeg/e/d) < sanbay gg/t/1 | osuadSNwAL  ['dO¥ddvWid| d3anddxd “.- . NOLLdI¥DS3a T ETETTH
%panoiddy | gponosddy | LM [ FONYNI4O0. | NIWIDIEISHO | AONIDV/1d3a | 4OSVEINMONI | /IyNOWlaay | €z0z/zzoz | - VALY iRV bR
CoWsd ] e -¥202/€202 | 8 GIANIWNODTY | a8 AIANIWNIODIY | - v20Z/€c0c |8 ONIIXI IVNIDV|  €20Z/ee0T e b 70t 10T
, ; - v20T/ee0T: . veoe/geoe S L e
INIW1HVAIa TvOT1 80T0T *ADN39V/Ld3q

139an4 AIA0UddV 20T - €20T
anNNd TvYINId
qyO4Y3LYM 10 NMOL




<
-

%ES'8- (rrs‘ee) §22'7S¢ §72'7ST STe'TSe §TTTST L67'€9T 0 6ELSLT §9T°2LT 1v1OLl LNIWL¥Vd3Ia
_

%00°0 0 0 0 ] 0 0 0 0 0 1violdns
%000 0 0 0 0 0 0 1N3INdIND3 301440 090%S
IN3NdIND3 3D1440

_

%00°0 0 0S8‘C 0587 0S8°C 0S8‘C 8TZ‘T 0 0S8°C 802°C 1v1i0Lans
%00°0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S311ddNS INTIHOUDIN 062€S
%000 0 00%'T 00v'T 00T 007'T 89¢ 00T 6¥0°T STVI¥ILYN NOILDI13 08z¢€s
%000 0 0S¥'T 0SV'T 0S¥'T 0SY'T 0S6 0S¥'T 6ST'T SIONVNIQHO 0/z€s
%000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S317ddNS ¥YIHLO 020€S
%00°0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $31ddNS 321440 0TO0ES
S311ddNS 3 SIVIYALVIN

%16°'C 0S8 0S.'62 0SL62 0SL°6¢ 0SL‘6C 5998 0 00682 LLS0E 1vLoLans
%000 0 000v7T 000'v7C 000vC 000vT 219 000t GST'SC LIN3IWdIND3 40 TVLNIY 0TSCS
%00°09- (0SsT) 00T 00T 00T 00T 0 0S¢ 14 SOILSILVIS TVLIA 08128
%000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3ISNIdX3T 319vSUNGNITY 0£02S
%00°0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ONILNIYd 0902S
%000 0 0S8 0S8 058 0S8 G€6 0S8 0S8 NOILYDNA3 8 "4NOD ‘sana 0S02S
%00°0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 HIVd3Y 13 "INOD ADIAY3S 0%02S
%000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $334 TYNOISSIH0Hd 0€02S
%00°8C 00L 007’ 00Z'c 00Z'€ 00Z°€ 630'T 00SC 743 39V1S0d 0202S
%80°€C 00¢€ 009'T 009°T 009'T 009°T LTS 00€T 667'T ONISILYIAQY 0T0ZS
SIDINY3AS

%66°6- (79€‘v2) S79'61C S29'6T¢C SZ9'61C §29°6TC PIVEST 0 686'€T 08€'6€T 1vLoLans
%366~ (teL'T) 809°GT 809°ST 809'GT 809'GT LET'0T 6E€LT S0S'ST vrd 0Z6TS
%00°0 0 00T 00T 00T 00T 0 00T 0 JNILYINO 0T8TS
%0L'TC- (088'TT) 6/8'CYy 6/8'TY 6/8'TY 6/8'CY 1Z6'6T 6SL'VS 187'VS TYIINHOAL/IVIIY31D 0TZIS
%TOVT- (6£0TT) 50089 50089 50089 50089 78¢€9L ¥80°6L wo'LL NOILVHISININGY OTTIS
%SE0 9z¢ €€0°€6 €€0°e6 €€0°c6 €€0°¢6 vL8'9% L0L'T6 75€'T6 SIVID1440 @313 13 0TOTS
$1S0D TINNOSHId
aseasou| asea.ou| a3iN0HddY (gz/st/¢) (€2/1/2) 1s3nov3ay | €z/t/t 40 SYIASNVYL ‘d0Y¥ddV a3aanadxa NOILdI¥]S3a INFLI ANIT

% panoiddy | ¢ panoiddy INLY JONVNI4 40 a9 |[NIWIDT1AS 40 ad| ADNIOY | SV 4INNDN3 | /TVNOLLIaay LY TVNLOV
INLY LY ¥202/€202 a3aNaNINOD3Y | AIaNININODFY /1d3a 3 AN3dX3 £€202/220T €202/220C | Teoe/1eoe
¥202/€202 20z/€202 ¥202/€202 |  1WNIOV

AYITO NMOL 6010T :AON39V/Ld3a

135an4g aan0dddV ¢0t - €20¢
(P E LA ENNED)
ad0443LVM 40 NMOL



15

%670 8ET‘E 0TZ‘199 01Z'199 0TZ‘T99 0TZ'199 012199 EV0VZE TL6°LS9 SPT6S TV10L INJALYVdIa
[
%0070 0 ort'T ovr'T orv'T ovt'T vt 0 ovr'T 80T vLoLans
%000 0 ovv'T ovv'T ObP'T ovY'T ovb'T 0 ovv'T 80T *dIN03 '8 FYNLINYNA 3D1440]  090vS
AINJNAINDA D40
_
%00°0 0 095°E 095°€ 095°€ 095°‘€ 095‘€ 96L‘T 095°€ L6TT 1v1019NnS
%000 0 018 018 018 018 018 LLS 018 S9p SLNVDI¥9N1 78 S13nd| 060€S
%000 0 0SLT 0SLT 0SLT 0SLT 0SLC 61C'T 0SL'T ELT S311ddNS ID1440|  0T0ES
S311ddNS B STYINALYIN
_
%VE0 0ST 00'vy 0v' vy 0v'vr 0v'vY Z0v' Y LTS sy 0196T IVL0LENS
%000 0 00T 00Z 00¢ 00¢ 002 0 002 0 ISNIdX3 F19vSYNaINITY| 02028
%00°0 0 oSt 0S¥ oSt oSt oSt (14 oSt L8T ONILNINd| 09025
%ShY 0ST 125 TCSE TTS€ T2SE 12S'E 16€E'T TLEE S6T'E NOILYDNA3 8 "ANOD ‘sand| 0S0zZS
%00°0 0 18L'ST 18L°ST 18L'ST 18L'ST 18L'ST 1087 18L'ST VL9 dIVd3Y 8 "INOD IDIAY3S| 0v0TS
%000 0 000°0C 000°0C 00002 000°0C 000°0¢C 681'C 00007 8TL'S S334 TVNOISSIH0Hd| 0€0ZS
%000 0 oSt oSt oSt oSt (54 9€T (54 88¢ 3I9V1S0d| 0207s
%000 0 000'% 000 000 000 000y TOE'T 000Y TLE'S ONISILYIAQY| 0T0ZS
SADIAY3S
[
%S0 880°€ 808‘TT9 808°TT9 808TT9 808719 808‘TT9 SLOVIE 0TL‘809 6£5/695 1v1018NS
%150 0ce 8LYV'EY 8LV'EY 8LV EY 8LY'EY 8LY'EY €96'0C 8SCEY 9/6°LE voTd| ozets
%19°9C- (£112) 8€8'S 8€8'S 8€8'S 8€8'S 8€8'S €08 5S6°L €18°¢ SLI4INIE IONIY4| 0T6TS
%000 0 ¥91°9 ¥919 919 ¥919 919 209 ¥91°9 8STC JNILYINO| OT8TS
%61'€E 16%'S €9°79T €9°79T ¥€9°291 €979T ¥€9°79T 6vE'LL E€YT°LST 660'6ET TVDINHOIL/IVOI31D| 0TTIS
%8T°0~ (90S) TT¥'28C TTP'C8C TT¥'78C TTH'C8C TT¥'78C 1SS 7T LT16T8C TV LLT NOILDIdSNI| 0ZTTS
%000 0 €87'TTT €8C'TTT €8C'TTT €8CTTT €87'TTT £08'69 €8CTTT 757601 NOILVHLSINIAQY| OTTTS
S1S0D 1INNOSYH3d
aseasu| asea.ou] QINOUddY. (e2/8/¢€) (ez/z/2) (zz/6Z/T1) | 1SIND3IY | €2/T/T40 | SHIASNVYL ‘dodddvy | aaanadxa NOILdI¥2S3a NALI
% panoiddy | $ panoiddy INLLY JONVNIH 40 NIWID3ITIS40 ad| 'IWWOD/ag | ADN3IDY | SV EAINDN3 | /IVNOLLIaay LY VALY aNn
LY ALY vZ02/€207 |ag GIANININODIY | AIANTNINODIY | QIAOHAIY /1d3a B AN3dX3 €202/220C | £e0z/TeoT | czoe/ieoT
¥20zZ/€202 20z/€202 vzoz/szoz | vzoz/szoz | 1vnlovw
NOISSININOD DNINOZ 8 ONINNV1d 01101 :ADN3DV/1d3a

135ang AIN0YddV #7202 - €20C
aNN4 Tv4INaId
QYO4Y3ILVM 40 NMOL




16

%189 T8E'LS 0.L668 0£L°668 0LL668 04£'668 7L9'PEE Z6£°91 68EZv8 666'T8L TVLOL INJWLHYHIA
_
%0070 0 000‘s 000°S 000°S 000'S 0 0 000°S SLTTT IvLOLENS
%000 0 000°S 000°S 000°S 000°S 0 000°S QLTTT SINIWIAOUJINI ONIATING]  0£0SS
SLNIWIAOUdINI
_
%00°0S 0007 0009 0009 0009 0009 780° 0 000 €SLL 1v1018ns
%00°0S 000C 0009 0009 0009 0009 780°€ 000'% €SLL S3MddNS ¥IH1O|  0Z0€S
$31ddNS '8 STVIHILYIN
_
%8L'L Z6£°8S 87£608 87E‘608 87£'608 8v£'608 VELT6T Z6E9Y 9560SL 905589 1vLoLans
%00°0 0 SLL'TT SLL'TT SLLTT SLLTT 7€0°9 SLLTT €207 ¥amas|  ozres
%000 0 STL'ST qeL'sT STL'ST STL'ST L18'9 STL'sT YTyt yalvm|  ottes
%000 0 8/7'86€ 8.T'86¢ 8/7'86€ 8.7'86¢ €65'10¢C 8.7°36€ 75¥'99¢€ ALDIM1ID31E| ootzs
%000 0 000°0€T 000°0€T 000°0€T 000°0€T STE'8E 000°0€T G0S'STT SYD IV¥NLYN/1I0 13nd|  060ZS
%ESTE 76£'8S 0LS'€vT 0LS'EvC 0LS'€vT 0LS‘E¥T LT6'SE 76€9Y 8/1'S8T 780°09T SYIvdIY 3 "LNOD IDIAYIAS|  0vozs
%000 0 0 0 0 0 0 020°T ONISILYIAQY|  0TOZS
SADIAYIS
_
%S9°€E- (tT0'€) 6L 6L 6L el 958'6€ 0 EEV'C8 S9S°LL vL0LENS
%L €- (6T2) 6€9'S 6£9°S 6€9'S 6€9°S 8TL'T 868'S 06£°S vord|  0z61S
%000 0 SL L Sl [ 0 [ €9 SLI4ANIG IONI4|  016TS
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 JNILYINO|  OT8TS
%S9°¢€- (z6L2) 80L'€L 80L'EL 80L'€L S0L'EL 8ET'LE 00S°9L AR YOLVYNIQYOO0D SAILNDV4|  0vTTS
S1S0D 1INNOSH3d
asealouj asealou| aino¥ddy (ez/0z/¢) (ez/e1/) 1$3n03Y €2/1/1 40 SUFISNVYHL ‘dOdddY | aaanadx3a NOILLdI¥DS3a WLl
% panoiddy | § panoiddy INLY JDNVNIL 40 ag NINLDITIS | AONIDY /Ld3a| SV SINNDNE | /1VNOlLIday INLY IWNLIOY AN
WLy LY ¥20Z/€202 | AIANINNODIY 410 agd ¥20Z/€202 8 AN3dX3 £202/2202 £202/T20Z | TT0T/T20T
#202/£202 a3aNIININODIH IVNLOY
¥z0z/£202
INVNILNIVIN ONIGTING 1TT0T :A\DN3I9V/1d3a

135an9 aIA0UddV #20¢ - €20¢
anNnd 1vdINIos
Qy0443ILVM 10 NMOL




17

00z | v67°0C FONVUNSNI 34|
%IT ST 750G 750G 668°C ALIEVSIa WY3L ONOT
%OTE TEV60T | 1€v'695°€ TEV'695 € TEV695 € %9T'E TEV'60T TEV69S€  |€cL'89C 000097’ |€958SVE JUVOHLIVAH 15225
%000 0 00002 00002 00007 %0070 0 00002 780¢C 000°0C 12071 35VH3A00 T1811DNa3a 05728
%000 0 00001 00001 00001 %000 0 00001 78707 00001 0876 NOILVSNIdNOD INIWAOTININN ovzes
%0 8Y 090ZvZ | 8€L09L 8€2°09L 8EL°09L %01 87 090°L¥¢ 8€L°09L SVl ILy 8L9€TS 6v1'967 {dv) AL43d0Yd/OLNV/ALAIEYI] T0C¢s
%I8C T€9'61 9Ev'STL 9Ev'8IL 9Ev'8IL %18 C TE96T 9Ev'8IL V6V 78E 508860 616229 NOILVSNIJNOD SEINOM 002¢S

FDNVUNSNI

139an49 AIA0Y¥ddV ¥Z0T - €20T

[ IERLAENED]

QYO4YILVM 40 NMOL

:ADN3DV/1d3a



18

‘ININOD LN3IWdOT3IAIA JIWONOD3

1390aN49 A3A0¥ddV 20T - €T0T

[ ERVEENED)

QY04Y¥3LVM 10 NMOL

9000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S317ddNS 321440 010€S
%0005~ 00T 00T 0ot 00T 00T 00T 0 00¢ 0 S3ISNIAX3 F19VSHNGINITY 0£07S
%000 0 00¢ 00¢ 00¢ 00¢ 00¢ 0 00z 0 ONILNIYd 0902S
%59°ST 9/5T LY9'TT Ly9TT (oov) Ly0'CT Ly0TT Ly0'TT 2918 TL0°0T €0T'L 'ONA3 B *4NOJ ‘sand 0S0¢s
%000 (000T) 000°ST 000°ST 000°ST 000°ST 000'ST 0 0009T 0 $334 T¥YNOISS340dd 0€0Zs
%000 0 0 0 0 0 0 S 0 39V1SOd 0z0Zs
%0005~ (009) 00s 00s 00S 00S 00s 0 0007 0 ONISILYIAQY otocs

€TT0T :ADN39V/1d3a




19

0
%000 0 009 009 009 009 009 STE 009 SLe *JNA3 R 'ANOD ‘sand|  0S0TS
%000 0 000CT 000CT 000ZT 000'CT 000ZT 0 000ZT 000T SIDIAY3S ONINNVId| TEOCS
%000 0 00S€ 00S'€ 00S'€ 00S'€ 00S°€ 0 00S°€ 0 SIDINY3S TYNOISSIH0Ud| 0€0CS
%000 0 SCT SCT SCT SCT Scl 69 SCT 8 39VISOd| 020cs
%000 0 00ST 0057 00S'T 00ST 00ST 68L 00ST SOT'T ONISILYIAAY| 0TOCS

NOISSIWINOD NOILYAYISNOD

vitot

:ADN3I9V/Ld3a

135dn9g dIA0UddV ¥202 - €20C
aNN4d TVY3IN3ID
QYO4YILVYM 40 NMOL



20

I S3MddNS 301340 Ioswm‘

5003 N0D SINa
091 91T 39V1SOd 0c0¢s
00L'€ £99C ONISILYIAAY 010¢S

%00°0 0 091 09T 09T 091 091 99

00L°€ 00L'E 991

STT0T :ADNIDV/1d3a

S1v3iddV 40 AdvOod ONINOZ

135dn49 AdiA0UddV #20T - €20¢
(L [DERLAELED]
QY0443LVM 40 NMOL



1
N

SOE'8SY'T 60ETLL
(s08‘0v) €6/'€6€ €6.'€6€ €6L'€6€ €6L'€6€ €6L'€6€ 60L'62¢ 865 VEY 059°7LE SLI4IN39 H1TV3H 3391L3Y|  SP6TS
€58'3¢EY T61°020°S 161°020°S T6T°020°S T61°020°S T6T°020°S £91°STTT 8EETBSY  |LLLTvTY SNOILNGIYLNOD NOISN3d| Ov6TS
879 8vv'LLT 8y’ LLT 8y’ LLT 8vv'LLT 8vY'LLT LEST6 0T8'ELT €00°TLT 3SV3SIA 18V3IH /NOISNILYIJAH|  0€6TS

NOISSIWIWOD LNJW3YIL3Y

9T10T

139an9 AIA0YddV 20T - €20C
aNNd Tv¥3INId
QYO4¥3ILYM 40 NMOL

:ADN3IDV/Ld3a



N
N

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 violdans
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S311ddNsS 301440 0TOES
S3ITddNS B STVIHALYIN

%0070 788°CT 76871 758°CT 758°CT 7S8°CT 7581 ~JNa3 ‘'SIONFWIINOD 'sand
05 05 0S 05 0S 0 0 3DVISOd| 070cs
0009 0009 0009 96T 0009 SYEE ONISILIIAAY| 010¢S

%000

L1T0T :ADN39V/1d3a

ONILIIN NMOL JAILVLINISIHIY

135an49 diA0¥ddV v20T - €20T
ANN4 TvY¥3INID
QYO4Y¥3LYM 40 NMOL



23

%10°9- (zeo‘eT) 609'L62 609262 609462 609°L6C ZLO'6TT 0 T¥9°9TE 6EV'TZE TYLOL LNINLYYdIA
_
%TL 0E 88T 008 008 008 008 0 0 Z19 STT Tvioigns
%CL°0E 88T 008 008 008 008 0 719 STT ININdINDI 301440  090%S
LINININD3
_
%80'TY 596 89T 8SZ'€ 8ST‘€ 8S2’E EIP'T 0 €62 0Ly 1vL0L8NS
%T6°E- (5€) 858 858 893 858 LVE €68 L8€ SINVDIMEN1 8 S13Nd| 060€S
%EVTL 000°T 00t'T 00t'c 00t'T 00%C 9901 00¥'T €8 S3MddNS 301440  0TOES
$311ddNS '8 STVIYILYIN
_
%6T°89T LL6'ST 09Z°0€ 09z°0€ 092'0€ 09z'0€ T80°ZT 000'SE €87'TT L£8'S 1YLOLENS
%000 0 08%'s 08%'S 08t's 08'S Z0€Y 000'S 08%'S 1817 NOILYONA3 8 “4NOD ‘sand| 0S0ZS
%LT8- (€£2) 0£0°e 0€0°€ 0€0°s 0€0°€ €90T €0€’s €8T SYIVd3Y 3" LNOD IDIAYIS| 0v02ZS
%£9°995¢ 0SZ'6T 000°0Z 0000T 00002 0000T 789°S 000°0€ 0S. TLT S334 TYNOISSIH0Ud| 0£02ZS
%00°0 0 000'T 000°T 000'T 000°T 61S 000'T vET'T 3I9V1SOd| 070zZs
%00°0 0 0SL 0S. 0S. 0SL SIS 0SL 899 ONISILYIAAQY| 0T0TZS
SADINYIS
_
%S6'Z1- (zot'6g) 162°€92 T62°€92 T62°€92 162°€9C 8/5'S0T {oo0°s€) €S1°20€ LTOOTE violgns
%C0°ET- (66£2) 569'8T 569'8T 569'8T 5698t 1169 61’12 0L£TT vold| 0Z6TS
%EY'T6- (00¥'2) See 44 544 T44 0 579'C vLY'T SLI4IN3I9 IONIY4| 01618
%000 0 0T'T 70T'T 01T 7011 0 0T'T 0 JNILYIAO| 0T8TS
%9T°6T- (8st'ce) VLTTYT VLT TYT PLT'TYT VLT TYT 9eL'Ly (000‘s€g) 7E9'VLT LE6°LTT NOILD3dSNI| 0ZTTS
%610~ (s0S) S60°70T S60°70T S60T0T S60°20T T€60S 00920T 9¢7'v9T NOILVYISININGY| OTTIS
$1S02 TANNOSYH3d
asealnu] aseasnu| a3aN0¥ddY | IONVNI4 40 ag NETTRERER 153Ny €Z/t/t 40 SYIISNVHL ‘d0¥ddY | a3aanadx3a NOILLdI¥DS3d L
% panoiddy | ¢ panouddy INLY a3anNannoDIY 40 ag ADNIDY SY dINNDN3 | /1VNOLLiday LY TVNLOV INIT
LY LY ¥202/€20C #202/£20C QIanN3NINODTY /id3a B ANIdXT £202/220T €202/720T | TT0T/120T
¥202/€202 ¥20z/€202 VNIOV
IN3IWLYVdIa BNIATNg 8TT0T :ADN3I9V/1d3a

135an49 dIA0yddV vZ0¢ - €20¢
anNNd 1vydINId
Qy0443LVM 10 NMOL




24

%88’ TT- (ese‘ze) | Lezg'6ET £T8'6EC LT8'6ET LT8'6ET Z9T'91T 0 09T2LT 89G°€Z€ 1v.LOL LINIWLYVYdaa
_

%81 9v 876'€T 856°EY 856'El 85S6°Eh 856'Eh TE9'ET 0 0T0°0E €498'sE vioLdns
%0L'36 8¥6'E 86 8v6'L 8¥6'L 86 126'T 0007 LYE'Y SINVYD0Yd 08€TS
%00°0 0 002C 002'C 002°C 002t 756 002'C €6€C INOHdI1AL 0802S
%00°0 0 0SS 0SS 0SS 0SS GLS 0SS 0SS NOILYONAa3 8 ANOD ‘sana 0502S
%00°0 0 090'T 090°T 090°T 090'T 34 090°'T PEET SYIVdIY ' LNOD IDIAYIS 0v0ZS
%St SY 000°0T 000Z€ 000°Z€ 000Z€ 000Z€ 069'6T 00022 886'9¢C $334 TYNOISSI404d 0£02S
%00°0 0 002 002 002 002 6T 002 v 319V1S0d 020TSs
SADINY3S

_

%TT 6T~ (t8z‘or) | 698'S6T 698'S6T 698°S6T 698'S6T 0£S5°C6 0 0ST‘THe STL'L8T 1vLo19ns
%TT6T- (68Z°¢) 6T6'€T 6T6'€T 616'€T 6T6'ET T0T9 807'LT 966'ST VoI 0¢61S
%00°0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 19% JNILYINO 0181S
%65 - (ooz'te) | €S0ty €50y €50°CY €50CY 0S8T¢ €sT’sL TIEVIT IVIINHIAL/AIVDIHTTD 01Z1S
%LLL- (z62'tT) | £68°6ET £68'6ET £68'6ET L68'6ET 6/5'79 689'TST 9¥6'EPT NOILVYLSININGY 0TTIS
S1S0D TINNOSHId
asealnu| |aseanu|s| aIAOUdY (e2/9/¢€) (ez/t/2) 1sIno3ay | €z/r/t 40 SHYIASNVYUL ‘doYddV a3ianadxa NOILdI¥DS3a INALI ANIT

% panoiddy | panosddy LY JONVNI4 40 a9 | N3IWLD31IS40ad| AONIODY | SV 9NNDN3 | /TVYNOLLIAaY LY VNLOV
LY WLy ¥20Z/€20Z | QIANIWWNODIY | aIANINWODIY /1d3a 3 AN3IdX3 €202/220T | €20Z/zZoe | Teoz/teoc
#20Z/€202 vz0z/€20C ¥20Z/€202 | 1vN1OV

SADIAYIS ATINVA B HLNOA 6TT0T :ADN3DV/1d3aa

1350aN49 AIA0YddV ¥20¢ - €20¢

aNN4d TVYINID
QYO4Y3ILVM 40 NMOL




25

%L9't Y 9TE'26 9T£Z6 9TET6 9T£26 9TEC6 LOLTY 0 761°88 LEB'E8 V101 INJFNLYYdIa

%TT'9 00Z°T 00502 00S°0Z 00502 00502 0050 00S°ZT 0 00£°6T 00897 wiolans
%00°00T 000°T 000T 000T 000°T 000°T 000°T 0 0 000T 2300VS 96585
%000 0 005°L 00SZ 00SL 00SZ 00SL 005 005 000S Y3LNID ALIVLISOH SSITFNOH IN 96585
%000 0 0087 008T 008T 008°T 0081 0 0087 008°T LNDI1DINNOD N¥3LSVI 40 D8V FHL 0Sv8S
%000 0 0008 0008 0008 0008 0008 0008 0008 00Z°Z SIDIAYIS ATINVA 8 ALINNININOD Q3LINN ovv8s
%00°0T 002 002T 002C 002T 002°C 002°C 000C 000 0081 AL3ID0OS TYIIMOLSIH a41M 0vEsS
S3IDNIDY IAISINO OL SNOLLNFI¥LNOD

%vTH 6T 918°TL 918°TL 9T8TL 918°TL 918TL L0TYT 0 76889 LEOLY wvLoLans
%000 0 008 008 008 008 008 LSV 008 019 NVINOLSIH NMOL 9¥97S
%000 0 00S°T 00S°T 00ST 0057 00ST 0 00S°T 00ST DNI 1D1¥151a NOILVAY3SNOD LD N¥31Sv3 S¥97S
%089 715 LLY'6€ LLY'6E LLY'6E LL¥'6E LLY'6E 0 S96'9€ 888'a¢E 1v3s ¥v97S
%000 0 0059 0059 0059 0059 0059 0059 0059 0059 S3YNLNS 34VS €¥97S
%TLT- ¥S- ov6'T ov6'T ov6'T 0v6'T ov6'T 66T 766'T 6€6'T T9T 1V 8 666 ‘€459 1SOd "M'A'A 6€97S
%000 0 0S¢ 0S¢ 0S¢ 0S¢ 0S¢ 0S¢ 0S¢ 0S¢ SNVYILIA NVIIYIAY a318vsIa 8€97S
%00°0T 0SS 0509 0509 0509 0509 0509 0 00S°S 000°S VOOANL 9€9ZS
%000 0 00t 0ot 00v 00% 00 SL 00v STT NOISSIAIINOD S31143d0dd JIYOLSIH GE9TS
%000 0 ¥92°0T ¥92°0T ¥9.°0T ¥9.°0T ¥92°0T S9.°0T ¥9L°0T SEL'0T (90225) SLNIWNYIAOD 40 TIDNNOD 1D 1D3S ¥€975
%96°66- 667C- T T T T T 005C 005 00SC HSI4TIFHS FNAT LSYI/QHO4¥ILYM €€92S
%TTOVT 44 YETY vETY YETY YETY vETY 12LT T2LT 000C NOISSININOD HSIHTIIHS QHO4¥3LYM 06575
SADIAYIS
aseasou] asea.u| Q3N0UddY (e€z/9/¢) (ez/1/7) (ez/61/T) | 1S3nD3Y | €2/1/T40 | S¥IISNVYL | 'dO¥ddV | a3IANIdX3 NOLLdI¥DS3d WAL AN

% panouddy | § panosddy ALY JDNVYNI4 40 ag NETTIRERE ININQD/a8 | AONIDY SV SINNON3| /IVNOLLIGaY ALY IWNLDY
LY INLY ¥20Z/€202 | AIANININODTY 40 ag a3INOYddY /id3a | B aN3dx3 | €e0z/Teor | €20Z/TeoT | TZoz/120T
¥20z/€202 GIANTNINODIY | ¥20T/€20Z | be0z/€20z | VNLIDV
¥z0z/£20T

JSIA/SLNVYHD DIAYIS TVIDOS 02101 :ADN3DV/Ld3a

1390N9 AIN0¥ddV ¥20T - €20
aNN4 TVY3INID
QY0443LVM 10 NMOL



26

%00°0 0 0007592 00059z 000°59¢ 000592 ©000°592 TLZE 0 000592 “ET6'T9C V101 INJWLNVAIa
%00°0 [ 000997 000592 000759C | 000’9z 7000592 T's 0 000592 €26'T9¢C 1vioi8ns

%000 0 000592 000'592 000592 000'592 000'59¢ TLTE 000592 €26'19¢ — >u2mwz_h28_ 01065
SNOINVTIAISIN
Sseanu] ssesnul | dINOHddY . Aee/t/e) oo legftfe)y o | efifery | asInoay | ge/r/rd0 SHIISNVHL | 'dOuddv | GIANIE NOILdINDSIa WALEINI

%Panoiddy | $panoiddy | - NIM | ADNYNHAO | CNAWIDTHESHO | IWNOD/Q8 [ AONFDV /1dIA| SYEINNONI’R | /IVNOLLIGQY | ALY TvNIdY e o

Wiy WL v702/£207 | 09 QIONANINIODFY | a8 GIANININOIIY | QINOUddY | ©20Z/EC0Z | ANIXITVNLOV | €20z/ce0e | €z0e/zeoe | teoe/teoT
; G . beor/ecoe | veog/eeor - loveoefgeoe f o i b e e S e

ADNIONILNOD TZT0T :ADN39V/1d3d

1390aN9 QIA0UddY ¥Z0T - €20T
ANNd TVYINTD
GYO4YILYM 10 NMOL




%bir°'C LL0°9T €95760°T €95v60°T €95760°T €95760°T | 005905 0 981'890‘T | 0ZE‘996 1v1OL INIWLYVIIa
[
%00°0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6ELT v10.19NnS
%000 0 0 0 0 0 6€L'T INIWdINDI ¥3LNID HOLVdSIa| 0Z1T¥S
INJNdIND3
|
%00°0 0 0TE‘S OTE‘E OTE‘E 0TE‘SE 970‘T 0 OTE‘E 706 vLio1ans
%00°0 0 00% 00t 00% 00t ¥SC 00% 0 S3AddNS 1v2190101avy 0€TES
%00°0 0 009 009 009 009 0 009 8t S3AddNS Y3L1IHS 0CTES
%00°0 0 0£0T 0£0°T 0£0°T 0€0°T 89¢€ 0€0°T 98¢ SINVDI¥ENT 8 $13N4 060€S
%000 0 0£0‘T 0£0T 0£0°T 0£0°T 11T 0€0°T oLy S31ddNS ¥3IHLO 070€S
%00°0 0 0S¢ 0S¢ 0S¢ 0S¢ €6¢ 0S¢ 0 $3ddNS 301440 0TOES
S3IddNS 8 STVI¥ILYIN
[
%S0°0T- (¥8s‘0T) 79Lv6 7976 79L76 79Lv6 8L5°61 0 9vE‘SOT 990°TS v.Loians
%00°0 0 0029 0029 0029 0029 0 0029 0 IDNVNILNIVIA HOLVYINID STPZS
%8€'9 ore 000t 000y 000t 000t 98T 09.°S 7SL'E IDNVMOTIV DNIHLOTD HOLVdSIa 0L£2TS
%00°0 0 009°C 009°C 009°C 009°C - 65T 009°C 910'C DY3INT 8 DNAT ONINIVYL 00€2S
%L0°LC- (089°2) 889°0C 889°0¢ 889°0C 889°0C 0£€9°0T 89€°8¢ ¥S51C INOHdI 1AL 08025
%00°0 0 00T 00T 00¢ 002 4 002 6¢ ONILNIYd 09025
%ET0- (T9) €€6'TC €€6'TC €€6'TC €€6'TC €67°E ¥86°TC L69°E NOILYONA@3 8 “4NOD ‘sana 05028
%EL'L- (€60°€) T¥6°9€ Tv69€ T¥6'9€ T¥69€ 0TEVE ¥€0°0Y ¥08°6T dIVd3Y 8 INOD 3DIAYIS 0v0zS
%000 0 000°T 000°T 000T 000T 868 000T £0T $334 TYNOISSI40Yd 0€02S
%000 0 000°T 000°T 000'T 000T 0 000'T L 319V1S0d 0202S
%00°0 0 00T 00¢ 002 00¢ 0 00¢ 0 ONISILYIAAY 0102ZS
SADINY3AS
[
%C8’€E 1999€ 16v°966 167966 16v°966 164966 968SSY 0 0£8'656 T19'CT6 1vL0189ns
%LT'E 0/TC TeL'oL Lo eLoL eLoL EVSTE 75589 vL'T9 Vol 076TS
%09'€ 74 SEEL SEEL GEEL qEEL STP'T 080°L 969°T JINILYIAO ONINIVHL 0€81S
%00°0 0 008T 008'T 008T 008T 0 008°T 0 TINNOSY3d ADNIDYINI £78TS
%900~ (€8) LYSVET LVSYET LVSVET LVSYET LES'STT 000°0S 0£9VET 0LE'EVT ANILYIAO HOLVdSIa 0181S
%38t 96€CE £91°S69 £91°S69 191569 £9/669  |£0Z'%9T (000°0S) TLE'€99 ¥/8€79 JAINNOSY3d HOLVdSIa ovvTS
%00°0 0 00€C 00€C 00€C 00€C 0 00€C JAILNIDNI NOILYINAI HOLVdSIa oveTS
%Try ¥ST 0v9’s 0r9‘s 0v9°e 0v9‘e G89°T 98t'c ¥10E TVDINHDAL/IVIIHT 1D 0TZIS
%ST'T 69L°T 08€08 08€°08 08£°08 08€08 66101 119°8L €16'8L NOILVYLISININGY 0TTTS
$1S0D TINNOSH3d
aseasu| % [ aseasou) a3anodddv (€e/1/¢) (€e/t/2) 1S3N03Y | €2¢/T/T40 | SYIASNVHL ‘do¥ddv | d3aanidx3 NOILdI¥DS3a WAL ANIT
panouaddy | ¢ panoaddy | NLY 20Z/€20Z| FONVNI440ad [NIWLDITIS40ad| AINIOV | SV AINNDONT | /IVNOLLIQaY LY VNLIOV
N1y LY d3IaNIWINGDIY | AIANIWINODIY /1d3a 8 AN3dX3 €702/TT0T | €T0T/Teoe | Zeoz/1eoT
vzoe/eeoz 202/£202 ¥20e/ec0z | 1¥NIDV
INJFWIDVNVIN ADNIDYINT [441]4 :A\DN3I9V/1d3a

1395ang aiA0UddV 20t - €20¢
aNNd 1v4INID
QY0443LVM 40 NMOL




%0T°6 90S‘LL 550626 §S0°626 §50°6Z6 §S0°626 0z'ses 0 6vS1TS8 6ST'TI8 1v1019nS
%000 0 0056 00S‘6 005'6 0056 656"V 00S°6 687'ST SHIVd3Y 8 "INIVIA YOLVYINID 76€1S
%000 0 000'% 000'% 000v 0007 002'T 0007 002'T SIDIAYIS ONILSIL dINNd LBETS
%00°0 0 5286 578'6 5786 5786 0 5786 0 SYHIVd3d ANV ONILSIL ISOH 6/£TS
%S €- (000‘¢) 00018 000v8 00078 0008 80L'€E (000v) 00028 LTL'TL IDONVYNILNIVIA DNIA1INg 8/€TS
%St'8 ovL 0056 0056 0056 00S'6 YEETT 0007 09.°8 Z0T1°0T SYIvd3IY LLETS

R ONILSIL SNLVHVddY ONIHLVIHE

%98 - (00s'1) 000'C 000C 000 000C 0 00S°€ I8y SHIVd3Y '@ ONILSIL IIMNVYAAH 9/€TS
%000 0 008°L 008°L 008°L 008°L 0 008°L LLTL SYIVd3IY '8 ONILSIL ¥3AAV SLETS
%000 0 005°L 005°L 005°L 00S‘L 9TV 005°L o’L NOISIAT13L 319VD YLETS
%00°0 0 009°S 009°S 009‘s 009°s 858 009°s €66°E SvD d1 €L€TS
%990~ (v€6) 000°0%T 000°0¥T 000°07T 000°0¥T €TT6ET Y€6'0VT 0891 IDNVYNSNI TLETS
%£9'99 00S 0SZ'T 0SZ'T 0SZ'T 0S2'T axs 0SL L£8Y 3D110d 3414 TLETS
%E9'C 00S 005'6T 00S'6T 005‘6T 00S'6T €6v°9 00061 8/1°0C IDONVMOTIV ONIHLO1D 0L£TS
%EE T 008°c8 000‘T#S 000‘T#S 000'T¥S 000'T#S SL¥'0LT 002°'LSY 908'0S¥ SINVHAAH 40 TVIN3Y 0zZ€TS
%00°0 0 000°0T 000°0T 000°0T 000°0T SY9°T 000°0T 61G°L SNOILVYNIAVX3 0TETS
%00°02- (000°T) 0007 000y 0007 000y ¥9v'E 000°S 8vT'T SSINIFYVYMY ALI4VS DIdand 062¢S
%00°0 0 00S'8T 00S°8T 00S'8T 00S°8T 66£6 00S'8T 76091 INOHdITIL 0802S
%00°0 0 00S'T 00ST 00S'T 00S'T 6L 00S'T Yiv ISNIdX3 319vSHNAINITY 02028
0S 00T 00T 00T 00T [T 0S €1 ONILNIYd 0902S
%00°0 0 008'9¢ 008°9€ 008°9¢ 008°9¢ €96°ST 008‘9¢ 0Sv'vE *JNA3 13 SIONIYIINOD ‘s3na 0502S
%00°0 0 0€S°eT 0€S°eT 0€S‘ET 0€S’eT S20°L 0€S‘ET €€0°2 SYIVdIY '® LNOD "AY3S 0v02S
%9/ "6€- (059°T) 00SC 00SC 00SC 00SC 0SL 0STV €59°C $334 TYNOISSIH0¥d 0€02S
%00°0 0 0S¢ 0S¢ 052 0S¢ 00T 0S¢ ST 319V1S0d 0202S
%000 0 00t 00% 00% 00t 0 00% 6ST'T ONISILYIAAY 0102S
SADIAYIS

%66'T 79T'sy €9L'VTET | €9L'VTET €9L'vTEC €9L'VTET 990‘SST‘T | 0 T0S‘642°C | 620'68T‘C [1vLiOldnS
%66'T 91Z'e 902'S9T 907'99T 907‘S9T 907‘S9T 108°8L 066'T9T TLL'SHT vold 0Z61S
%EB'T 0S.9 000S#C 000'S#C 000°S¥T 000°S¥T 07STET 0S52‘8€T §9995T ETNIREINS) 0181S
%6ECE- (¥85°00T) 000°0TZ 000°0TC 000°0TC 000°0TC ¥I8°CTT ¥85°0T€ ONILHDI4 3414 FNIL 1¥Vd YIS
%00°S¢C 000°0T 000°0S 000°0S 000°0S 000°0S LSP'Y 000°0% S08‘TT SAN3ILS INYYO0Hd JAILNIDNI TIYIS
%87'ST S9Y‘6ST €76°202°T | €76'207'T £76'707°T £26'207°T /85965 8SH'EP0'T | 955'687'T ONILHOI4 3414 INIL1INA 0T¥IS
%00°0 0 0S.'9T 0S.9T 0S.'9T 0S.°9T 00T 0S.'9T 079'LT JAILNIDNI NOILYINA3 ovZIS
%6L'S G808 LEILYT LEI'LYT LE9LYT LEILYT 00t‘9L 765°6€T ¥2S'SPT TVDINHDIL/VOIHITD 0TZIS
%99'T €GET 890°c8 890°¢8 890°€8 890°€8 Uy STLT8 €/0°9TT NOILD3dSNI 0ZTIS
%0V LT- (€20'ew) 6/10T 6/1v0T 6LT'70T 6/T'70T ST8°66 0T’ Lye ¥10°96T NOILVYISININGY OTTTS
S1S02 TINNOSYId
aseaou| % aseanu] [ aIno¥ddv (€z/1/¢€) (gg/e1/) 153N03Y | €7/t/T40 | SUIAAISNVYL | °dO¥ddY | AIANIdX3 NOILdI¥DS3a 3Ll ANIT

panoiddy ALY | $ panoiddy LY JONVNId 40 a9 |[NIWLD3TISJ0ad| ADNIODY |SV dNNINI| /IVNOLLIAaY LY VNIV
LY ¥202/€70T | AIANINNO0DIY | AIANIININODIY /1d3a ' ANIdX3 | €T0T/TToT | €20T/TT0T | TT0T/1T0T
¥20Z/€20T ¥202/€202 #20Z/€20T | TWNLOY

SIDIAYAS FHI4 €TT0T :ADN3I9V/1d3a

135aN9 AIA0UddV 20T - €¢0C
aNNd TVYINId
QYO4Y¥3LVM 40 NMOL




29

%T9°E 86T‘€CT 8T9‘TES'E | 8T9'TESE 8T9TES‘E 8T9'TES‘E LP9'878°T | 0 0Zv'80v‘e | T8I'THT'E V101 LINFWLYVYd3a
_

%6T'TT- {oos‘zr) 00S9F 0059t 005'9% 00591 LLE'VT 0 000°6S 9£8'9C violgns
%00°0S- (0009) 0009 0009 0009 0009 61¢ 000CT 0 LIN3INdIND3 92Z¥S
%000 0 00S°S 00S‘S 005°S 00S‘S L8 005°S 0 LININCINDA XDNYL INISIH s
%000 0 0006 000'6 0006 0006 972'c 0006 8516 S1HDIT ADNIDYINI/OlavY 07ZvS
%00°0C- (0009) 00072 00072 00072 00072 S€6'6 000°0€ 9%0°9T IN3INAIND3I Y3 LHDI43YI4 8TTYS
%000 0 00S 008 005 005 0 005 UT'T SNOILVDILSIANI F¥I4 - ININIINDA 0TvS
%00°GC- (00S) 00S‘T 00S‘T 00S'T 00S°T 018 0007 00S 1ININDIND3I 3D1H40 090%S
AINIWdIND3

[

%¢6°S 0€6°CT 00E‘TET 00£°TET 00E'TET 00E‘TET T00‘9ET 0 0LE'STT 8TO'VTT 1v1014ns
000°€ 000°€ 000°€ S3AIMddNS Y3LHOIH43YI4 YITLNNTOA STTES
(005T) 0059 0059 0059 0059 WSt 0008 0ze's $3aI1ddNS 1v2Iaan PTTES
%00°0 0 000°s 000°S 000°S 000‘S 666 000°S ¥€0°C SAYVYMY HIANOJSIY YIFINNTOA €TTES
%00°0 0 0006 0006 0006 000'6 T06°T 0006 ¥99°S SHIVd3Y 8 S3ITddNS ONILHDIH3HI4 CITES
%00°0 0 000°SE 000GE 000°GE 000°SE 6v¥'S 000°GE 856°8¢ ONIHLO1D JAILDILOYd - 44 TTTES
%EEEE- (00S) 000T 000T 000T 000T 161 00S'T ovL S3IMddNS Y3LNdINOD OTTES
%TTES 0£9°ST 000°S¥ 000°St 000'S¥ 000°St vL1C2 0/£'62 L09°ET SINVDINENT 8 $13N4 060£S
IDNVYNILNIVIA JAILYINOLNY 080£S
%00°0 0 000°0TT 000°0TT 000°0TT 000°0TT 7€6'86 000°0TT 696°0CT SYIVd3IY JAILONOLNY 0£0€S
%00°S- (0072) 008°€ 008°c 008‘c 008‘€ 166°E 000'% 88%'S $31ddNS I19YINNSNOD TT0ES
%00°02- (000‘¢) 000CT 000CT 000CT 000°CT vL- 000°ST 9771t $311ddNS ¥IHLO0 020¢€S
%EEEE- (009) 000T 000'T 000'T 000T 195 00ST 415 $31ddNsS 321440 0T0£S
S3I1ddNS '8 SIVINALYIA
asea.0U| % asea.nu| aInoUddV (€z/1/€) (ez/et/T) 1S3N03Y | €2/1/140 | SuIASNVHL | ‘dO¥ddV | @IaN3dx3d NOILdI¥DS3a W3LI NI

panoiddy LY | § panoiddy LY JONVYNI4 40 a9 |[NIWLD3TIS40ad| AINIOY |SV GNNINI| /IVNOLLIAaY LY IVNIOV
LY ¥207/€207 | GIANININODIY | AIANININODIY /1d3a @ ANIdXT | €T0T/TT0T | €T0T/TT0T | TX0T/TT0T
¥7202/€202 ¥20Z/€20T #202/€20T | TWNLOV

SIDIAYAS FHI €210T :ADN3I9V/Ld3a

1395dNng aiA0¥ddv 20t - €20¢
aNN4d TVY3IN3O
QY0443LVM 40 NMOL




o
™

5:09¢ ; ‘ ‘ 9 5 . [eevase ; .

TTL9T TTL'9T TTL9T TTL'9T TT49T 9Z6'€L 0S6'€T 0ZS'€T HANNV1d 3DILSNT TYNINIYED
%00'0 0 S1Z'6L STZ'6L STC'6L STZ6L STZ'6L TLLTL STZ'6L 97508 IONVYMOTIV INYOLINN
%00'0 0 00S'S 00S‘S 005°S 005G 00S'S €S 005°s 78T°S IDNVITdINOD VHSO
%00°0 0 005'S8 00558 005°G8 00568 00558 SCTEY 005°58 0889/ NOILYINA3 8 ONINIVYHL
%8E'T 9Ty TLTTE [7X413 (75413 75413 ¢LUTE EV8LT 9¥80€ S8€'TE INOHdI 1AL
%EE EE- (oov) 008 008 008 008 008 €11 007'T ST ONILNIYd
%81'79 OIT'T 568°C 568C S68°C S68C 568°C ¥5C'T S8.°T 09t'T NOILYINA3 @ "ANOD ‘SINa
%£9'91- (08€'v) 688TC 688'TC 688TC 688'TC 688'TC S9Z'L 697°9¢ YZe'6T SYIVd3Y '8 INOD 3DIAY3IS
%000 0 000°ST 000ST 000°ST 000°ST 000'ST 8918 000°ST ¥0'CT 5334 TYNOISSII0Yd
%00'5C- (005) 00ST 00ST 00ST 005°T 00S'T S6Y 000C SLL 39V.1S0d
%00'0%- (002) 00€ 00€ 00€ 00€ 00€ 00S 8.T DNISILYINAY

259087

B

Y7667 Vol
%Y0'1- (186'8T) 122911 122911 122911 TZT'9TT 12C'9TT 056°9€ 20T'SET NOILYONA3 '8 ONINIVYL
%00°0 0 805°09€ 805°09¢€ 805'09€ 805°09¢ 805°09¢ 6£6'20C 806°09€ (K43 IWILYIAO LNIWIDVIdTY
%00°0 0 SL0'0ST SL0'0ST 5L0°0ST S/0°0ST SL0°0ST 769'68 SL0'0ST ¥6°€9T INILYINO
%000 0 889'€CT 889€TT 889°€TT 889°€CT 889'€CT €91'65 889'€CT 8088TT SY3D1440 IDIAYAS NINOD
%56'9 8T8VE T9¥'SES T9V'S€ES T9¥'SES T9Y'SES T9t'SES 9T14'79C €¥9°005 6TEOSY ETTRETE]S]
%6L'9 29T 8ES'ST 8€S'ST 8ES'ST 8€S'ST 8€S'SC 2€8°0T PT6'€C ¥SL'LT 10YLVd AININVIA
%yL'S 9vEL6T 89 vE9’E 89v'FE9‘E 89 VE9'E 89Y'vE9’E | 89V'vEQ'E [EL9'PTLT er'Ler'e |908°SSTE 1041vYd
%08°L 965°€ 696V ¥69°61 ¥69°61 76961 ¥69'61 5097 860°9Y 8€8°9E VIG0LSND
%YE L SST'8T GSE'SIC GGE'S9T GSE'G9C 9SE'G9C SS9E°S9C 0£9'vCT 002°L¥C ¥6ELET IVDINHIIL/IVIIYI D

%S8°Y 0ST'vC €£0°72S ££0°72S €£0'72S €€0'72S €€0'7CS 790'65¢ £88'/6V S6V'CES NOILYYISININGY

NOISSIWINOD 30170d 6¢10T :ADNIDV/1d3a

1315aN9 A3IN0UddV ¥Z0T - €20T
aNNd TVY3INID
QYO4Y3ILYM 10 NMOL



%3629

688°C

31

Aviol INJNLYYdId

%6072 0€009 € : [Tiz | 98891 ‘ :
%.9°99 0000% 000°00T 000001 000001 000°00T 000°00T 00009 00009 00009 S317ddNS TOYLNOD TVININY
%00°0T 00S 00S°s 00S'S 005‘S 00S‘S 00S'S 915V 000'S 87C'T S3NddNS 104.Lvd INNVIN 0zces
%000 o} 00SC 00S8C 00S°Z 00SC 00SC 000T 00SC 005T INIWIDYOINIT AILDIT3S 0t1ezes
%T18'€- (002T) v96°tY Y96ty $96'TY Y96ty v96°CYy 5919 99y £20°SE $3I1ddNS 8 "dIN03 32110d 08TES
%66'6T 0L1°C YZO'ET YZ0'eT YC0'ET Y20eT V20eT 0L0°L 5801 8TSCT SIIL 00T€S
%CS'LT 090°6T £T8'LTT £28°1TT £T8'LTT 1T8'LTT 1T8°LTT ¥£1°99 £9L°80T €18'99 SINVYOIHEN1 8 S13nd 060€S
%000 000'9T 00097 000°9T 00091 JONVNILNIVIN ALLYINOLNY 080€9
%0005~ (000"9T) 00097 00091 00091 000'CE 000°Z€ 80C°1T 0002€ 6S6°TE SHivd3ay JAILOINOLNY 0L0€S
%000 0 000°L 0002 000°L 0002 0002 660°€E 000°L oL S37ddNS YIHLO 0¢0€s
%00°0 0 000T 000T 0007 000T 000'T a19 000'T €8 S3NddNsS 321440 0T0ES
[ddns & SIVMILVIA

NOISSINWO0)D 301704

62101 :ADN3IDV/1d3a

1390N9 AIAN0UddV vZ0T - €20¢

aNNd TVY¥INIO
QYOJYILYM 40 NMOL




32

%E0'S 059'6S 00S'SbZ'T 00S'SYZ‘T 00S'SYZT 00S'SvZ’T | 995°C6¥ 0 0S8/SST‘T 9TLLTT'T  |1vioigns
%TS'6 000'C 000°€T 000°€2 000°€2 000°€ 059'v 000°T2 0SL'€T JDNVNILNIVIA dVD TIHANVYT 1€G2S
%000 0 000°S 000°S 000°S 000°S £9¢€'C 000°S £20°€C LINJINJINOD3 40 TVINIY 01S¢S
%000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 AVM 40 S1HOIY 8 SNOILdO 00S7S
%EEEE 0S 002 00¢ 00¢ 00T 0 0ST 0 INVYD0Yd DNITIAIIY GLYTS
%EY'L 000'S9 000°0¥6 000°0v6 000°0v6 0000¥6 | LE€'S8E 000'S/8 060858 vS0dSIa ILSVM aios 0L¥2S
%9L°S- (005's) 000°06 000°06 000°06 00006 T€9EE 00S'S6 LT6'9L ONILHOIT 13341S 09%2S
%00°ST 00¢ 000'T 000°T 000°T 000T 0 008 970'T NYOM LIS 0stzs
%6606~ (0s0°s) 00S 00S 00S 00S 0 0S5‘S LTE IDNVNILNIVIA 3341 133415 0T¥TS
%000 0 00€C 00€'C 00€C 00€C 0zt 00€C ¥84'C JINVMOTIV VAN 00vZS
%000 0 0S 0S 0S 0S 0 0§ € ISNIdX3T 319VSHNAINITY 0£02S
%00°0S- (0S) 0S 0S 0S 0S 0 00T 0 ONILNIYd 09025
%00°0S 000'T 000°€ 000'€ 000°€ 000°€ GOET 000T 9¥8°c NOILYDNA3 8 "4NOD ‘S3Na 0502S
%69°L- (000°9) 00009 00009 000°09 00009 18597 00099 7SE9Y SYIVd3Yd i3 LNOD IDIAYIS 0v07S
%6T°9 000°L 0000ZT 000°0ZT 000°02T 000'0zT  [¥9Esy 000°€TT 9Tv'T6 $334 TYNOISSII0Yd 0€0¢S
%00°0 0 00¥ 00v 00% 00t S0z 00t TEY 39V1S0d 0202S
%000 0 0 ONISILYIAQY 0102S
SADIAYIS

%ES'S vy 800'529'7 800°529C 800°529°C 800'629‘2 | oTv'zv8 0 99€°08Y'Z 9zT'shr'z  [1violans
%0T'9 8S.'0T T20°L8T 120°L8T 120°28T 120287 |OVT'T8 €92°9/1 GE8'T9T vOl4 02Z6TS
%S6T 00L°E STT9T STT9T STT9T STT9T 686 STSTT €0LTT SL1I4IN39 IONIYA 0T6TS
%LLS 000°€ 000'SS 000'SS 000'SS 000'SS 620'SE 000'ZS 8€5'69 JNILYINO 0181S
%000 0 00095 00095 00095 00095 Ge8 YT 0009S 759'T8 TVAOINIY MONS 0vSTS
%00 €91'8T 0ELTLY 0ELTLY 0ELTLY 0ELTLY  |ewe'LTe [9S°€SY LTSTSY “INIVIA '8 NOILD3110D 3SN43Y 0ESTS
%8€9 095'sS 9€0'276 9£0226 9€0°/T6 9€0'/z6  |€STOV 9LV'TL8 G68'ees IDNVNILNIVIN AVMHDIH 0ZSTS
%66°0T 766'6€ ¥08"€0v 708°€0Y v08°€0v v08'€0¥ | 6¥S°68T 018€9¢ L9€'€SE IDNVNILNIVIN LNINDIND3 01STS
%E6°8 L9V'ET LYEYIT LYEYIT LYEYIT LYEYIT £08'Z8 088°0ST £Y9'6VT IVIINHOIAL/IVIINITD 01Z1S
%00°0 0 855'S 855°S 855°S 8GS'S 0 8SS'S ONIY3INIONI 0€TTS
%00°0 0 L8T'8€E L8T'3€E £8T'8€EE £87'8¢s | L¥0O'TLT £8T'8¢E€ 9T0TEE NOILVYISININGY 0TTTS
S1S02 TINNOSYHId
aseasou| asealou] a3anodddy (ez/oz/e) (ez/e1/2) 1S3IN03Y | €2/1/140 | SUIISNVHL |['dO¥ddV INLY| QIaNIdX3 NOILLdI¥DS3a NIZLE AN

% panoiddy | ¢ panoiddy ALY JONVNI4 40 ag NETVIREREN ADNIDV | SV 9INNDON3 | /IVNOLLIaaY | €202/2202 IVNLOY
LY LY $202/€20Z | QIANIWINODIY 40 ag /1d3a ® aAN3dX3 | £20z/zz0T 2202/1202
20Z/€202 a3anN3IININOD3Y | p20Z/€202 | TVNLOY
¥20z/€207

SHYOM d11and 0€T0T :ADNIDV/Ld3a

135dng Ad3A0YdddV 202 - €20¢
annd 1vydanNio
ay0443LVM 40 NMOL




33

%90'9 GE€T'S8T 86766V 86LV66'Y 86L'V66Y 86766 | LVET8LT |0 £€95°60LY 99505V 1VLOL LNINLYYdIA
_
%ITT EV8°E 0ZITZE 0Z1TZE 0zZ1'TZE 0ZIT2E €697 0 LLTLTE 8TE60E 1v.LOLENS
%ITT £V8'E 0zT'1ZE 071'TCE 0TT1ZE 0TT1ZE £69°CS LLTLTE 8TE'60€ Q3IAOY¥dI-SAVOY aIV NMOL| 0T0SS
SINIWINOHI
_
%SL'T19- (o61'EV) [T §SL°9Z (VALY 6SL°9z 60EVE 0 SP6‘69 19L°TL 1vL019NS
%00°00T- (008) 0 0 0 0 0 008 102°T JYNLINYNA 3D1440 090%S
%TET9- (06€2h) SS9 661°9C 651’97 6619 60€vE SYT'69 99G'T/ LNINHINDI JAILOWOLNY 0S0%S
IN3NdIND3
_
%EE 8T 062°02T STY'9LL STY'9LL STY'9LL STH9LL 6LE°65E 0 S21°999 6vL0SS vL0LaNnS
%89°¢- (00S‘9) 0000LT 000°0LT 0000LT 000°0LT 68Ty 00S9LT ¥95'STT STVIYILVIN AVMHODIH 00€€S
%0002~ (000°S) 000°0C 00002 00002 000°0T €57'9 000°SZ 8y SIVIYILVIN T0YLNOD DI44vdL 0SZ€S
%00°0 0 000°S€E 000°SE 000°S€E 000°S€E TILLT 000°SE 90€‘TE S3uIL 00TES
%06°€9 06L°LTT 06L°LTE 06L°LTE 06L°LT€ 06L°1T€ 999'8¥T 000002 1GT'69T SINVII¥EN1 8 S13N4 060€S
%66'T 000% 000's0Z 000's0Z 000'S0Z 000's0Z v CET 000102 wL'ote SHIVdIY JAILONOLNY 0£0€S
%00°0 0 00€ 00€ 00€ 00€ 19¢ 00€ 907 S31ddNS 8 dIND3I YFINIONI 0S0€S
%00°0 0 0008T 0008T 000°8T 000°8T TLETT 00081 ST9'8T S31ddNS TYNOILYYIdO 0€0€S
%00°0 0 [543 [543 [543 [543 €8T [543 3 S3ddNS 321440 0T0ES
S3IddNS 8 STVINALYIN
aseasou| asealou| aInOUddY (ez/0z/€) (gz/e1/2) 1S3N03Y | €2/1/140 | SHUIASNVYL |'dOHddV LY | a3IaNIdx3 NOILdI¥DS3a WN3LL AN
% panoiddy | § panoiddy INLY JONVNIH 40 ad NINLOFTIS ADNIDY | SY NINON3 | /1VNOLLIaaY | €20Z/2202 IVNLOV
LY ALY ¥20Z/€202 | QIANININODIY 410 ag /id3a B aN3dX3 | €z0z/ze0z 2202/1202
$202/£202 A3aNIWINOD3Y | #202/€202 | 1VNLOY
¥Z0Z/£202
syYomdrand 0ET0T :ADN3I9V/Ld3a

135ang dan0dddV 20t - €20¢
aNnd TvdINaos
aY0443LVM 40 NMOL




34

L0V'8YT

HL1V3IH 40 NOILVAYISNOD CET0T :ADN39V/Ld3a

1395aN4g AaA0dddV ¥20¢ - €20C
aNNd TvH4INID
QyO443LVM 40 NMOL



35

%PE0- 68- T16SC T16'SC T16'ST 116SC STI9T 0 00092 STT'8T 1vYLOL LNJNLYVdAd
%PE0- 68- T16'SC T16'ST T16°SC T16°SC STI9T 0 00092 STT'8T 1vL0189NS

%€ 0- 68- 116'SC 116'SC 116'SC 116'SC SZT'9T 0009Z STT'8T ONISYNN HL1VIH JI1and 0108S

S31DNIDY 3AISLNO AILDVHLNOD

asealouj aseaou] ainoydddy (€2/9/¢) (ez/1/2) 1sInb3y | €z/t/1 40 SYIISNVYL *d0YddV aianadxa NOILdI¥0S3a IN3LI AN

% panoaddy | ¢ panosddy WLY JONVNI4 40 a9 |NIWLD31IS40ad| ADNIOV | SV GNNDN3 | /AVNOLLIaay LY IVNLOY
LY W1Y ¥20Z/€207 | AIANAWINODIY | AIANIWINODIIH /1d3a 3 AN3dX3 €20¢/220C | €roe/zeoe | Teoz/1ToT
#20Z/€202 #20zZ/€202 ¥20z/s20z | 1vNidY
2DIAHAS DNISYNN HLTVIH J119nd €ETOT :ADN3DV/1d3a

1395an9 d3aA0UddV 20T - €20¢
aNN4d TvYdINId
Qy0443LVM 40 NMOL




36

%66°T- (z98'6) TE'V8Y TE9'V8Y TE9'V8Y TE9' V8 TE9' V8l STETTT (961'€2) €6V v6Y 80L'69Y 1VLOL INJFNLYVdId
_
%09°ET ove LST'T LSTT LST'T LSTT LSTT 86L°T 0 LTOT LLE Ivi01ans
%9.'97 ore LETT LETT LETT LETT LETT 86LT 168 96¢ 1N3IAHINDI JIAILONOLNY 0S0vS
%00°0 0 0zt 0zt 0zt ozt 0zt 0 0zt 18 LINIINDI NIHDLIN 0£0vS
%000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 AINJNdINDI SSINLHA 0Z0vs
AININdIND3
_
%92°9C 9/S°E 96T°LT 96T'LT 96T'LT 96T'LT 96T°LT LEL'L 0 0Z9'€T 2159 1v1019NnS
%9€" LY S €101 €12°0T €1L°0T €1L°01 €101 LEB'E 0Lt £¥8C SINVOI¥ENT ® S13nd 060€S
%00°0 G6ET S6ET S6ET S6ET IDONVNILNIVIN OLNY 080€S
%EL VY- (66€°T) 6CLT 6CLT 6CL'T [Z4%3 ver'e ET'T 8CT'E LVST SHIvd3d 01NV 0L0€S
%66'8 e 656C 656C 656C 656C 656'C 667'C STLT 96LT S317ddNS ¥3H1O0 0Z0€S
%0T'TC- (z01) 00v 00Y 00t 0ot oof 69T £0S 9z¢€ S311ddNS 321440 0TOES
S311ddNS '8 STVIHALYIN
_
%88'0S- (£s6'02) 62202 622°0¢ 6¢20C (4414 6220t 996'8 (961°€7) 98TTh 1188 vL018NS
%£9°999T 00SC 059C 0S9C 0S9°C 0S9C 059°C ¥ST 0ST /56T SINVYO0Ud 08€¢S
%VT'T8 000T 91¢C 912C 9TC‘C 91¢'C 9TC'C 9L 9TC'T 060T SNOILYNINVYX3 T¥DISAHd 0€TTS
%80'TT- (98) 069 069 069 069 069 698 9/L 6€€ NOILYDNA3 8 4NOD ‘Sana 050ZS
%YL'S9- (288°€) 8T 8T 8hv'TT 8T 8T 169 (961°€2) 0EE'9E €ST'SE SYIVdIY 3 SIOVYINOD DAS 0v0zS
%00°0 0 0St 0S¥y 0S¥ 0S¥ 0S¥ 0 0S¥ 0 SIDIAY3IS vav 6£0CS
%L6'LT- (sv€) GLST S/ST S/ST S/ST S/ST 069 0261 8€8T 39V.1S0d 020¢S
%98 T (7¥T) 00¢ 002 00t 00¢ 00z 0 re [iY43 DNISILYIAQY 0102S
SADINY3S
_
%99°T 6L7'L 6v6'Sh 6v6°Sht 6v6'Sty 6v6'Stt 6v6'Striy vT820C 0 0L9°8Ep LOL YOV 1v10L49ns
%99'T L1S 169T€ 169TE T69'TE 169TE 169TE L0071 VLTTE 8EELT Vvol4 0Z61S
%6S°S [53 €86 €86 €86 €86 €86 Y44 1€6 9€9C JANILYINO 0T81S
%91 'SP 816 9£7TE 9€71€ 9£7'TE 9£7'1E 9£7'T€ 700TT 81G'TC 99€0T SYOLDONYLSNI GEITS
%9T ¥ 1656 048'7€T 0/8'v€T 0/8'vET 0/8'%€T 0/8'7ET 979'TTT €17'STT 97.96T IVIINHI3L/IVOIYITD 0TZIS
%68°L- (s09zT) 69T LP'T 69T'LYT 69TLVT 69T LYT 69T LYT 2679 ¥LL°65T T¥9°29T NOILYVYHLSININGY 0TTIS
$1S02 TINNOSYH3d
aseaou| aseaJou| a3anoUddVv. (ez/9/) €Z/1/T (zz/9/er) | 1sano3ay | €z/1/T 40 SHYIISNVYL ‘dOdddV a3aniadxa NOILdIY¥DS3a 3L ANIT
% panoiddy | § panosddy LY JONVNI4 40 a8 |N3WLD31ES 40 ad| ININOD/ad | AINIOV | SY dINNDON3 | /IVYNOLLIday LY VNIV
WLy LY #202/€20T A3IANIWNOD3IY | GIANIINWO0D3Y | dIN0Y¥ddY | /ld3ad 3 AN3IdX3 €207/C20T | €T0z/Teoe | Teor/izoT
veoz/ee0z | v20e/€70T ¥eoe/€20z | veoe/ee0e | 1VNIOV
NOISSININOD N3ZILID HOIN3S SETOT :ADN3I9V/1d3a

135an4 AIA0dddV ¥20c - €20¢

[ ERLAENED]

aQY04Y¥3LVYM 40 NMOL




37

%PL'0 29€°L LE8'900°T LE8900T L£8°900°T LE8'866 L£8'866 Z60°€0S 0 SLY'666 LT2TL6 1VLOL INJNLYYdIa
_
%LTT 000‘T 000°SY 000'st 000'St 000'S 000'st 666EY 0 0001 666Vt 1vL014nS
%LTT 000°T 000'St 000'SY 000'St 000°St 000°S¥ 666Ct 0007¥ 6667t TVIMILVIN A3LV134/S0089| 09T¥S
ININdIND3
_
%20°L Szs 0008 0008 0008 0008 0008 €ELY 0 SLY'L ¥069 1v1014ns
%8E"L SLT 000Y 000 0007 000 0007 9z7LT SeL's L06T $31ddNS ¥Y3H1O0 0Z0€ES
%.9'9 0S¢ 000v 0007 0007 000y 0007 100 0SL'E 166°S S3NddNns 101440 0TOES
S311ddNS B STVI¥ILYIN
_
%ES'LT 18T 96T°T 96T°T 96T‘T 96T'T 96T°T ¥8€ 0 STO0T 902°s 1vL019ns
%000 0 0 0 YIM3S 0z1es
%00°0 0 0 0 YILVM 0TTCS
%00°0 0 0 0 ALDIYLDTTI 0012S
%000 0 0 0 110 13n4 06025
%6707 orT 0€8 0€8 0€8 0£8 0€8 80¢ 069 9TL ISNIdX3 I1dvSUNgNIFY 0025
%00°0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 09TC SHIVdIY %" LNOD 3DIAY3IS 0v0zs
%79'CT |2 99¢ 99¢ 99¢ 99¢ 99¢ 9/T SZE 0€€ 39V1S0d 0z0zs
SADINYAS
_
%09°0 959°S T#9°256 TH9°2S6 T#97S6 T9'tv6 TV9'vv6 9L6'€Sh 0 $86°916 8TTLT6 [1viOl4nS
%ST°0- (991) 0€T’/9 01’29 0€T'L9 0£TL9 0€T'29 816°0€ 962°L9 99179 Vol 0Z61S
%00°0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 029C SLI4IN39 IONIYA 0161S
%00°00Z€ | 0008 0SZ'8 0S8 0528 0S¢ 0S¢ 0 0S¢ STC9 ANILYINO 0181S
%0S'T 88¢'T TET'L8 TETL8 TETL8 TET/8 TETL8 IS TY €788 TTC18 IDNVNILNIVIN-TVIAOLSND 0771S
%SL'0- (£12'9) 816'€69 816'€69 816°€69 816'€69 816'€69 Ov0‘EEE GET'669 6v7°0L9 TYDINHD3L/1VOINITD 01Z1S
%S8'T 1SLT 717’96 7T2'96 712’96 71296 712’96 9/¥'8Y T9v'v6 LSY'V6 NOILVHISININGY 0TTIS
S1S0J TANNOSYH3d
asea.nu| aseasou| a3ino¥ddv (€2/1/€) (€2/1/2) (zz/er/er) | Lsando3y | €2/1/T140 SYIASNVYL | 'dO¥ddVY W1Y | aaaNadxa NOILdI¥DS3a IN3LI ANIT
% panoiddy | ¢ panoaddy LY JDNVNIH 40 dg9 |NIWLDI1IS 40 ad| WINOD/ad | ADNIOV | SV 9INNON3 | /1IYNOILIGAY | €202/2202 IVNLOY
LY W1y vz0z/€T0C A3IaNIWINODIIY | AIANFWINOIIY | AIAO¥ddY | /Ld3d 8 AN3IdX3 €202/220C Te0z/1e0e
vz0z/€20T v20z/€202 vzoe/eeoe | veoe/scoz | 1WNIOV
AYVYEIT2119Nd QYO4HILVM 9€TO0T :A\DN319V/Ld3a

135an8 AIA0¥ddV vZ0¢ - €20C

aNN4d TvY¥INID

QY0443 LVM 40 NMOL




%661~ (806'82) €TS‘ETr'T | €TS‘sTrT (0os8v1) ELEREY'T SLEQEY'T | €6T°TT6 (961°€2) TEPTSY'T | 86V VIST V101 INJNLHYdIa
_
%00°0 = 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 IVL0L9NS
%00°0 - 0 0 0 IN3FNdIND3|  0ZQPs
AIN3ANCIfPD3
_
%LTTE PESTT 66576 66576 0 66576 66516 66TCh 0 S90°2L 8L9C8 Wv101ans
%¥L°99 768°TT 80CCE 80C‘CE I443 80¢CE 9701 9TE‘6T 0SZ'vT SINVOI¥49N1 8 S1and|  060€S
%L0°8T 0SL'E 00572 00572 0 0057 00S¥C 07S'ST 0S.°0¢C 07S’€E S31DIHIA 40 IDNVNILNIVIN|  080€S
%9t'8T S99°S 162°9€ 162°9€ 0 167°9¢ 1627°9€ 00€‘€T 9£9°0€ 609°C€ S311ddNS ¥Y3IHLO| 0Z0ES
%6ELT LET 009°T 009°T 0 009°T 009°T €S96°C €9€T 662°C S311ddNS 301440  0OTOES
$3I1ddNS '8 SIVIHALYIN
_
%89'€T-  |(#09°2E) Ly9'S0T Ly9'S0T (0s8%T) L6¥'02T L6V°02T vS8EVT (961°c2) TST'8ET 8T TV wviolans
%96°8¢C £€70°C 8606 8606 0 860'6 860°6 LTT 5S0°L 8/T'E (SY9/110/INVYd0Yd) LVIH 06025
%99'v/- |(0v3°8) 000°€ 000°€ (088vT) 0S8°LT 0S8°LT 20T'T 08Tt S/ST ALIDIY1D313 00TCS
%6T°0 S 0v9°C 0v9°C 0 0v9C 0v9C 0T G€9°C ST2'C YIM3IS f4%4]
%E9'T T¢T Sty STL'y 0 SeL'Y SeL'y SLY'S 09y IT'e HILYM 0TTCS
%EE LT 06SCT 7€T's8 7€7's8 0 7€7'S8 7€T's8 GLE'69 wo'TL [94'0TT ALY3dOYd 40 IDNVYNILINIVIN|  0zves
%00°0 E 6vS TV 6vS'TY 0 6vS‘TY 6vS‘TY 909°6¢ 6vS'TY 909°6¢ SINVYDO0Yd QIYOSNOdS-0D| 06£TS
%LS'8- (9tv'€) 98/'9¢ 98.9¢ 0 98.°9¢ 98.°9¢ €06°€C etor TEE‘LE SINVYDOYd| 08€TS
%00°0 = 0S.Y 0SLY 0 0SLY 0SLY 0SL'v 0SLY 0SLY Y3IISNVYL SINIAT ALINNIWINOD| 90225
%6L €E- (80T) ovL'T ovLT 0 ovLT ovL'T PrTT 88T 676C ANOHd313L| 0802S
%00°0 - 0ST 0ST 0 0ST 0ST 0 0ST 0 ISN3dX3 I19vSHNgNIY| 0.02ZS
%¥e'ST-  |(09S) 060°€ 060°€ 0 060°€ 060°c 08¢ 059‘€ €69°T NOILYDONA@3 8 “4N0J ‘sanal 0s0zs
%16'T6- |(60t'FE) L20°€ LT0°E L20°E LT0°E 660C (961°€2) 9€v'LE TEV'LE SYIVdIY § SIOVYLNOD IDIAYIS| 0v0TS
%00°0 - 0019 0019 0 0019 0019 G89°€ 0019 0€S9 39v1S0d| 0zozs
%00°0 - 09.C 09.C 0 09.C 09LC 70T 09.LC 0 ONISILYIAAY| 0T0ZS
SIOINY3S
_
%S9°T- (8£8°8T) LLT'ser'T | Lz'sei't 0 LLT'ETTT LLT'ECT'T | OVT'9EL 0 STI‘ZPT'T | 2Z09'06T‘T  |1VLOLENS
%S9°T- (6£€T) v78'6L ¥78'6L 0 ¥78'6L ¥78'6L 6098V €9T°T8 LSY'T8 vold| 0z6TS
%6L'LE-  |(€£9°T) 00v'Y 00v'v 0 4% 00V 00€C €L0°L 69v°L S114IN3d 3IONIY4| 0T61S
%T0'TT 8TL'S 766°C€ 766CE 0 766°C€ 766CE 955°TC ¥9T°LT LLY'ST AWILYINO| 0T8TS
%LL'S S7S8T €88°6€€ €88'6E€ 0 €88°6€€ €88°6€€ 8E6°0ET 8€ETTE rvOve SINVYDO0Yd NOILY3dDFH| 0¢791s
%0L'vT T18°LS 656'05Y 656'0SY 0 696'0SY 656°05Y SLT'TTe LYT'E6E 6€7'98¢€ IDNVNILNIVIA SHYvd| 0T9TS
%000 - €TTe €T 0 (4414 E€TUTe 95€°0T ETTT LVL'6T IvIdoL1snd| 0zzIs
%TY €~ (£10€) 78¢€'s8 78¢'S8 0 78¢'S8 78¢'a8 966°€E 66£88 ovLSTT IVDINHDIAL/IVOI¥31D|  0TZIS
%LE9%- |(768°€6) 509'80T S09°80T 0 S09'80T 509°80T OTT'9LT 66120C 6¢0'86T NOILVYLISININQY| OTTTS
S1S0D TINNOSH3d
aseasnu) %| oseanul | aINOUILY (sz/9/¢€) SNOLIONA@3Y |  NIWLOITAS 1S3IND3IY | €Z/T/T40 | SYIASNVHL | ‘dOdddV | A3IANIdX3I NOLLdI¥DS3a AL
panoiddy | § panoiddy ALY JONVNIH 40 ag FONVNIH 40 ad ADN3DVY | SV SINNDON3 | /1¥NOLLIaaY ALY TVNLOVY aNI
LY LY ¥202/€20Z | GIANIWNOD3Y | 4O a¥vod | AIANIWINODIY /1d3a 8 ANIdX3 €202/tz0e | €20Z/Te0e | TZoz/1eoT
vzoe/€zo0z | veoz/szoz | vzoz/€z0T | vT0Z/€20T | IVALOV
NOISSININOD SHYVYd '8 NOILYIHDIY LETOT :ADN3I9V/L1d3a

135dn49 dIA0YddV 20T - €20C
aNN4d TvY¥3INID
aQy04431LVM 40 NMOL




39

S3MddNs ¥aHLO0[
B
0 0
%000 0 056 056 056 056 0 056 S334WNOISS34049d|  0€0ZS
%000 0 Sz ST Sz ST 0 4 3I9VISOd|  0¢0Zs
%000 0 00¢€ 00€ 00¢€ 00¢€ 0 00¢€ ONISILYIAAY| 01025

e e I,

|

%000
%00°0

*dd T0YLNOD NOISOY3 '8 0014 TvI0T :ADN39V/1d3a

135aN9 AIA0YUddV ¥20c - €20¢
aNN4d 1v¥INId
QY0443LVM 40 NMOL



40

%88°S 0S 006 006 006 006 006 0 0 0S8 96T V101 ININLHVCIA
%00°0 0 0S 0S 0s 0S 0S 0 0 0s 0 vloLlans
%000 0 0S 0S 0S 0S 0S 0 0S S311ddNS 3D1440]  0TOES
S3I1ddNS 8 SIVIYILYIN
%EEEE 0S 00T 002 002 00¢ 002 0 0 0ST 0 1v10L19nS
%000 0 0 0 0 0 ISN3dX3 319vSyNgNITY|  0£0ZS
%EE'EE 0S 00¢ 00¢ 00¢ 002 00C 0 0ST S334 TYNOISS340dd|  0£0ZS
%000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 39V1S0d| 070TS
SAJINY3S
%00°0 0 059 059 059 059 059 0 0 059 95T 1vloldns
%000 0 0S 0S 0S 0S 0S 0 0S 1T voTd]  0z6TS
%000 0 009 009 009 009 009 0 009 SPT IVDINHOIL/IvDMID|  oteTs
S1S02 TINNOSH3d
aseasu| asea.ou| a3anouddy (€z/9/€) (e2//T) NWO0J/ag | 1sInbay | €z/1/T 40 SYIASNVHL ‘dodddvy | a3an3dx3 NOLLdI¥DS3a WAL
% panoiddy | ¢ panoiddy LY JDNVNIH 40 a9 | NIWLDIT3S 40 ad| aIn0¥ddy | ADNIDY | SV dINNDN3 | /IVNOLLIAQaQY W1y VNIV aNn
W1y W1y ¥207/€20C | AIANINWODIY | AIANIWINODIIY | ¥20Z/E€20T /1d3a 3 AN3dX3 £202/T20T €20z/Te0 | Teoz/Teoe
¥z0z/£202 ¥20z/£202 veoz/€c0z | 1vNIdV
NOISSIWWOI SJIHL3 €VTOT :ADN3IDV/1d3a

1350an49 AiA0¥ddV v¢0¢ - €20C
aNN4d TvH¥3IN3O
ayo4431LvM 10 NMOL




41

%T0°0~ (02) 9€8'657 9€8‘65¢C 9€8652 9€8'65¢ 0€S'STT 0 958657 €58°/87 TVLOL INFNLYYCIa
_
%16°Z- (o€) 000°T 000°T 000‘T 000°T TLT 0 0£0°T 82T 1vLoLans
%00°00T- (o0T) 0 0 0 0 00T S3TddNS ANV ANIDIVA OvTES
%ES'L oL 000°T 000°T 000°T 000'T TLT 0€6 87T $311ddNS Y3HLO 0Z0€S
$311ddNS 8 STVIHILVYIN
|
%82'0 €ST LOT'T6 LOT‘T6 LOT'T6 LOT‘T6 £28'0¢ 0 75806 080°8ZT 1vL0L8NS
%0S'C €5 [IA%4 Ut [IA%4 Ut 6TTC 6TTC 166'T INVYDO0Yd "1SISSY IIA0TdINT 0£S2S
%00'STT 00y 00€9 00€9 00€'9 00€9 STC 000C S6T ONINIVYL 00£2S
%TLTE 44 S61 S6t S6¥ S6Y S0T €L€ 0cy ANOHdJITIL 08025
%£9°99 00T 0S¢ 0S¢ 0S¢ 05T 0 0ST 66 ISNIdX3 319VSYNAINITY 0£02S
%EE'8 [543 SSP 34 % 5SSt 66T [oY4% €05 NOILYDNA3 8 "ANOD ‘sand 05078
%60°C 3 L9V'T 97T L9Y'T L9Y'T 0LS LEV'T 897°T HIVd3Y 13 "LNOD IDIAYIS 0%0¢S
%ST'9- (000°S) 000'SL 000°SZ 000°SL 000'SL STv'9C 000°08 §69°0CT $334 TYNOISSIH0¥d 0£02S
%CTET €11 896 896 896 896 S0€ GG8 855 319V.1S0d 020TS
%67 ¥T 00S 000t 000'% 000'% 000y S6L 00S‘€ TYE'C ONISILYIAQY 0102S
SIDIAYIS
_
%YT'0- (eve) 62L'L9T 6CLL9T 6CL'L9T 62L'L9T 9£5V8 0 2L6'L9T St9'6ST Tviolans
%Y1 0- (1) 0Z6°TT 026'TT 0Z6'1T 026'TT 6TL'S LE6'TT €/1'0T V4 0Z61S
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ETNIRELYe) 0T81S
%000 (1) ¥8L'€9 ¥8£°€9 ¥8L'€9 ¥8L€9 1SP'CE S8.°€9 SSP'88 IVIINHDOIL/IVIIHIATD 0TZIS
%y 0- (sz2) S70'C6 520°C6 S70C6 520'T6 99€9¥ 0526 LT¥'09 NOILVYLSININGY OTTIS
$1S00 TINNOSHId
asea.sou| aseanu| [ aIAQUddY (gz/s1/€) (€2/2/2) 1s3ND3IY | €z/1/140 | SUIASNVHL ‘do¥ddvy | a3aanadx3a NOILdI¥DS3a LI AN
% panoiddy | ¢ panoiddy ALY JONVNIH 40 ag NEN I ERENE (o} AONIOY | SY 9INNINT | /IVNOLLIdaY LY VNIV
LY LY ¥20Z/€207 | QIANININODIY | a9 AIANIWINOIFY |  /Ld3a 3 ANIdX3 €202/220T | €202/zzor | Tz0T/T20T
%20zZ/€202 ¥20z/€202 eoz/€z0z WNIOY
AINIW1LYVYdIA SIDYNOSIY NVINNH SYTI0T :ADNI9V/Ld3d

1395dNn9 aaA0UddV ¥20¢ - €20¢
aNN4d TVY3IN3O
QYO4YILVM 40 NMOL




42

%TY'0 064y T8T‘SITT T8T'SIT‘T T8T'SITT TST'SOT'T | TE808S 0 T6E09T°T 0L0°S€6 dﬁo_h AINIW1Y¥VYdIa
%98°SS- (9£99S) €8LvY €8L 'V €8L'vY €8L'vY 768'ST 0 6SP'TOT TS6°ET vL0L9NS
%8T°GG- (9z1'sS) €8L'vy €8L'vY €8L'vy €81V 758'aT 60666 TS6°€C IN3LSAS ¥31NdWOD 0ETVS
%00°00T- (095°T) 0 0 0 0 0SS‘T JUNLINYNA 321440 0TOPS
AINIWdINDA
_
%00°0 : E = = = 0 0 = = wvioLans
%000 - 0 0 0 0 S3ddNS 321440| OTOES
S311ddNS 8 SIVINALYIN
_
%Z6°0T LLE98 T8E'LLS T8E‘LLS T8E‘LLS T8E'LLS 98L‘0CY = ¥00°T6L T8TLTL v1oLans
%000 z S18°T SI8T SI8'T S18°T SI8T INOHdITAL 080¢S
%00°0 - 00S 00S 00S 00S 4 00S ISNIdX3 I19vISUNGINITY 0£02S
%00"00T- (080°ST) 0 0 0 0 : 080°ST NOILYONA3 8 "ANOD ‘Sana 05025
%TT'ET LSYT0T 990G/8 990°S/8 990°5/8 990S/8 vLL'0CY 609°€LL 18C'LTL SYIVdIY 8 1DVYINOD IDIAY3S-1I £v0CS
$334 TYNOISSI40Nd 0£07S
39V1S0d 0202S
ONISILYIAAY 0102S
SADINYIS
_
%0€'6~ (tT6'72) LTO‘EVT LTOEYT LTO‘EVT LTO'EVT €6TVET = 876'L9T 8€E8°E6T vL0Lans
%¥E"6- (844T) €97°LT €97°LT €97°LT €971 Ev'L 06T SLT'ET YK 0Z61S
%00°0 - 0 EY'L - S1143IN39 IONIYS 0T61S
%000 - 000°S 000°S 000's 000°S GST 000°S £ve JNILYINO 0T8TS
%6811~ (€€£gT) ¥S0°L0T ¥50°£0T ¥S0°20T 50201 6/8'LS £82'STT EVI'T6 TVIINHIIL/IVII¥IT1D 0TCIS
%EL'E- (oot'p) 00L'€TT 00L‘€TT 00L‘€TT 00LETT S6C'T9 00T‘8TT L1068 NOILYYLSININAY OTTIS
S1S02 TINNOSHId
asealou] % aseasnu| § ainodddv (ez/cT/€) (ez/1/2) 153N03Y €zZ/t/140 SYIISNVYUL | 'dOo¥ddv LY | a3anadxa NOILdI¥D0S3a 3L AN
panoiddy LY | panoiddy 1Y WLy JDNVNI4 40 ag N3LD3T3S 40 ADNIDY SYEAININA | /IVNOlLIdaV | €20z/Teoz TYNLOV
vz0z/szoz | GIANIWWOD3Y | a8 GIANIWNOIIY /Ld3a 3 aN3dx3 £202/220T T202/120T
¥202/£202 ¥202/£202 ¥202/£202 VNIV
ADOTONHI3L NOILVINYOLNI LVTO0T :ADN3I9V/1d3a

139dN9 dIA0YddYV 20T - €20C
aNN4 1v¥43IN3ID
ayo443LvM 10 NMOL




43

%ITET 019056 0SZ'8v1'8 0ST°8v18 0SZ'8YT8 0SZ'8vT’8 [ 0SZ'8¥TI'8 [9T0Zb¥'S [0 0v9°L6T'L | €EE9WEE'L V101 INJNLYVdIa
0
%8T'T- (czo's) STT'TPE STTTYE STTTve STTTve STTTvE | 8TL'SLT LYL'6VE 8SY'TSE 1S3YILNI - ONIANN3Y ANOE 0Z0T 5095
%9L°0LT 000'STOC | 000's6T'E 000'S6T‘E 000‘S6T‘E 000°G6T‘E | 000‘S6T‘E | 00008TT 000°08T'T IVdIDNIYd - ONIANN4IY ANOE 020T 095
%80'8- (0sz'¥E) SLY'68€ SLY'68€ SL¥'68€ SLY'68¢€ SLY'68€ | Sev'0Te STL'ETy SL6'LSY 1SIYILNI - XTTdINOD TVdIDINNIN 020T €709
%000 0 000589 000589 000689 000589 000'589 | 000589 000589 000589 IVdIDONI¥d - X31dINOD TVdIDINNIAl 0202 79095
%TZ0T- (05£'v€) S29°S0€ S79°S0€ S79°sog S29°S0€ G79's0€ | STT6LT SLE‘OVE 0SL'SLE LSIYILNI ONIANNTY ANOE 610 0v09S
%655 (000‘0v) 000549 000549 000'S29 000°S£9 000'S/9 | 000°STL 000'STL 000°00L TVdIDONIYd ONIANN43Y ANOE 6T0C 6€095
%9€'6" (szTes) 00v'¥TS 00v¥1S 00v'vTS 00vvTS 00v'vTS | 0S696¢ §TS'L9S 059609 LS3YILNI - ONIANNL3Y ANOE £T0T 8€095
%Cy'T 000'ST 0000L0°T 000'0£0'T 000°0£0°T 000°0£0‘T | 000°0L0°T | 000SSO‘T 000'SS0'T  |000°0S0°T IVdIONIYd - ONIANN43Y ANOE LTOZ LE09S
%L8'8T- (eTTve) ST9'9VT ST9'9pT STVt ST9'9VT ST9'9¥T | ETTL6 8€L'08T 0SL'90T 1SIYILNI - ONIANN3Y ANOE ¥T0T 9€095
%09°0- (000s) 000528 000'sZ8 000°5¢8 000'S¢8 000°Sz8 | 000°0€8 000°0€8 000'S€8 VdIONIYd - ONIANN4IY ANOE 10T SE€095
%00°00T-  [(0€5'ST) 0 0 SL9°TT 0€5'ST 0S6°LS 1S3YILNI $TOZ 40 INSSI STOOHIS ¥€095
%0000T-  [(000°s¥8) | O 0 000'S¥8 000'ST8 TVdIDNId ¥TOZ 40 INSSI STOOHIS €€099
00T°S€E 1S3¥ILNI ANOG TOOHDS HOIH T€09S
000'SSLT TVdIDNI¥d ANOE TOOHDS HOIH 62095
1STYILNI '8 TVdIONIYd
aseanu| asealou| a3ano¥ddv 3DNVNH 40 N3WL1313S 40 (ez/L/zT) 1s3n03y €z/t/1 SHIASNVHL ‘dOdddY [ELDEENE] NOILdI¥DS3a LI 3NIT
% panoiddy | ¢ panoiddy | ALY pZ0Z/€20Z | A9 GIANININODIY | Ag AIANININODIY | ININOD/ag AIN3IOV |40 SV GWNDON3| /1VNOILIday LY WNLIVY
WLy W1y ¥20z/€20T v20zZ/€20C a3nodddv /1d3a '3 AN3dX3 €e0z/zeoe €20z/z20T z20z/1202
vzoz/ez0z | vezoz/€zoz NIV
2DIAY3S L1930 6€TOT :ADN39V/Ld3Ia

13909 AIAOUddV ¥Z0z - €202
aNNd VY3INID
QY04Y¥3LVM 10 NMOLL




%00°00T- {00"000°0%) 000°0% *dIND3 ANNOYOAVd m.meo.__Iu_ 8€8SS
'SHUV B NOLLYIHDIY
0 %00°00T- {000°081) E 0 0 0 0 0 000081 Yv'0LT NOISSIANINOD ALTILLN TYLOLENS
%00°00T- (000'0S) 000°0S 1N3JW3DOV1d3Y ONIAIS B “_OOm_ G689
%00°'00T- (000"0€T) 000°0€T 39YM.LA0S ONITTIE INM| 90655
“NOISSIAINOD ALHLN|
[
005807 %80'88" T602ZT8) 005'80T 005'80T 005'80T 0 0 0 602'2v6 005'S6Y DONVNIINIVIA SONIGHNE TYdIDINNN 1V1018NS)
%00°00T- (oo0‘0zt) 000°0Z (AL34vS S065S
J118Nd 3 AYVYHEIT) INFWIDVIdIY 1SN
000 %000 000°SC 000'SZ 000'ST 000'ST SYIVd3Y ISNOH NY¥Vd NVYQYHOT| M3N
00S‘EV %LT €S- (00s'9t2) 00S‘EV 00S‘EV 00S'€y 000092 (1713N,0 INION3) LNIWIOV1dIY DILdIS Y06SS
000°0% %00°0 000°0% 00001 00001 000°0% LN3IW3IDOV1d3Y¥ ¥D0a NMOL M3IN
0009T ¥Ivd3y ¥3aavi HSHH €06SS
%00°00T- (60z°9%2) 602°91C 000°0ST S3AVYOdN FJ1ONVIYL DIAID £LS8LS
IONVNILNIVIN SONIATINE TVdIDINAN
00006 %5568~ 00006 00006 00006 00006 0 0 0 997’198 OT0PVEC SHMOM JI1and 1V1018nS
SNOANY113DSIW
TS6'STE (payoene sad) 310344V 3DYNOSYIAI 0685
ST6'STE (3AI¥a M00¥4 1Sv3 20655
‘1S ¥va31D ‘LS MOTIIM ‘LS AYYIHD ‘IAV
IAVS ‘JAV ANVI4411) € VI¥V 'V NOILD3S
ONIAVd/ONIOV4YNSIY avOy
INIWIOV1d3Y NTYMIAIS
00€'61C 0 SAVOY FYOHS '8 MOTIOH AGNVS T065S
INFW30V1d3d 94N 31IHONOD
000'ST %00°0 000°ST 000°ST 000'ST 000'ST A00yd mHZDI\Qx JTVASONINOO1G M3N
{14 07 43A0) SL¥IAIND/S3DAlYg
1SHUOM dNand
0 %00'0 0 - 0 0 0 0 0 00055 000'SC INIWLEYdAa 381 V101805,
000'sS YOLVYINID ADNIOYING - m_Nz<xou_ 006SS
EERSERERTE
0 %00'0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 SSLL9 0ZT Z0€ INIWINV4Ia 301104 1YLO18NS
= SPE'6T NOLIISNVYL 668SS
NOdV3IM TOYLNOD JINOY.LOIT3
- 0TETC ADOTONHD3IL 86855
NOILVDINNWWWOD ® NOILYTVDS3-3d
= 00T'LT AVTY3IAO AL34VS HON3IE 1130 L68SS
TINIWINYd3a 301104
025'60€ %000 02560 025'60€ 025608 075608 0 0 0 0 0 ADOTONHO3L zﬂ_ﬁ«sg&z_ VLOLANS
025'60€ %00°0 07560€ 075'60€ 075'60€ 0Z5'60€ NOILISNVYL mexm:n_._ M3N
:ADOTONHO3L NOILVINHOANI
TOL'8CT %00'0 TOL8CT 10821 T0L'82T T0L82T 0 0 0 0 0 INIWIDVNVIN ADN3IOHIE TYLOLENS
T0L88 %00°0 T0L'88 T0L88 TOL'88 TOL'88 Y¥Y3AY0I3Y XADOTXIN mc_.r2m>m_ M3IN
00001 %00°0 000°0% 00001 000°0% 000°0% 3LSAS A¥v23AINS INODITIFLNI OOdVY M3IN
INIWIOVNYIAL ADNIDHINI
1|
000'000'T %00'SC 000002 000°000'T 000°000'T 0000007 0007000°T 000000 000°008 000008 000008 N3IWLD313S 40 ‘a8 1v1018NS
000°000'T %00°ST 000°002 000°000T 000°000°T 000°000°T 000°000°T 000°000°T 000008 000008 000008 NV1d LNIWIOVYNVYN .Em.E_ 8ELSS
NZWLD3135 40 auvod|
¥Z0Z-Ad (d3a/oni {d3a/onn WY {ez/oe/e) a3IAOYddV SO8 [NIWLD313S 40 a4 [1SINDIY AONIOY €Z/t/t *d0dddV a3anN3dxa NOILdI¥DSIa WAL ANIT
AN3DY¥3d PZAS INNOWY tZA4 | QIANIWWOD3Y | 3FINVNIE 40 a8 QIANININODFY | /Ld3Q b20ZA4 | 40 SV AWNONI | INLY £202/220 VLIV
QINOHAAY WIY | QINOHdAY LY vZ0z/E20e GIANINNO0DIY v20z/€202 /AN3dX3 TYNLOY 2z0z/1202
v2oz/ee0z
SINIWIAOYdINI TVLIdVI YVIA LNIHIND 8E€T0T tADNIDV/LdIa

139an4d (d12) Nv1d INJWIAOUdWI TVLIdVI 8Z0Z - ¥Z0Z

ANN4 TVY43INID
QY044ILVM 10 NMOL



~ INJNJIND3 ANNOYDAVd S,NFUATIHD
(N¥Vd 8 D3¥) INVHO 1419 d3LNEINLNOD

45

SINIWIAOYdWI TVLIdVD HVIA LNIHHND

139an4 (d12) NV1d INIWIAOUdWI TVLIdVD 820Z - ¥Z0T
[ ERVHENED]
QY01¥3ILYM 30 NMOL

(T102TT) IN3NAVd 3D4NOSYIAI
ANN4-02 NOSNVIA 11vV3aN,0 IN3I5N3

LNVYD 1v¥3034 XTYM3IAIS AY¥3d 3doY

(000097) (319NVI¥L DIAID)

INVYD0Yd 1IVYL TYNOILYIYOIY 3LVLIS

8ETO0T

:AON39V/1d3a




135and UND 8202-vZot
[sLERLEELED]
QYO4HILYM 30 NMOL

NOILYINA3 40 quvosd
[ <
0 %0070 0 0 0 0 Sv0'29v 8ST'LL FINVNILNIVIA SONIATINEG TYdDINNN TY.LOLINS)
Sv079 JVAH 50749 1430 32110d T/8LS
000°00¥ SINIWIAOHIWI INIOd OSVYIN 0/48LS
FONVNILNIVIAN SONIATING TYdIDINNN
00000t %00°00T 000°00T 000°00T 000°00T 000°00T 0 0 0 66€EVET NOISSININOD SALLITILA TYLOL1aNS
0 %00°007 000'00% 000°00T 000°00T 000007 1INIWIIVIdIY SADS SOLISVTd - HLSA YALVM MIN
000°00T 1NINIDIVTdTY SOAS JILSY1d-HLSIA HILVMW MIN
‘NOISSININQD STLLIILN
0 %000 - 0 0 0 0 0 000°06 16018 SHYOM IINaNd Tv10Lans
000°0Z AQN1S TYNDIS DI44vHL QV0OY SSOYHD 698LS
000'SE NV1d ONIYIINIONT 39aid 89879
000'SE NV1d XTVMIAIS ¥3AIY DILNVIN £98L5]
SSHIOM OaNd
0 %00°0 - 0 0 0 0 0 0 ¥09'65T SHYVd B I3Y TvLOLaNS
SHUV '3 NOILLYIHOIY
0 %000 - 0 0 0 0 0 0 Z10°02 *ENFINTDVYNYIN ADNIDHIINT VL0 LENS
INIFNFOVNVIN AINIDUIING
0009 %00°00T 00019 000'v9 0009 000'¥9 0 0 0 6VE'VLT :SAJIAY3S FHid vL0LENS
00079 %00°00T 00079 00079 00079 0009 WVY9H0YUd 3aVHDdN vads - IDIAYAS m_m_u__ LLLLS
SAIIAYIS FHId
0 %00°00T (009°515) 0 0 0 0 0 009'StS 0 AUvyaIn violans
0 %00°00T {009°s¥S) 0 009'SYS 3avdDdN JVAH >~_<m_m_.__ 878LS
Advydait
0 %000 - 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 JININIHYEIA 3D110d VL0LEANS
ANIWLYVdIA DIT0d
0seey %00°001 0se'TY 0S2ey 0SZTY 0S2Zy 0 0 0 STV'EE 'ADOTONHIAL NOILYVWHOINI TvLOLaNS
0S¢ty %00°00T 0sz'ty (5447 L4447 0se'ty SLN3WIAIVIdIY mu._.Dn_EOU_ MIN
ADO0TONHIAL NOILYINYOINI
000°sZ %00°0 - 000 000'sZ 000'SZ 0 0 000°SL €89'9TT “HOSSASSY VL 0LansS
000°SZ %000 - 000°SL 000'SL 000°52 000'sZ €8991T ZO_‘_.<D._<>mm_ 6€9.LS
YOSSISSY
Y20Z-Ad {d3a/5\) (d3a/HNn) Wiy FDNVYNI4 40 ad | AINOYUddY 153N0IY €z/t/t ‘dOY¥ddv a3aN3dxa NOLLJI¥IS3a WAL 3NN
ANIDYId VZAd ANNOWY ¥ZAd | GIANININODIY | GIANIININOITY sod AJNIDVY 40 SV gINNJNT WLy wvnLwv
A3NO¥ddY INLY | QIAOY¥ddY INLY v20e/€202 vz0z/€202 /1d3Q ¥Z0T A4 /aNadx3a £207/220T zeoz/Te0e
Ny
ANNd FFNLIANIdXT ONIIYNIIY-NON ANV TV.LIdVD OL SYIISNVHL 141114 ‘ADN3IOV/1d3a




47

052'18C 200001 (1) 05218 0S2'18¢2 0SZ'18¢ 0 0 v8'8ETT 7999211 NOLLYIIdOYddY ONNd TYYINID TVLO0L
_
0 |%00°0 0 0 0 0 (000°0s2) 0 $135440 ONIGNNI 1VLIOL
{000°057) LNV NOILONYLSNOD AdvHan Jndnd LD
3ONVIVE GNNJ ILVNDISIANN
INNIAIY YIHLO/SINVYD SST1
052'18¢ %00°00% - 0S2'182 052'18¢Z 052'18¢ 0 0 128881 799'9Z1T°T TVLOL INJNLHV4IA
0 %00°0 - 0 0 ) 0 0 0 6/T'91E S6°67 NOILYINA3 10 Yv09g 1v.L0Lans
Ye0T-Ad (d3a/HN) (>3a/oNy LY FONVYNH J0 ad | GIA0UddY 153nD3Y €Z/1/1 *dOdddv Q3aN3dX3a NOILdI¥OS3a 3L 3NN
INIOYId ¥ZAd | INNOINY ¥ZAd | QIANININODIY | AIANININOIIY sog AINIDV 40 SV gINNDNT LY ALY
Q3INO¥ddY W1Y | AIAQHIDY ALY vzoz/ezoe vzoz/€z0t /1430 ¥Z0T A4 /aN3dx3 €20z/220T Teoe/1e0t
wnv
GNNJ FUNLIANIdXT ONIIYNIIY-NON ANV VLIV OL SHIISNVYHL orToT *ADNIDV/1d3d

139an4g YND 820¢-vZoz
[« ERVAELED)
QYOUILYM 10 NMOL




48

10665

st S & . 3 SRR (2= s z Sidasonie

€86'E6T VS ‘ — |ssvoszss | | ~ |c0L'8650S | I NOILVONa3|

NOILYONa3 09101 :ADN39V/1d3a

135an49 d3s0d0yd v20Z-£20C
ANN4d TVY¥INID
Qy0443LVM 10 NMOL



%00°t 658‘v80‘C | €86°€6T VS LY 9€ES- 000°00S- ssh'oge’ss YZT'60T2S LPO'EVOTS sjeol

%TET €69 LTL°0€ ¥£0°0€ 8€S°6¢ $884 13 sang
%v6 vy 199601 689'€5€ 820'7¥vT ovTvre juawdinb3
o /7" ‘ i y . salddns 48410
%LTSET L6T'LTS T0L'668 Y0bZ8¢ 6/8°06€ /Sioog Aleiqn/S{ooqiaL
i . — - — sguipjing Jo
%80°9T 9%9°8t¢ G89'9TS‘C 6£0'89T‘C 6€L'110C s oo
%LS"L 8YTTL ST6'YT0T L11°TS6 970°8€6 sa1jddns |euoonsu]
%6T 6T~ (82829) 609682 €EVESE 668'9G€ S92IAIaS paseydind 13410
%CE0 8€T'8 88/'78SC 0S9'7/SC L68°E61'T uoning
%bTT- (rSz'T) 07,66 ¥£6°00T €€5'S6 suopeIuNWWo)
%TIT'T 808‘C €71°SSC STETST £96PPC souelnsuj
%¥8°0T €£€°S/T 086°ST18'C LY9OVS‘T €15'88Y°C uopeyodsuedj
%0L'C €969 6LY'€91'C 95+'901'2C 8G6'¥0.L ) S3JIAI3S PAJORIUOD
%66'8 19599/ 006°€62°6 6EE°/TS'8 7696518 s1ijsuag aahojdwy
%I8'E 950°09¢ 696'880°L €168289 Y0'€699 saliejes Jioddng
%80°€ 60TCLL ¥22'6T8SC STT'L0'ST r8'vr0°st ssliejes [euononaisuj
(eseatdaq) | (aseasdaq) SNOILNA3Y vz £2-220C Z2-120T

a3IN0UddY 409 |SuUoidINPaY ALY sdnoJo 3unod

aseasdu] % | aseasnul s P 104 €202 A3SOd0Y¥d| a3IAOHUddY ainoyddy 2 v
|£86'C6T'¥S$ AdVININNS TALLNDAXH|

49



	FY23 Annual Report COMPLETE
	Appendix A Cover
	Appendix B

	PDF Signed Final Report and  Financial Statements_for upload



